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FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTING AUTHORITY 

The 2017/18 Financial Year marks the penultimate year of the five-year-term 
of the 5th Administration of the democratic government, signalling the final 
stretch towards consolidating the Programme of Action (PoA) of accelerated 
development and growth as set out in 2014.

During the period under review, the Eastern Cape Office of the Premier 
(OTP) continued to position itself as the apex nerve-centre of the Provincial 
Government playing its critical role of championing the Batho Pele/”People 
First” principle in the public service, underpinned by good governance, a 
professional work ethic as well as effective public service delivery. 

The OTP mission is to effectively coordinate institutional transformation of 
the Provincial Government and build an inclusive developmental state. The 
inter-governmental Premier’s Coordinating Forum (PCF), Provincial EXCO 
Sittings / Community Outreaches, the Provincial Government research entity 
Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council (ECSECC) as well as the 
Eastern Cape Provincial Planning Commission were utilised as instruments 
for assisting the OTP to lead and oversee coordination, integration and 
transformation agenda in the service delivery to the people of the Province.

These instruments have further strengthened good cooperative governance 
as well as public participation; thus effectively positioning the Office of 
the Premier as a strategic leader and apex centre of coordination in the 
Province as envisaged in the Provincial Development Plan (PDP) as well 
as the Medium Term Strategic Framework. Since 2014 to date, and despite 
provincial socio-economic challenges which have remained stubborn over 
the past 24 years, the ANC led Government has delivered steady and visible 
progress to the human condition of, in particular, the poor. As reflected in 
the State of the Province Address (SOPA) and Premier Budget and Policy 
speeches, certain strategic interventions by the Provincial Government have 
yielded results, albeit the need to address legacy of vast neglect and under-
development still remains urgent.
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In the year under review the OTP made bold pronouncements 
rallying public servants and the public to make optimal use of public 
resources, support eradication of corruption and maladministration 
in the public service, to achieve more with less, demand heightened 
Agility, Transparency, Accountability and Integrity (ATAI). This led to the 
implementation of the provincial Anti-Corruption Action Plan which has 
yielded results in improvement of success of reported cases. The optimal 
functionality of the Provincial Anti-Corruption Council, which supports the 
implementation of the action plan, has scored critical successes through 
our anti-graft strategies.

The EC Government also committed to stimulating growth through 
infrastructure development, reduction of cost of equity (COE) to 
rebalance our expenditure away from consumption, as well as 
elevating agriculture and its value chain as the key economic driver. 
We called for a united synergy between the activities and interventions 
of government, business, labour and civil society to ensure a concerted 
and cohesive drive towards our Vision 2030. The implementation of the 
newly adopted Integrated Service Delivery Model, dubbed “Operation 
Masiphathisane”, was implemented in earnest leading to several 
successful constructive engagements with various stakeholders, 
communities, and interest groups. The centrality of the OTP in planning, 
governance and accountability alongside coordination can be confirmed. 
To this end, the Department is pleased to report that its strategic plan as 
well as the service delivery model have been implemented with a measure 
of success in spite of historical and contemporary challenges.

Efforts to strengthen accountability in the Province have been implemented 
through leadership pledges, signing of service delivery agreements by 
Members of Executive Council (MECs) as well as Senior Management 
(SMS) Performance Agreements, starting with Heads of Departments 
(HODs) and Deputy Directors-General (DDGs). Subsequent to entering 
into these agreements/contracts a Provincial scorecard was developed 
and approved for implementation as a means to provide a holistic picture 

for tracking provincial performance. The scorecard has ably assisted the 
department to focus on improving provincial coordination and intervention 
in areas where provincial service delivery bottlenecks were detected.  This 
has opened up opportunities for Provincial Government to work more closely 
with the National Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional 
Affairs and affected municipalities in distress. 

Our continued hands-on-support to the Departments of Education and 
Health remains critical. In the main, our interventions have resulted in the 
much-improved compliance levels on human resource management matters 
and improved matric results. Given the sizes of these departments and 
the challenges they face, sustained efforts are still required to ensure that 
they fully achieve the envisaged turn around in line with our plan of action. 
OTP interventions in small town development have delivered results in 
improved investor confidence due to upgrading of infrastructure, government 
expenditure and other support measures. Efforts to reduce the provincial 
wage bill through the strengthening of the Provincial Coordination and 
Monitoring Team (PCMT) were implemented resulting in the streamlining 
of Annual Recruitment Plans of departments. The achievements stated 
above could not have been possible without the unwavering support of the 
Executive Council, the Provincial Legislature, our Portfolio Committee, Audit 
Committee, Management and staff of both the OTP and its entity, ECSECC.
It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report for the 2017/18 Financial Year 
for the Office of the Premier (OTP).

I thank you.

______________________
Hon. P. G. Masualle     
Premier and Executing Authority
Date: 19 September 2018
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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

A1 Report of the Accounting Officer 

A1.1 Overview of the operations of the Department 

During the year under review the Office of the Premier (OTP) continued to 
provide strategic and operational support to the Premier and the Executive 
Council to exercise their provincial executive authority and deliver on 
commitments for the year. The work entailed leading the process of 
coordinating the functions of the provincial administration and its departments 
through the development and implementation of legislation and policy. The 
Office also provided secretariat functions to the provincial cabinet.

An exercise of repositioning the Department to be outward looking was 
fully implemented during the 2017/18 financial year. The core provincially 
transversal programmes, Institutional Development and Organizational 
Support (IDOS) and the provincial Planning, Policy Coordinating, Monitoring 
and Evaluation (PCME) programme revised their indicators to outcomes 
based indicators. Although this approach has led to a reduction in the 
measured performance compared to previous years, it provides a true picture 
of the performance of the departmental programmes and ties in with the 
performance of the programme of action. The OTP is working closely with 
other departments to revise performance indicators so they can be outcome 
indicators as opposed to the input indicators used to measure performance 
that are not aligned to the program of action.

A repositioned Institutional Development and Organisational Support 
Programme (IDOS) focused on labour relations, recruitment and back-
office functions as evidenced in the Provincial Coordination and Monitoring 
Team (PCMT) work.  This programme supported all departments to develop 
comprehensive service delivery models so as to inform organizational 
structures. Six of the 13 departments completed their organizational structures 
with the relevant approvals and are in the process of implementation, whilst 
others are in various stages and nearing completion except the departments 
of Transport and Public Works. The IDOS programme supported transversal 
human capital and talent resources including back office oversight functions 
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relating to Recruitment and Selection, Job Evaluation and HR Planning. 
IDOS oversaw and set the standard operating procedures for transversal 
change management and transformation in order to stabilize and sustain 
the administration following structure changes and shifts. Labour Relations 
continued to improve in the province as the focus on continuous engagement 
with Labour formations led by IDOS continued. IDOS also set policies and 
standards for transversal HR and ICT including the ability to monitor and 
enforce these standards along with support mechanisms.

A repositioned Provincial Planning, Policy Coordinating, Monitoring and 
Evaluation Programme (PCME) focused on leading evidence-based 
decision-making across the entire value-chain of governmental operations 
from planning to performance reviews of government programmes against 
priorities.  PCME also refined balanced scorecards aligned to MEC’s service 
delivery agreements enhancing the Premier’s monitoring, oversight and 
engagements with Executive Authorities and their respective heads of 
departments.

The Administration programme 1 that is responsible for the Corporate 
Services function also had to undertake various additional interventionist 
projects aimed at addressing policy matters that could not be accommodated 
in the two core programs viz:

Small Town Revitalization;
Broadband initiation;
The rollout of the Youth Development Strategy developed in conjunction 
with the local chapter of the South African Youth Council

The Transversal Special Programmes function was relocated back to the 
OTP from the Department of Social Development in 2015 and key highlights 
in the programme include:

- Establishment of the Disability Machinery- as one of the initiatives 
towards socio-economic inclusion of persons with disabilities, is one 
of the key highlights in the programme. 

- Signing of a Protocol Agreement with the Department of Military 
Veterans on the services to and benefits of military veterans.  The 
Protocol Agreement is aimed not only at promoting economic 
empowerment of military veterans and their beneficiaries, but also at 
improving the servicing of Military Veterans by respective provincial 
departments.  In the next financial year the agreement will be rolled 
out starting with relevant sector Provincial Departments and District / 
Metropolitan Municipalities.

The rollout of the Provincial Youth Development Strategy has focused 
on creating pathways for the Youth especially those who have no tertiary 
education. Flagship Youth Development Programmes implemented during 
this period as part of the strategy implementation include:

- The Youth-in-Maritime Development Programme which is aimed at 
training unskilled youth as sea farers. The programme targeted 150 
young people as the first intake in the training. Successful candidates 
were successfully placed with the Mediterranean Shipping Company 
(MSC) and are presently stationed and working in cruise boats in 
Italy, Florida, Durban and other African countries.  

- Youth-in-Agriculture Development Programme which focuses on 
training unskilled youth involved in agriculture- prioritising Youth 
owned Agricultural Co-operatives (Youth Co-ops).  This programme, 
which is implemented in partnership with DRDAR, ECRDA, TARDI 
and NYDA, continued in 2017/18. By the end of the financial year 
19 Youth Co-ops had benefitted from the Programme and have 
also received training on livestock farming and crop production from 
the Tsolo Agricultural and Rural Development Institute (TARDI). In 
addition, the NYDA provides the young farmers with small business 
development training and mentorship. The objective of business 
development programme is to ensure continued and sustainable 
small business development, adequate market penetration and 
financial literacy. 
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In the 2018/2019 financial year, the department will start establishing market 
access opportunities for the young farmer co-ops starting with the local 
market such as SPAR whilst continuing to strive for increased support in 
accessing more market opportunities for the young farmers within their local 
supermarkets.

Government has adopted South Africa Connect, the National Broadband 
Policy and the associated strategy and plan; which gives expression to 
South Africa’s vision of “a seamless information infrastructure by 2030 that 
will underpin a dynamic and connected vibrant information society and a 
knowledge economy that is more inclusive, equitable and prosperous”.

The Executive Council of the Eastern Cape Government committed to 
connecting the province to affordable, high speed broadband in the province. 
The objectives set were the bringing about of social equity in the provision 
of services to the citizen through e-health and improve the connectivity of at 
least the 560 schools that form part of the Education Transformation Plan. 
Lack of responsiveness for 16 months by SITA to assist the province in rolling 
out Broadband led to an administrative decision to piggyback on an existing 
government tender. The alternative solution proposed by SITA could not be 
accepted as it was very expensive and inappropriate for the services required. 
After experiencing significant challenges including negative publicity by SITA, 
as well as court challenges, the project is progressing albeit with delays 
arising from uncertainty about court cases. Three provincial departments 

namely Social Development, Provincial Treasury and Office of the Premier 
were identified by the national government as pilot sites for the rollout of the 
Integrated Financial Management Services (IFMS). Broadband connectivity 
is a prerequisite for the rollout of Integrated Financial Management Services 
(IFMS) in the pilot sites.

As our province is rural with small towns that have seen a population 
explosion by mainly indigents, the infrastructure decay and the population 
explosion has led to basic services collapse in most of the smaller towns. 
The provincial government responded to this situation by establishing a 
small town revitalization program focusing on improving trading services like 
water, sanitation, roads and electricity in a few strategic towns like university 
towns and towns with high potential for economic growth. This programme 
is incubated by the OTP and considerable progress in infrastructure delivery 
has been recorded in Kirkwood that supports the citrus industry which 
absorbs a high number of unskilled workers, Alice where the University of Fort 
Hare is, and Elundini, home to the forestry industry. As basic infrastructure is 
delivered to these small towns, other retailers including banks and fast foods 
outlets have established businesses in these towns leading to job creation 
in the small towns. 
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Overview of the financial results of the department:

Departmental receipts

Departmental receipts

2017/2018 2016/2017

Estimate
Actual

Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection Estimate

Actual
Amount 

Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sale of goods and services other than capital assets 195 172 23 - 169 (169)

Transfers received

Fines, penalties and forfeits

Interest, dividends and rent on land 6 - 6 - - -

Sale of capital assets 40 - 40 805 330 475

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 82 161 (79) 4 3 1

TOTAL 323 333 10 809 502 305
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Programme Expenditure 

Programme Name

2017/2018 2016/2017

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 596 690 512 834 83 856 249 061 245 749 3 312

Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation 109 072 146 615 5 275 122 896 108 732 14 164

Institutional Development and Organisational Support 155 182 146 613 8 567 155 662 151 822 3 840

TOTAL 860 944 763 246 97 698 527 619 506 303 21 316

Administration 596 690 512 687 84 003 14.08%

Under expenditure of R84.0 million is mainly due to the following reasons:

	Under expenditure of R48.7 million is due to delays in the procurement of the provincial broadband rollout project. The programme was implemented 
in October 2017 after a decision was taken to participate in an existing contract. 

	Compensation of employees under expenditure of R9.8 million - is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled on time, this was due to the 
organisational repositioning process which delayed. There was a short period of time after the structure was approved by DPSA and the year end, due 
to capacity constraints the necessary recruitment could not be filled before the year end. 

	Under expenditure of R10.3 million  in Special Programmes Unit is due to youth development project in collaboration with the Department of 
Defence & Military Veterans. The registration and database creation process, including taking finger prints by 400 young people across the province 
took longer than anticipated to finalise. 

	Capital under expenditure of R4.8 million - Computer and equipment and furniture (R2.2 m, refurbishment of the server facility and training lab  
(R2.9 m). 
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Virements/roll overs 
Roll overs have been requested for the Broadband Project, Youth Projects. 
The reason for requesting a roll over was that the department already had 
contractual commitments to the projects and therefore the funds were still 
needed to finalise the projects.

• In Administration Programme a virement of (R7.740) million was 
requested.

• In Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring & Evaluation a virement of 
(R7.859) million was requested.

• In Institutional Development and Organisational Support a virement of 
R15. 599 million was requested. 

All the above Virements were done as part of the budget reprioritization 
during the financial year under review. Therefore funds were moved from one 
programme to another to fund the cost pressure areas of the department.

Unauthorized Expenditure
The department did not have any unauthorized expenditure.

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred during the financial year 
amounted to R29 thousand and is made up of various small amounts 
ranging from an air-ticket for a trip that would not have materialized or 

Planning, Policy, Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation 

Under-expenditure of R5.3 million is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled. This is due to the scarcity of the skills required to fill the posts, a 
number of interviews and assessments were held, however, no suitable people could be found to fill the posts.

Institutional Development and Organisational Support 

Goods and services under expenditure of R2.4 million is mainly due to paid back interdepartmental claims for Provincial centralised recruitment, projected 
catering, travel and subsistence for officials attending meetings for Programme not utilised and projected expenditure under Anti-Corruption and Security 
Management Consultants for Review of the Provincial Fraud Prevention Plan, awaiting approval of the document.

Compensation of employees R5.1 million - is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled on time, this was due to the organisational repositioning pro-
cess which delayed. There was a short period of time after the structure was approved by DPSA and the year end, due to capacity constraints the necessary 
recruitment could not be finalised before the year end.
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some officials failing to attend a planned training for various reasons. 
The department has a balance of R2.022 million in fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure emanating from the prior year. The bulk of the expenditure 
of about R1.9 million relates to the Drive Lock ICT project that was 
implemented in the 2014/15 Financial Year and no benefit was received by 
the department. This matter has since been investigated and handed over 
to the South African Police Services

Future plans of the department
During 2018/19 the department will consolidate the report for the period 2014 
– 2019 in preparation for the post-elections handover of government from 
the 5th Administration to the 6th Administration. This consolidated report will 
include all concurrent work conducted by national and local governments in 
furthering the prospects of improving the lives of Eastern Cape communities. 

The department will continue to strengthen and support integrated planning, 
together with enhancing transversal monitoring and evaluation, including 
incorporating the outcomes from the work produced by the planning 
commission.

Working with the department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform, 
OTP will continue to lead and participate in the transformation of the 
agricultural sector as one of the three apex priorities of the Province.

Through the accelerated rollout of the Broadband connectivity to provincial 
government, the department will continue with the programme of creating an 
enabling environment to facilitate connectivity to corporate sites in order to 
drive cost and business process efficiencies, improved service delivery and 
serve as a catalyst for economic and social development. 

The department will continue with the implementation of the Small Town 
Revitalisation Programme ensuring the completion of the project in the 
identified towns, focusing on electricity, street lights, sanitation, storm water 
and drainage over the 2018 MTEF period. 

The department will also spearhead efforts to address youth development 
through rigorous implementation of the Internship programme, alongside the 
youth projects which have already been identified. These efforts will serve 
to ward against scarcity of work opportunities, as well as contribute towards 
lasting skills transfer and experience which ultimately fights the scourge of 
poverty

Public Private Partnerships
Not applicable

Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued
Not applicable

New or proposed activities 
Not applicable

Supply Chain Management (SCM)
The department did not receive any unsolicited bid proposal during the 
Financial Year under review. SCM process and systems are in place to 
prevent irregular expenditure even though the implementation has been a 
challenge. 

Gifts and Donations received in kind from nonrelated parties
The following gifts were received: 

• MTN donated 10 laptops for performing students awards

• Standard Bank donated tickets to the Grahamstown National Arts 
Festival

• Peiter Mare donated 2 scarfs at R350 each

	

	

	



21Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury 
There has been no exemptions and deviations received from the National 
Treasury

Events after the reporting date
There were no major events after the reporting date

Other 
Not applicable

Approval and sign off

______________________
Ms NTM Mbina-Mthembu
Accounting Officer 
Office of the Premier
Date: 30 August 2018 
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A2 Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of 
Accuracy of the Annual Report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

	All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report 
are consistent. 

	The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any 
omissions.

	The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 
guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

	The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared 
in accordance with the modified cash standard and the relevant 
frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

	The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual 
financial statements and for the judgments made in this information.  

	The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and 
implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to 
provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 
performance information, the human resources information and the 
annual financial statements.

	The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion 
on the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance 
information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of the 
department for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Yours faithfully 

Approval and sign off

______________________
Ms NTM Mbina-Mthembu
Accounting Officer 
Office of the Premier
Date: 30 August 2018
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Value What it Means to OTP 

Excellence

	We promote, recognise and reward excellence in service delivery to all our stakeholders 
	We provide a supportive and affirming environment that enables our employees to reach their full potential
	We adopt innovative approaches to promote excellence in our institutional policies, structure, processes and systems
	We are a people centred and results orientated organisation

Integrity

	We commit ourselves to the highest standards of personal honesty and exemplary moral character
	We behave in an ethical and professional manner 
	We conduct our activities in an accountable and transparent manner
	We ensure the integrity of our information, systems and processes

Reactive and Responsive

	Anticipating challenges and dealing with these decisively proactively
	We respond timeously to the needs of stakeholders
	We provide accurate information about government services in an open and transparent manner

Creative and innovative

	We encourage and adopt innovative approaches to promote excellence in implementing government programmes
	We are a learning organisation that continuously reflects progress to our stakeholders
	We promote user friendly processes to fast-track service delivery implementation 
	We promote sharing of best practices 

A3 Strategic Overview 

A3.1 Vision
Leading development with excellence and integrity

A3.2 Mission
Coordinating functions of the provincial administration through provision of strategic leadership in policy development, planning and implementation

A3.3 Values 
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A4 Legislative and other Mandates 
The constitutional mandate of the Premier is derived from Section 125 of the 
Constitution (Act No. 108 of 1996). This section provides the Premier and 
the Executive Council the authority over a Province by:
	implementing provincial legislation in the Province; 
	implementing all national legislation within the functional areas listed 

in Schedule 4, except where the Constitution or an Act of Parliament 
provides otherwise; 

	administering national legislation outside the functional areas listed 
in Schedules 4 and 5, that which has been assigned to the provincial 
executive in terms of an Act of Parliament; 

	developing and implementing provincial policy; 
	coordinating the functions of the provincial administration and its 

departments; 
	preparing and initiating provincial legislation; and 
	performing any other function assigned to the provincial executive in 

terms of the Constitution or an Act of Parliament. 

The Office of the Premier is a department created in terms of the Constitution, 
1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and the Public Service Act (No. 103 of 1994) 
(Proc. No. 103 of 1994) to enable the Premier to lead the Eastern Cape 
government in the service of the public. It is thus mandated to ensure that:
	The Constitution, national and provincial laws, rules and regulations 

as well as policies, are faithfully and effectively executed; 
	Through the Executive Council, the Premier drives the transformation 

process in the  Province; 
	Government is effectively coordinated, and 
	The Office of the Premier strives to be an exemplary and effective 

centre of the Provincial Administration. 
In addition to the Constitution and the Public Service Act (No. 103 of 1994), 
other important legislative guidelines include: 
	Labour Relations Act, (No.66 of 1995);  
	Basic Conditions of Employment Act, (No. 75 of 1997);
	Skills Development Act, (No. 97 of 1998);

Value What it Means to OTP 

Inclusivity
	We promote inclusivity – ensuring that government is accessible and promote social justice
	We recognise and respect the value of consultation in planning and monitoring the work of government

Professionalism 
	We are living the government promise
	We are committed to the highest standards of service delivery
	We effectively and efficiently use time and government resources
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	Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, (No. 3 of 2000);   
	Promotion of Access to Information Act, (No. 2 of 2000);  
	Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, (No.5 of 2000); 
	Electronic Communications and Transactions Act, (No. 25 of 2002); 
	State Information Technology Agency Act, (No. 88 of 1998).   

The following are policy mandates that the OTP will be implementing and 
have since been used to inform the current strategic plan:
	The National Development Plan (NDP);
	The Provincial Development Plan (PDP);
	Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF);
	Provincial Medium Term Strategic Framework (P-MTSF). 
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A5 Organisational Structure
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B1 Auditor General’s Report: Predetermined Objectives

The Auditor General of South Africa did not issue an opinion on the performance information report for the current financial year. However, a high level assessment 
was performed and the findings relating to the performance information report are contain within the Audit Report of the Auditor General on page 196.
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B2 Overview of Departmental Performance

B2.1 Service Delivery Environment 
The 2016 General Household Survey (GHS) report provides useful 
information that assesses the extent to which government programmes 
have been successful in positively changing the lives of the citizens in the 
Province. In summary, the GHS (2016) indicates that the Province, with more 
than 6.6million people, is the third largest in the country and its population 
has been gradually increasing nominally but proportionally decreasing over 
the years. There are 1.727 million households in the Province. On average 
there are 3.89 people in a household which is higher than the average in 
Gauteng at 2.82. Access to basic services has been on the rise with more 
and more children accessing schools and public health facilities despite the 
many documented challenges that government still faces in this regard. 
Unemployment remains relatively high at 38.9% (Labour Force Survey, 2016) 
and youth is the most affected. Vulnerability to hunger and access to food 
continues to be the reality for some 28% of households in the Province. This 
context has shaped government programmes as envisaged in the National 
Development Plan (NDP), the Provincial Development Plan (PDP) as well 
as the Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) with a clear intention to 
set the Province on a different development trajectory. The responsibility of 
the Office of the Premier, as the centre of governance and leadership in the 
Province, is to coordinate efforts of government with a firm focus on the triple 
challenges of inequality, poverty and unemployment. 

It is vital to take stock of some of the highlights achieved by the department 
in the 2017/18 Financial Year: 

Litigation monitoring and coordination: Reporting on the litigation 
landscape and legal costs expenditure in the Eastern Cape Provincial 
Administration has been observed. The Litigation unit supported the OTP-
HROPT verification process involving the HROPT disputes besetting the 
Departments of DRDAR, DoE and SOCDEV. Litigation support services 
were also rendered in the Departments of Health, SOCDEV and DEDEAT. 

The OTP was instrumental in facilitating the procurement of private legal 
representation in the DoH to attend to medical negligence litigation in the 
Province. The service level agreement became effective from October 
2017. Litigation relevant to traditional leadership disputes is also effectively 
managed to safeguard the interests of the Premier’s office.   

By-Law Development, PAIA & PAJA Training was facilitated for Chris 
Hani District Municipality- The first municipality in the Province to be trained. 
Legal advisors in municipalities were invited to attend the Provincial Legal 
Advisors Forum, and an invitation to train officials/councillors on by-laws 
and PAJA & PAIA was extended to all municipalities. The training on PAJA & 
PAIA was combined with the training on by-law development.  

Broad Band: Efforts to capacitate the broadband unit were successfully 
completed with only a few remaining vacancies in the structure. During 
the year under review, the unit stabilised the Bhisho Campus Network, 
this network services the head office departmental facilities which in turn, 
service the Bhisho and King William’s Town areas. The stabilisation involved 
upgrading the reliability, stability and security of over twenty sites and core 
links metro-area networks (MANs). The Province is participating in a service 
arrangement which connects provincial government sites through a core 
network. By the end of the year, the bulk of the feasibility and planning 
work to accelerate the rollout of broadband connectivity to provincial sites 
had been undertaken, and the following health facilities had been provided 
with broadband connectivity: Cecilia Makiwane Hospital in Mdantsane; 
Nelson Mandela Academic Hospital in Mthatha; and Mbashe’s Community 
Health Centre care facility in Dutywa. In January 2018, a demonstration 
of the functioning of broadband connectivity was successfully conducted 
in Cecilia Makiwane Hospital. The demonstration displayed radiology, 
video and teleconferencing functionality over broadband, remote tracking 
of government vehicles, real-time medical diagnostics between rural and 
urban facilities through processes/activities such as ultra-sound scanning, 
real-time monitoring of inventory stock levels and supplies, as well as large 
file transfers including x-rays. A patient within Mbhashe Local Municipality 
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area can now receive the same diagnostic medical attention as that in East 
London. Government can now track its medical vehicles in real time and 
dispatch emergency services to these areas immediately. Instead of having 
to drive hundreds of kilometres to share medical files and x-rays between 
hospitals and clinics, this information can now be transmitted within seconds 
between areas and medical staff. The Province remains committed to the 
accelerated delivery of broadband connectivity to provincial sites and has 
opposed the legal challenges which have been initiated against its efforts.

Infrastructure Support: The Rapid Response teams provided support by 
unlocking blockages on the following;

a) Assessment of B5 Project lists and the mapping of 2018 MTEF 
Department of Education projects. Updated the GIS cadastral 
database to enable the spatial alignment of the infrastructure of all 
sector departments.

b) Coordination of the Accelerated School Infrastructure Delivery 
Initiative (ASIDI) and School Rationalisation projects, report to 
School Rationalisation Steering Committee meetings and map the 
duplication of projects.

c) Updated the GIS cadastral database to enable the spatial alignment 
of the infrastructure of all sector departments.

d) Assisted the DRPW Properties in identifying the zoning and planning 
status of immoveable assets. 

e) Prepared the report on Backlogs in affected Local Municipalities for 
input into the 2018/19 IDP cycle

Regarding the Small Town Revitalisation Programme projects are at 
various stages with those in Ntabankulu, Nyandeni, Raymond Mhlaba, 
Sundays River and Elundini Local Municipalities at implementation phase 
while Port St Johns is still at a planning stage. In all towns, a minimum 
project value of 30% is set aside for SMMEs and labour is sourced from local 
residents thereby generating the much needed employment.

The process of the Roads function shift is expected to be implemented from 
the beginning of the 2018/19 Financial Year subject to sign offs on personnel 
and asset transfers. The changes to the names of the two departments have 
been effected and gazetted by the President. The Department of Roads 
and Public works (DRPW) will change to the Department of Public Works 
while the Department of Transport (DoT) will remain unchanged as the roads 
function will form part of a programme that includes all infrastructure planning 
and delivery. Service Delivery Model for the Department of Public Works has 
been finalized and approved by the MEC while that of the Department of 
Transport is in final stages of development. The Core Staff to be transferred 
have been identified and initial proposal on non-core staff to be transferred 
are at an advanced stage.

As part of strengthening integrated planning, the 2018/19 PoA was approved 
by EXCO in November 2017. The early approval of the PoA has afforded the 
OTP with an opportunity to influence the inclusion of projects identified in the 
PoA into departmental Annual Performance Plans (APPs). This will in turn 
assist in the achievement of PoA targets by relevant departments.  Further 
to this APPs were analysed for alignment with provincial priorities. 

Work on refining the PDP and the development of its 5 year implementation 
plan is underway. This will enable the Province to rally all stakeholders and 
role players around a shared vision and build a unity of purpose in attaining 
our developmental goals. 

The Operation Masiphathisane was launched and to date over 500 war 
rooms have been launched at ward level across the Province. These war 
rooms are providing an important platform for people to engage meaningfully 
with government and to be empowered to take full responsibility of their own 
development. 
Performance Monitoring and Reporting: Provincial performance analysis 
were conducted and tabled to the Cabinet Committees and EXCO. Critical 
areas of performance risk were identified that required urgent intervention. 
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These areas were further consulted through all the working groups to ensure 
agility in resolving programmes and were in the following areas; access to 
early childhood development centers, provision of school infrastructure 
mainly water, sanitation, and electricity, quality of primary health care, 
reduction of child mortality, SMME development, small town development, 
crime hotspots, 30 day payment of service providers, back to basics and 
infrastructure programmes.

Coordination of Cluster Functionality: Ensured continuous support for 
functionality of working groups of the 14 working groups working directly 
through the convener departments. There is a marked improvement as 
13 (out of the 14) working groups were convened). The key elements for 
emphasis include the following; improved representatively in working groups 
which is synonymous with PoA performance indicators especially in the 
following working groups: learner attainment, justice and crime prevention, 
anti-poverty strategy, public sector transformation, and municipal functionality 
and viability. However, there remains room for improvement in terms of the 
actual performance.
 
Implementation of Policy Planning, Research, Monitoring and Evaluation 
Forum: The OTP continued to utilise the forum as a platform for shared 
learning, especially best practices, towards improvement of planning, 
monitoring and evaluation of government programmes. The forum was also 
utilised to solicit comments and inputs through research questionnaires for 
the Diagnostic Report for Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation within the 
Province. The preliminary analysis of data has been concluded and the final 
report with findings and recommendations will be made available during 
Quarter 4.  

The validation of the Service Delivery Model (SDM) for the Department of 
Transport as well as the Department of Social Development was conducted 
and these SDMs are now at the final stage of being approved by their 
respective MECs. The OTP successfully supported these departments 
to align their SDMs with their five year strategic plans. This process will 
now enable these departments to begin the development and finalisation 

of their organograms. The Organograms for the Department of Human 
Settlements and Office of the Premier have been approved. The 
Department of Public Service and Administration has issued the concurrence 
letter and both Departments have begun the process of migrating from the 
old Organogram to the new Organogram. In addition; DoH, DEDEAT and 
DSRAC structures have also been submitted to DPSA for concurrence. The 
functional structure for DRPW without the roads function has been also been 
developed and COGTA organisational structure validated in readiness for 
submission to DPSA. 

The OTP continues to coordinate Job Evaluation through the Central 
Job Evaluation Quality Assurance Committee (CJEQAC) forum and the 
Provincial Job Evaluation Panel (PJEP). In preparation for the role out of 
the new Operations Management Framework the OTP has trained officials 
from various departments on Business Process Mapping (BPM).  This will 
enable departments to develop their own standard operating procedures for 
their key services areas.

To facilitate skill development the OTP has reached an agreement with 
SAPS to train mechanics and panel beaters in all SAPS garages in the 
Province and the work on facilitating placements of learners for experiential 
learning has commenced.

The OTP Unit is also developing various ICT systems in support of the 
business objectives on behalf of the Province, these include the e-Recruitment; 
e-Records; e-Xela – For the Anti-Corruption Case Management System; 
and e-Performance – for the Provincial ICT Governance performance Portal. 

With the establishment of a Youth Desk in the OTP, there has been 
progressive improvements in the roll-out of youth projects. To date the 
following can be highlighted: 
	12 Youth in Agriculture projects were supported to the tune of R5 

million. The support covered provision for agricultural inputs and 
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skills training.
	In supporting unemployed and unskilled youth, the OTP has allocated 

R20 million for 2017/18 Financial Year for the Youth Infrastructure 
Training Programme. The Programme will commence in the fourth 
quarter of 2017/18.

	Additional 5 projects in Joe Gqabi District Municipality were supported 
as part of the Youth Months Celebrations. The nature of the projects 
ranged from sports, arts, culture as well as agriculture.

	The pilot Maritime Youth Development Programme which focuses 
on skills development in the maritime sector was launched in 2017. 
To date 97 youths have completed the training programme and a 
process to place these young people in cruise liners has commenced.

Despite these achievements, the OTP faces a number of challenges that 
limit its effectiveness in discharging its obligations. The general lack of 
critical skills for policy implementation in the Province being one of the 
major one. This is reflected in the perennial underachievement of our MTSF 
targets as outlined in the Programme of Action (PoA).

In moving forward it is important to note that the 2018/19 Financial Year marks 
the end of the MTSF and it is therefore vital that the Provincial Administration 
spares no effort to ensure that the objectives of this term are achieved.  The 
role of the OTP largely remains the same. However, particular emphasis will 
be placed on the following areas: 
	Public Sector Transformation where the focus will be on the 

implementation of a revised sector strategy which is imperative 
to build a capable, development – orientated and accountable 
government. This also includes efforts to ensure that all departments 
have service delivery models that are aligned to their mandates.

	Municipal functionality and viability will receive attention with our 
efforts to implement and monitor the Back-to-Basics programmes 
heightened. A total of 16 local municipalities, mainly composed of 
those that have recently been amalgamated, were identified and 
prioritised. The Provincial Treasury, the Department of Cooperative 

Governance and Traditional Affairs, and the South African Local 
Government Association have developed financial systems in these 
municipalities. There is now the need to tackle municipal debt and 
assist these municipalities with revenue collection strategies as 
indicated in the P-MTSF.

	The Province has witnessed positive trends in the audit outcomes 
of departments as well as in municipalities. Despite this positive trend 
there is a need to improve on matters of emphasis and maintain 
positive audit outcomes and also to ensure that there is a stronger 
correlation between positive audit outcomes and service delivery at 
both Provincial and local government level. To this end more focus 
will be on the monitoring of the 30 day payment of suppliers and the 
expenditure on capital and conditional grants.

	Strengthening Planning Monitoring and Evaluation through 
the implementation of the revised Provincial Spatial Development 
Framework, development  of  Multi-year human settlement 
development plan and the implementation of the Provincial 
Infrastructure Plan. There is also the need to optimize integrated 
planning and facilitation of strategic economic development 
programmes and projects as indicated in the PDP. 

	The development of a business intelligence capacity and capability 
at OTP to track and monitor development patterns and trends in the 
Province will therefore be vital to ensure that this is realised. 

	The OTP will be fast tracking the implementation of an integrated 
planning framework and guidelines to support and promote 
community-based planning through the Integrated Service Delivery 
Model (ISDM). 

	Through ICT, the department will continue with the programme 
of creating an enabling environment to facilitate connectivity to 
corporate sites, schools, etc. in order to drive cost efficiency, improved 
service delivery and serve as a catalyst for economic and social 
development. This will be done through the rollout of broadband and 
the establishment of a contract with a service provider, establishing 
a portion of the core infrastructure and connecting the initial sites 
during the financial year
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	In partnerships with various stakeholders, the OTP will intensify 
the implementation of Provincial Youth Strategy through various 
programmes which include youth in agriculture, skills development 
and infrastructure. The programme on youth and maritime 
development which was launched in the 2017/18 Financial Year will 
continue to be supported in the 2018/19 Financial Year. 

	On corporate management, the OTP has a new organisational 
structure which is aligned to its budget structure. Implementation of 
this structure will continue in 2018/19 Financial Year. This structure 
will further bolster the capacity of the department in its critical 
functional areas of planning, policy monitoring and evaluation.
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Main services and standards

Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  standard of 
service Desired standard of service Actual achievement

Provision of policy planning 
services to Departments and 
Municipalities

	All Programmes in the 
Office of the Premier

	Eastern Cape Provincial 
Departments

	Municipalities

Limited integrated planning in 
the Province resulting in poor 
alignment of Provincial plans

Strengthened policy 
coordination and integrated 
planning in the Province in 
terms of:
	Province-wide outcome-

based integrated planning 
to improve performance

	Enabling legislation 
to support policy 
implementation developed

	Improved knowledge and 
research in the Province

	To strengthen integrated 
planning, the 2018/19 PoA 
was developed earlier 
than has been the case 
in previous years hence 
it has influenced the APP, 
informing and guiding the 
planning and budgeting 
processes for the 2018/19 
Financial Year

	To ensure alignment and 
collaboration amongst 
sector Departments, the 3 
Government Clusters were 
supported.

	To strengthen integrated 
coordination and planning 
in the Province, the EC-
COGTA presented the 
Provincial and Local 
Government Coordination 
& Integration Framework

B2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan
The department has completed a service delivery improvement plan. The tables below highlight the service delivery plan and the achievements to date.



36Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  standard of 
service Desired standard of service Actual achievement

Provision of Organisational 
Model and Organisational design 
services

All Provincial Government 
departments

Despite the creation of an 
enabling environment through 
regulatory frameworks 
and support mechanisms, 
departments are still struggling 
with the delivery of quality 
services. This is mainly 
because they fail to evolve 
quickly enough to match a 
shift in strategy. In addition, 
the design of their structures 
does not match how the 
department will actually create 
value through the delivery of its 
services. 

All departments have 
appropriate Service Delivery 
Models that are aligned to 
their mandate. Furthermore 
their organisational structures 
must be aligned to the Service 
Delivery Model.

	To strengthen and finalise 
the collaboration between 
Universities and the 
Provincial Departments, 
the Eastern Cape Human 
Resource Development 
Council as well as its 
research and innovation 
working group have been 
utilised as consultative 
platforms 

	Key to operational 
functionality of the state is 
existence of departmental 
organograms that are 
aligned to departmental 
strategy and Service 
Delivery Model. To this 
end, 5 organograms during 
the year in question have 
been finalised (DoH, 
OTP, DEDEAT, DHS, and 
DSRAC) paving way for 
departments to reposition 
and capacitate themselves 
to deliver on their 
mandates.
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Service Delivery Information Tool

Current/actual information tools Actual achievements

OTP information tools. These are:
	Ikhwelo  – OTP staff
	Masincokole – Public 
	News Flash – OTP staff 
	Current Affairs – OTP staff 

Six editions of Masincokole were produced. News Flash and Current Affairs 
were issued regularly during the year under review to keep OTP staff abreast of 
development. 

Complaints Mechanism

Current/actual complaints mechanism Actual achievements

The department has a complaints mechanism in place where the public can raise their 
concerns with the Premier through walk-ins, petitions or written complaints. 

The department receives petitions and complaints from communities, mainly 
around service delivery issues. The facilitation of the resolution of these was 
undertaken, and details of what was achieved in this regard is outlined in the 
Programme 2 performance highlights.

The department also manages complaints received from the Presidential Hotline. Towards promoting a government that is interactive, responsive and effective, 
the Province reached a resolution rate of 92% [9 454 out of 10 278] calls were 
resolved at the end of the financial year. The improvement can be attributed to 
ongoing support provided to departments and municipalities 

For staff, a grievance procedure is in place, and a designated employee is appointed to 
investigate and facilitate the finalisation of grievances.

The statistics on the matter are explained in detail in the human-resource 
management report in table 3.10.4.

Batho Pele Arrangements with Beneficiaries (Consultation Access etc.)

Current/actual arrangements Desired arrangements Actual achievements

Consultations through makgotlas, EXCO outreaches, 
PCFs, Municipalities and Members of the Executive 
Council (MuniMECs), etc.

The OTP will continue to hold Makgotla, EXCO 
Outreaches, PCFs, MuniMECs, etc.

EXCO outreaches, community and stakeholder 
engagements and the PCF were organised. Details of what 
was achieved in this regard are outlined in the Programme 
2 performance highlights.
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B2.3 Organisational Environment 
The department embarked on a process to reposition itself to ensure that 
more focus is placed on the roles of planning, governance and accountability, 
alongside coordination and facilitation. To this end the strategic plan has been 
revised, the service delivery model has been completed and the organisational 
structure has been finalised. The focus will be on ensuring that the new 
structure is implemented and a change management programme is rolled 
out to complement this process. The budget structure of the department has 
also been amended in line with the new approved organisational structure.

Relating to governance, the department has achieved successes in its 
management processes as depicted by the results of the Management 
Performance Assessment Tool (MPAT 1.7). The department also achieved 
an unqualified audit outcome for the 2016/17 Financial Year, although a 
matter of emphasis remains relating to the irregular expenditure incurred in 
the 2014/15 Financial Year. An audit improvement plan, which addresses all 
matters raised by the Auditor-General as well as by the departmental internal 

audit, has been put in place, and its implementation is being monitored on a 
monthly basis. The Audit Committee (AC) and Risk Management Committee 
(RMC) continue to be functional, and these committees provide valuable 
oversight functions to the department.

There was a fire incident at the OTP’s ECDC building in June 2017. Although 
there was no loss of life, the OTP lost valuable records and the business of the 
department was disrupted as office space had to be found to accommodate 
offices that had been gutted by the fire to ensure business continuity. Trauma 
briefings were conducted to staff that had been affected by this incidence. 

B2.4 Key Policy Developments and Legislative Changes
There has not been any revision to the legislative and other mandates that 
govern the work of the Office of the Premier. 

B3 Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals and Objectives 

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal An efficient, effective and development oriented public service and an empowered, fair and inclusive citizenship in the Province

Strategic Objective 1 Lead the provincial development agenda for a shared vision institutionalising evidence-based decision making and integrated 
planning over medium term

Strategic Objective 2 Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality 
services.

Strategic Objective 3 Enhance inclusive governance through meaningful implementation of citizen empowerment and stakeholder participatory 
programmes in the current term.

Strategic Objective 4 Strengthen accountability in corporate governance through enforcing the implementation of public sector reforms in the Province 
on an on-going basis

Strategic Objective 5 Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building 
internal capability and empowering employees
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The department has identified qualitative and outcome oriented performance 
indicators that are linked to the above strategic objectives. These indicators 
depict the outcomes which the department is pursuing in the current 
MTEF. Due to the complexity of identifying a single indicator that depicts 
achievement of an outcome, the department has opted to define these 
performance indicators in terms of 4 levels as follows: 

	Level 1 depicts an unacceptable level of performance where the 
department (in case of the OTP) or the Provincial Administration does 
not have the necessary frameworks in place to be able to implement 
government programmes.

	Level 2 is where the department/Province has demonstrated progress 
towards an acceptable level of performance. This is achieved 
mainly when a department (in case of the OTP)  or the Provincial 
Administration has the required frameworks in place (policies and 
plans) but has not started implementing  these in a meaningful way.

	Level 3 depicts acceptable level of performance. It is the level where 
the department (in case of the OTP) or the Provincial Administration is 
implementing its programmes in accordance with the policy prescripts 
that govern that particular area. In other words the expectations as 
outlined in the respective policy framework have been met.

	Level 4 is where the department (in case of the OTP) or the Provincial 
Administration has gone beyond the acceptable level of performance. 
In other words, innovative ways of doing things are being employed 
and the value of this is being demonstrated. This is the level where 
‘better’ or ‘best practices’ can be found. 

Due to the detailed nature of these levels, it has not been possible to outline 
the details of each level in the performance indicator tables. However, a 
detailed description of each level is provided as an annexure to this Annual 
Report.

B4 Performance Information by Programme

B4.1 Programme 1: Administration

Programme Purpose
Provide strategic leadership, management and support services to the 
Premier, Director-General and the department; effective and efficient 
secretarial services to the Executive Council and provincial management 
structures; reliable legal services and a comprehensive communication 
service on behalf of government; as well as manage strategic priority 
interventions.
The programme is structured as follows: 
	Sub-Programme 1.1: Premier’s Office
	Sub-Programme 1.2: Office of the Director General 
	Sub-Programme 1.3: Office of the Chief Operations Officer
	Sub-Programme 1.4: Corporate Services 
	Sub-Programme 1.5: Financial Management
	Sub-Programme 1.6: Internal Audit
	Sub-Programme 1.7: Enterprise-wide Risk Management
	Sub-Programme 1.8: Special Programmes Coordinating Unit
	Sub-Programme 1.9: Departmental Legal Services
	Sub-Programme 1.10: Departmental ICT
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Strategic Objective and Associated Outputs Applicable to the 
Programme

	Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality services.

	Strategic Objective 3: Enhance inclusive governance through meaningful implementation of citizen empowerment and stakeholder participatory programmes in the 
current term.

	Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen accountability in corporate governance through enforcing the implementation of public sector reforms in the Province on an on-going 
basis.

	Strategic Objective 5: Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building internal capability 
and empowering employees

Performance Highlights
1) Broad Band: Capacitation of the broadband unit with only a few 

remaining vacancies in the structure. Stabilisation of the Bhisho 
Campus Network which services head office departmental facilities, 
which in turn services the Bhisho and King William’s Town areas. The 
stabilisation involved upgrading the reliability, stability and security of 
over twenty sites and core links metro-area networks (MANs). Provision 
of the following health facilities with broadband connectivity: Cecilia 
Makiwane Hospital in Mdantsane; Nelson Mandela Academic Hospital 
in Mthatha; and Livingstone Hospital in Port Elizabeth. This has resulted 
in radiology, video and teleconferencing functionality over broadband, 
remote tracking of government vehicles, real-time medical diagnostics 
between rural and urban facilities through processes/activities such 
as ultra-sound scanning, real-time monitoring of inventory stock levels 
and supplies, as well as large file transfers including x-rays. Through 
the DTPS partnership 295 sites, mainly schools and clinics in the King 
Sabata Dalindyebo and Mhlontlo Local Municipalities, were enabled.

2) Support to amalgamated municipalities: a special focus was given 
to the four amalgamated municipalities, Raymond Mhlaba, Dr Beyers 
Naudi, Enoch Mgijima and Walter Sisulu. The OTP supported COGTA 
in the development of OD principles and organogram review processes 
for municipalities within the Alfred Nzo District Municipality. Through the 
support provided, all four new entities managed to develop their budgets 
for 2017/18 Financial Year and they were approved by councils on time.  
The municipalities have also merged their financial systems and started 
reporting on SCOA from the month of July 2017 as required by Treasury 
although there are some challenges in other segments of the system. 
Through the Government Support Programme II (GIZ) operational 
plans for Enoch Mgijima LM and Chris Hani DM were developed. These 
focused on the three areas of interventions, namely: (a) Enhancing 
planning, monitoring and organisational capacity for management of 
service delivery (institutional strengthening); (b) Improving financing of 
and procurement for service delivery; and (c) Improving accountability 
and oversight of service delivery.
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3) Small Town Revitalisation: Interventions implemented to accelerate 
service delivery / provision of basic infrastructure in the Province 
Small Town Revitalisation Programme focused on Dikeni (Alice), 
Kirkwood, Tlokoeng (Mt Fletcher), Nyandeni (Libode & Ngqeleni), 
Port St Johns, and Ntabankulu. These projects are at various stages. 
In Port St Johns and Ntabankulu the planning and design stage has 
been completed. In the remaining towns of Dikeni, Kirkwood, Tlokoeng, 
Nyandeni (Libode & Ngqeleni) projects are at a construction stage. 
In all the municipalities and towns identified for the Small Town 
Revitalisation Programme, a minimum of 30% SMME component is 
being realised, with labour being sourced from the local municipal 
wards especially the beneficiary areas including unemployed graduates.  

4) Implementation of DoE’s 7-point transformation plan: To strengthen our 
commitment towards accelerated improvements in our apex priority, the 
OTP supported DoE in the implementation of the 7-point transformation 
plan. Support has been provided with the organogram review process, 
pre-consultation with DPSA conducted with feedback received; hands-on 
support with recruitment of the CFO; the validation of the HROPT claims 
report; and finalisation of the required frameworks on Diversity Management. 

5) Co-ordination and support on legislative review process: We 
reviewed legislation assigned to DRDAR, DoT, DRPW, DSRAC, and 
DEDEAT. Consequently, the Eastern Cape Parks and Tourism Agency 
Bill, 2017; Repeal of Transport Laws Bill, 2017; and Repeal of Animals 
Protection Bill, 2017 were drafted. COGTA was supported to prepare a 
Bill which repeals the legislation which was not dealt with in the Repeal 
of Local Government and Traditional Affairs Laws Act, 2016. The OTP 
also supported departments when presenting their Bills at the Ad Hoc 
Law Review Portfolio Committee. Furthermore, the OTP facilitated 
the process of the consideration of the General Law Amendment 
Bill, 2017. The White Paper on ECSECC was developed. This White 
Paper will ultimately inform the content of the founding legislation for 
ECSECC. The OTP continued to support the DEDEAT on the White 
Paper on Special Economic Zones Management. The initiation of a 

process to review the Eastern Cape Development Corporation Act, 
1997 was initiated. We further worked with DEDEAT to settle the Liquor 
Bill, 2017 and same was certified for introduction in the legislature. 
The Bill was subsequently tabled in the Legislature in October 2017.  

6) Litigation monitoring and coordination: Reporting on the litigation 
landscape and legal costs expenditure in the ECPA has been 
observed. The Litigation unit supported the OTP-HROPT verification 
process involving the HROPT disputes besetting the Departments 
of DRDAR, DoE and SOCDEV. Litigation support services were also 
rendered in the Departments of Health, SOCDEV and DEDEAT. The 
OTP was instrumental in facilitating the procurement of private legal 
representation in the DoH to attend to medical negligence litigation 
in the Province. The service level agreement became effective from 
October 2017. Litigation relevant to traditional leadership disputes is also 
effectively managed to safeguard the interests of the Premier’s office.   

7) By-Law Development, PAIA & PAJA Training was facilitated for Chris 
Hani District Municipality- The first municipality in the Province to be 
trained. Legal advisors in municipalities were invited to attend the Provincial 
Legal Advisors Forum, and an invitation to train officials/councilors on by-
laws and PAJA & PAIA was extended to all municipalities. The training 
on PAJA & PAIA was combined with the training on by-law development.   

8) To promote the socio-economic empowerment and social inclusion of 
Designated Groups a number of programmes were undertaken. These 
include:
a) Empowerment sessions of all Designated Groups including the LGBTI 

community as well as awareness sessions targeting community 
members on the rights of Designated Groups.  

b) In a bid to promote the protection of the Rights of the Child and 
to promote child participation, dedicated programmes were 
implemented. These include the training on Child Friendly 

8)
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Communities targeting government officials and communities, first 
Provincial commemoration of the Day of the African Child focusing on 
social inclusion of refugee children and then various empowerment 
programmes for the Province’s Child Ambassadors. The highlight of 
these was the election of one of these Ambassadors as the Head 
National Child Ambassador. 

c) Training on good governance which targeted Organizations of 
Older Persons and Organizations of Persons with Disabilities was 
conducted across the Province and this benefited more than 200 
delegates. 

d) Roadshows for Military Veterans across the province: the highlight 
of the roadshows was the provision of services to the Military 
Veterans right on spot: this will contribute to improvement of socio-
economic conditions of Military Veterans and their beneficiaries.    

9) Youth Development: In year under review, the department increased 
the drive on the Provincial Youth Development Strategy implementation. 
Key highlights include the following:
a) Premier launched the Youth-in-Agriculture Support Programme 

whose highlight was the handing over of agricultural implements 
and inputs to 12 Agriculture Co-operatives owned by young people 
from various district municipalities in the Province. The OTP, in 
collaboration with the ECRDA and the Tsolo Agriculture and Rural 
Development Institute continue to implement the Youth-in-Agriculture 
Development Programme. 

b) As at 31 March 2018, more than 40 Youth-in-Agriculture Project 
members had benefited from the TARDI training on crop production 
and livestock farming. As part of enhancing their entrepreneurial 
skills, a Business Management capacity building programme has 
been initiated in collaboration with the ECRDA to empower the 
Youth-in-Agriculture projects supported by the OTP. The Programme 
has started to have economic spin-offs as indicated in that more 
than 100 jobs have been created as part of the Programme thereby 
contributing to reduction of youth unemployment in the Province. 

c) The Youth-in-Maritime Development Programme - a collaborative 
initiative by the OTP and the South African Maritime Safety 
Authority, (SAMSA) seeking to equip the targeted unemployed and 
unskilled youth with life skills, work skills, swimming skills and basic 
competence as seafarers was piloted in Buffalo City and Port St. 
John’s Municipalities. The 97 successful candidates were provided 
with employment opportunities in various international cruise liners.  

d) Furthermore, the Department entered into a Service Level Agreement 
with the Department of Defence in a collaborative initiative aimed at 
benefiting unemployed young people with Grades 9-12 or NCV 1-4 
education. These will be equipped with basic skills on infrastructure 
maintenance in government institutions- prioritising schools. This is 
also another bid to reduce youth unemployment whilst increasing 
youth participation in various economic sectors. 
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Strategic Objectives Indicators 

Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 

implementation of government 
programmes to ensure access to quality 

services.

Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

2.1
Increased percentage of 
women; youth; people with 
disabilities participating in 
various sectors of economy

•	 Women

43% [Source: 
Statistics South 

Africa: Quarterly 
labour force 

survey (Q4 2016

50% 44% 6%

The Provincial and National Economic 
landscape has not been favourable for 
job creation and economic growth in 
the Province.

Historically, women have found 
themselves subject to various kinds of 
discriminatory behavior, attitudes
and policies, whether intended or 
unintended, which have hampered 
their full integration into the labour
Market. The unfavourable economic 
climate has contributed in perpetrating 
this. 

• Youth

45% [Source: 
Statistics South 

Africa: Quarterly 
labour force survey 

(Q4 2016)]

20% 46% 26%

The provincial youth empowerment 
programmes, implemented as part of 
the provincial youth development strat-
egy have resulted in small change in 
the youth participation in the economy.
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 

implementation of government 
programmes to ensure access to quality 

services.

Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

• People with disabilities

1,5% [Source: 
Statistics South 

Africa: Quarterly 
labour force survey 

(Q4 2016)]

10% 1.5% 8.5%

In addition to the unfavourable eco-
nomic climate- which also affected this 
sector- it is a documented challenge 
that many people who live with disa-
bilities do not disclose the disability 
condition which makes it harder to 
document and aggregate their em-
ployment progress and thus economic 
participation.

2.4 Improved access to quality 
services seres

Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	Governance structures involving 
citizens are in place through 
Operation Masiphathisane. 
However, the programme is being 
strengthened.

	Participation of citizens in 
monitoring for improved service 
delivery is taking place through 
various platforms including EXCO 
Outreaches other programmes 
organised by the legislative arm of 
government.

	Annual front line service delivery 
monitoring plan fully implemented. 
However, the scope of the 
programme is still limited and the 
OTP is exploring decentralising 
this programme.

	Departments and municipalities 
are providing resources for the 
implementation of service delivery 
improvement plans and the 
implementation are fully monitored.

	Profiling of facilities is unearthing 
best practice and sometimes areas 
of improvements.

	Capacitation of M&E / Research 
practitioners is being conducted on 
an on-going basis.

	Departments are being supported 
in the development of concept 
notes for evaluations and the 
OTP is actively involved in 
the facilitation of evaluations. 
Despite this, capacity as well 
as commitment to evaluation in 
departments is still limited.

	Departments have SDIPs and in 
some cases improvement plans. 
Nonetheless the implementation of 
these is yet to be fully effective.

	The Province is still limited in its 
ability to measure and monitor 
service delivery standard.

	Not all facilities offering 
government services are 
conducting regular citizen 
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 

implementation of government 
programmes to ensure access to quality 

services.

Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

	Departments are being supported 
in the development of concept 
notes for evaluations and the 
OTP is actively involved in 
the facilitation of evaluations. 
Despite this, capacity as well 
as commitment to evaluation in 
departments is still limited.

	Departments have SDIPs and in 
some cases improvement plans. 
Nonetheless the implementation of 
these is yet to be fully effective.

	The Province is still limited in its 
ability to measure and monitor 
service delivery standard.

	Not all facilities offering 
government services are 
conducting regular citizen 
satisfaction surveys.

	The Province has initiated the 
GIS mapping to identify citizen 
needs.  Nevertheless sustaining 
this process is a challenge due to 
capacity constraints. 

	Programme of Action and 
cluster plans are integrated in 
departmental APPs, although 
implementation thereof still require 
on-going attention.

	Spatial referencing of projects 
and integration with IDP is still at 
an inception phase. The OTP has 
started piloting an approach and 
methodology in Chris Hani District 
with the hope of replicating this to 
other districts
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 

implementation of government 
programmes to ensure access to quality 

services.

Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

	Spatial referencing of projects 
and integration with IDP is still at 
an inception phase. The OTP has 
started piloting an approach and 
methodology in Chris Hani District 
with the hope of replicating this to 
other districts

Strategic Objective 3: Enhance 
inclusive governance through meaningful 
implementation of citizen empowerment 

and stakeholder participatory programmes 
in the current term.

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

3.1
Improved image of the Province 
as measured by the public 
perception survey

44% 53% 24% 20%
	Public perception across the country have been declining due 

to poor service delivery and perceived corruption in the public 
service
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Strategic Objective 3: Enhance 
inclusive governance through meaningful 
implementation of citizen empowerment 

and stakeholder participatory programmes 
in the current term.

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

3.2 An in inclusive and unified 
Provincial brand Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level 

	The Provincial Communication Strategy is aligned to the 
P-MTSF and other prescripts. Local Government and 
departmental communication strategies are aligned to 
the P-MTSF and Back to Basics (B2B) Local government 
programme. 

	The marketing & branding strategy is still in a draft format.
	There is still a challenge in the coordination of provincial 

communications in the Province as it is only done on an ad-
hoc basis and is events based. However, at Local Government 
level coordination of communications is at an acceptable level. 
In the recent inaugural national SALGA Conference, Local 
Government Communications received commendations and 
was used as a benchmark by other Province.  

	Profiling of major government events is at an acceptable level 
as majority of government programmes were profiled through 
media, branding and social networks.

	Draft Communications policy and  protocol is in place but not 
yet approved

	Although an effort to increase the voice of government 
in the media has been pushed, however, government 
communications is still reactive due to leakages of government 
documents to the media and poor service delivery especially 
around departments of education, Health and non-functional 
municipalities;

	Public perception across the country has been declining due 
to poor service delivery and perceived corruption in the public 
service



48Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Strategic Objective 3: Enhance 
inclusive governance through meaningful 
implementation of citizen empowerment 

and stakeholder participatory programmes 
in the current term.

Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

3.3
Improved social inclusion of 
designated groups (children, 
women, people with disabilities, 
elderly, and youth)

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 None

	An integrated need based Programme 
of Action was developed for social 
cohesion.

	Public education on Constitutional 
rights and responsibilities were 
explained to citizens. 

	The status of designated groups 
monitored to inform issues of service 
delivery. 

	Intergenerational programmes were 
coordinated to foster understanding 
Awareness programmes were 
conducted with traditional leaders on 
protection of vulnerable groups.

	Capacity building on specific issues 
that relate to vulnerable groups was 
conducted.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance through 
enforcing the implementation of public sector 
reforms in the Province on an on-going basis.

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

4.1
Improved legal and constitutional 
compliance by 
the Provincial Government 

All 13 
Departments 

complied with 
S32 of PAIA. 

However, only 
5 departments 

(OTP, 
DSRAC, DOH, 

Department 
of Social 

Development 
[DSD], and 
DHS) have 

complied with 
S15 of PAIA

All 13 
Departments 

complying

13 Departments 
Complied 

with S14; 3 
Departments 

complied with 
S15; and none 
complied with 

S32

10 Departments 
did not comply 
with S15 while 

all 13 did not 
comply with 

S32

	Departments have not submitted their 
Section 15 notices to the Department 
of Justice. Section 32 reports are due 
by 30 April 2018. Departments have 
been requested to submit their section 
15 notices to the Minister of Justice 
for publication. Their progress will be 
monitored in this regard. A letter reminding 
Departments about the submission of their 
section 32 reports to the Human Rights 
Commission will be issued to the Heads of 
Department. 

4.2
Progressive improvements on 
corporate management practices in 
OTP

Unqualified 
audit opinion 

with one matter 
of emphasis 

(for 2015/16)

Unqualified 
audit opinion 
with no matters 
of emphasis

Unqualified audit 
opinion None -

Average 
of 2,9 on 

departmental 
MPAT score

Average 
of 3.5 on 
departmental 
MPAT score

2.6 0.9

	Most key deliverables in HR including 
recruitment underperformed due to 
capacity challenges caused by the 
absence of senior leadership due to 
long illness and appointment of acting 
personnel.

	The GM HR returned back to work in 
March and there is confidence that there 
will be improvement in the unit going 
forward.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance through 
enforcing the implementation of public sector 
reforms in the Province on an on-going basis.

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

4.3
Progressive improvements in the 
functionality of the Departments of 
Education

The DoE 
intervention 

was 
coordinated. 

Further 
details are 

provided in the 
performance 

highlights.

Co-ordination 
of the 
implementation 
of the  DoE 
intervention 
and 
strengthening 
HRM

The DoE 
intervention was 

coordinated
None -

4.4 Progressive improvements in the 
functionality of identified departments

Support was 
provided to 
the DoH to 
strengthen 

front-line 
services. 

Further 
details are 

provided in the 
performance 

highlights.

Hands-on 
technical 
support 
provided to  
DRPW, DoT 
improve their 
functionality 
and HRM 
processes

Hands-on 
technical support 
was provided to  
DRPW and DoT 

as outlined in 
the performance 

highlights

None -
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance through 
enforcing the implementation of public sector 
reforms in the Province on an on-going basis.

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

4.5 Coordinated and packaged support 
interventions in municipalities

Packages 
Support was 

provided to 
the identified 

municipalities. 
Further 

details are 
provided in the 

performance 
highlights.

Packaged 
Support to 
identified 
municipalities 

Support 
Packages were 

provided to 
the 4 identified 
municipalities

None -

4.6 Strengthening institutional capacity to 
deliver on infrastructure

The 
infrastructure 

delivery 
system was 

implemented. 
Further 

details are 
provided in the 

performance 
highlights.

Implementation 
of Provincial 
Infrastructure 
Institutional 
Management 
Framework

The 
implementation 
of Provincial 
Infrastructure 
Institutional 
Management 
Framework was 
coordinated

None -
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Strategic Objective 5: Transform the 
OTP over the medium term to a high 
performance organisation by creating an 
enabling environment, building internal 
capability and empowering employees

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviations

5.1
Improved organisational 
performance as measured by the 
shift to the right of the distribution 
curve 

0% 5% improvement 0% 100%-

On further analysis, the Department realized 
that statistical data on individual performance 
already demonstrated that the Department 
was on the right of the distribution curve whilst 
actual organizational APP performance was 
not as such. The Department resolved to 
spend the period trying to educate the entire 
organization on this anomaly i.e. lack of 
alignment between individual performance to 
organizational performance.

5.2
Improved commitment to the 
OTP value system as measured 
by the climate survey index

Unable to report 
as the climate 

survey was not 
conducted.

10% 
improvement

Unable to report 
as the climate 

survey was not 
conducted

-

Due to the implementation of the new 
organisational structure, the department was 
going through a process of change as such a 
climate survey would have yielded a negative 
result. Inputs from the change management 
sessions were instead utilised as a dipstick to 
assess organisational climate

5.3
An appropriate service delivery 
model and organisational 
structure in place and 
implemented 

The service 
delivery model 

is finalised, 
and the 

organisational 
structure is in its 

final stages of 
approval

Organisational 
structure 

approved  

Organisational 
structure 

approved 
and is being 

implemented 

None -
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Performance Indicators

Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.1 Quarterly facilitation of Provincial 
coordinating platforms

4 [Provincial Management; 
DoE Intervention 

Steering Committee; 
Interdepartmental 

Infrastructure Committee 
Team; Electrification 

Coordinating Team; and 
the Shared Services and 

Efficiency Task Team were 
coordinated]

4
4 [11 EXCOs and 9 
Provincial Management 
meetings were 
coordinated]

None -

1.2 Quarterly co-ordination of 
the implementation of the 
DoE Intervention / 7- point 
transformation plan 

4 4
4 [Details of this 
achievement are 
outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -

1.3 Number of Departments provided 
with hands-on technical support 
to improve their functionality and 
HRM processes  [DRPW and DoT]

New indicator 2
2 [Details of this 
achievement are 
outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -

1.4 Number of municipalities 
supported to improve their 
functionality and viability with 
a focus on amalgamated 
municipalities and those in distress  

New indicator 4
4 [Walter Sisulu; 
Dr Beyers Naude; 
Raymond Mhlaba; and 
Enoch Mgijima]

None -

1.5 Quarterly co-ordination of the 
implementation of the Provincial 
Infrastructure Institutional 
Management Framework

4 [The implementation of 
the Infrastructure Delivery 
Management System was 

coordinated]
4

4 [the implementation 
of the Provincial 
Infrastructure 
Institutional 
Management Framework 
was coordinated]

None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.6 Number of interventions 
implemented to accelerate service 
delivery /  provision of basic 
infrastructure in the Province 

	Small Town Revitalisation 
Programme

	Improving water and sanitation in 
prioritised areas 

	Electrification of hotspots and 
provision of electrification bulk 
infrastructure 

	Rapid delivery of emergency 
classrooms 

4 4 4 [Details of this 
achievement are 
outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.7 Number of provincial government 
sites enabled with broadband 
connectivity

New indicator 390
3 sites were enabled 

with broadband                                                                                                        
connectivity by the OTP 

387

The original plan was to 
roll-out the broadband 
project through SITA. 
However, SITA delayed 
completing the Bhisho 
Campus Network revamp. 
Subsequently, they also 
tabled an expensive 
plan which the Province 
rejected in favour of a 
more affordable Western 
Cape Model. All the 
above resulted in delayed 
implementation of this 
project. 
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.8 Percentage of EXCO decisions 
implemented 

100%  [7 out of 19] of 
resolutions have been 
implemented while the 
remaining were still in 

progress]

100% 90% [29 out of 32 
resolutions] were 
implemented

10% [3 out of 32 
resolutions] were 
not implemented

The unachieved are the 
following: Submission 
of a plan to support 
amalgamated municipalities 
by COGTA – still in 
consultation with various 
stakeholders: improving 
management of PILIR 
cases by DOE and DHA is 
slow due to many cases to 
attend to; a pending update 
from COGTA on extension 
of the term of Traditional 
leaders as engagements 
with National COGTA are 
incomplete; HROPT for 
Education and DRDAR is 
incomplete. 
These matters remain in 
the dashboard tracker 
for EXCO until they are 
finalized.

	presented to 
all clusters 
and provincial 
management 
meetings so that 
the HODs are 
also reminded 
about what is still 
outstanding

1.9 Number of statements issued 
on behalf of Provincial Executive 
Council to promote Government 
Programme of Action

10 statements were 
issued 12 8 4

	EXCO sat 11 times 
in the financial 
year under review. 
For the other 3 
meeting there 
were no issues 
of public interest 
that required to be 
published through 
the media.

1.10 Number of government 
publications produced 
[Masincokole]

10 Masincokole 
publications produced 12 6 6

Limited Resources: Only 
one official and the General 
Manager are responsible 
for the entire production 
process of 16 pages of 
Masincokole. Corrective 
measure applied was 
to produce 3x Bumper 
Editions which were 20 
pages each instead of 
normal 16 pages.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

In this way the Cabinet 
members involved are 
continuously reminded of what 
is outstanding. 

The EXCO Resolutions 
dashboard is presented to 
all clusters and provincial 
management meetings so that 
the HODs are also reminded 
about what is still outstanding

1.9 Number of statements issued 
on behalf of Provincial Executive 
Council to promote Government 
Programme of Action

10 statements were 
issued 12 8 4

EXCO sat 11 times in the 
financial year under review. 
For the other 3 meeting there 
were no issues of public 
interest that required to be 
published through the media.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.10 Number of government 
publications produced 
[Masincokole]

10 Masincokole 
publications 

produced 
12 6 6

Limited Resources: Only 
one official and the General 
Manager are responsible for 
the entire production process 
of 16 pages of Masincokole. 
Corrective measure applied 
was to produce 3x Bumper 
Editions which were 20 pages 
each instead of normal 16 
pages.

1.11 Number of reports on media 
monitoring to identify opportunities 
and reputational risk  opportunities 
and recommend ways to mitigate 
these  

12 12 12 None -

1.12 Number of Provincial 
environmental scans conducted to 
identify risks and recommend ways 
to mitigate these

4 4 4 None -

1.13 Quarterly co-ordination of the 
Provincial communication system 
to ensure coherent government 
messaging [inter-governmental 
communicators fora, HoCs, Core 
Team]

4 4
4 [The co-ordination of 
OR Tambo Centenary 

celebrations  was 
undertaken]

None -

1.14 Quarterly monitoring and 
support of the local government 
communication system to ensure 
coherent government messaging

4 4 4 None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.15 Number of Masiphathisane war 
rooms branded 20 200 99 101

Poor project planning 
resulted in delays in the 
commencement of the project 
and the target could not be 
met by the end of the financial 
year. The Department will 
strengthen project planning 
particularly in areas that 
involve collaborations from 
various units

1.16 Quarterly facilitation of legislative 
review process 4 4

4 [Details of this 
achievement are 

outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -

1.17 Quarterly litigation monitoring and 
co-ordination 4 4

4 [Details of this 
achievement are 

outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.18 Number of Departments 
complying with Sections 14, 15 & 
32 of	PAIA

6 13

13 Departments 
complied with S14; 3 

Departments complied 
with S15; and none 
complied with S32

10 Departments 
did not comply with 
S15 while all 13 did 

comply with S32

Departments have not 
submitted their section 15 
notices to the Department of 
Justice.
Section 32 reports are due by 
30 April 2018, Departments 
have been requested to 
submit their section 15 notices 
to the Minister of Justice for 
publication. Their progress will 
be monitored in this regard. A 
letter reminding departments 
about the submission of their 
section 32 reports to the 
Human Rights Commission 
will be issued to the Heads of 
Department.

1.19 Number of municipalities 
trained on bylaw development to 
strengthen Local Government legal 
capacity

0 16
1 [Chris Hani District 

Municipality was trained 
on By law development, 

PAJA and PAIA]
15 municipalities

No presentation made to PCF 
for agreements was made as 
the agenda was packed.
Continued interaction with 
Chris Hani District Municipality 
which expressed an interest to 
have the training at the local 
municipalities which fall within 
its jurisdiction.      
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.20 Unqualified audit opinion on 
predetermined objectives 

Unqualified audit 
opinion

Unqualified audit 
opinion Unqualified audit opinion

1.21 Average Departmental MPAT 
score 3.2 3.4 2.6 0.8

Most key deliverables in 
HR including recruitment 
underperformed due to 
capacity challenges caused 
by the absence of senior 
leadership due to long illness 
and appointment of acting 
personnel.

The GM HR returned back to 
work in March and there is 
confidence that there will be 
improvement in the unit going 
forward.

1.22 Annual review of the OTP 
Governance Framework 1 1

1 [the OTP governance 
framework was reviewed 
and implemented]

None -

1.23 Quarterly monitoring of the 
implementation of the human 
resource plan

4 4
4 [the implementation of 
the human resource plan 
was monitored]

None -

1.24 Percentage of employees in 
complying with the performance 
management system (performance 
contracting, reviews and 
assessments)

99% of employees 
contracted while 

an average of 
57% employees 
conducted their 
reviews on time

100%

Employee Contracting 
82%

Employee Quarterly and 
Half Year Reviews 40%

18% of staff did not 
contract and 60% of 

staff did not complete 
their performance 

reviews on time

As a result of the 
organisational re-alignment 
some employees remained 
unsure of their reporting 
lines and although clarified, 
compliance to PMDS was 
not adhered to. Final Non- 
compliance letters for all non-
compliant employees are to be 
issued at end of April 2018.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.25 Unqualified audit opinion Unqualified audit 
opinion

Unqualified audit 
opinion Unqualified audit opinion None -

1.26 Percentage of approved budget 
spent

96% [R506 303 
million out of R527 
619 million] 

100% 88.7% [R763 246 out of 
R860 994]

11.3 [R97 698 out of 
R860 994]

Please refer to details on 
Programme expenditure in the 
Accounting officers Overview

1.27 Percentage of findings in the 
audit improvement plan being 
implemented

82% of findings were 
implemented 100% 46% [41 out of 90] of 

findings were completed. 
51% [46out of 90] were 
in progress and 3% 
[3 out of 90] were not 
implemented.

3% findings were not 
implemented

The Culture change 
programme has not yet been 
implemented due to HR 
capacity challenges. The 
Internal Control Unit capacity 
challenges were highlighted 
and needed attention.
High risk areas on the partially 
implemented are SCM; Asset 
management procedures as 
well ICT governance. 
With the new structure 
implementation, new 
personnel with appropriate 
skills have been placed.
A skills audit has revealed 
that we had incorrectly 
placed personnel and this is 
being addressed through the 
implementation of the new 
structure.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.28 Percentage of audits in the 
annual audit plan completed

83% [19 out of 
23] of audits were 

completed
100% 81%  [21 out of 26 audits 

were completed]
19% [5 out of 26] 
audits were not 
implemented 

The internal audit plan was 
based on an assumption of a 
fully resourced organogram at 
the time.

The actual capacity was less 
than anticipated with a number 
of vacancies throughout 
different stages of the financial 
year.

In the 2018/2019 Financial 
Year the plan will be based 
on available capacity instead 
of the ideal capacity as per 
organogram. 

1.29 Percentage of SMS and SCM 
officials disclosing their financial 
interests in accordance with 
the SMS handbook and SCM 
regulations

100% [All SMS 
and SCM officials 

disclosed their 
financial interest in 

accordance with the 
SMS handbook and 

SCM regulations]

100%
99.5% [201 out of 202 
designated registered 
officials have disclosed 
on e-Disclosure]

0.5% [1 out of 202 
officials has not 
disclosed]

One official in Supply Chain 
Management was on long sick 
leave

1.30 Percentage of the risk action plan 
implemented

93% of risk actions 
were implemented 100% 79% [50 of 63] were 

implemented
21% [13 of 63] were 
not achieved

All 13 actions were discussed 
with the 2018/19 review of 
Risk Registers to ensure 
appropriate resolution. Thus, 
inclusion of revised action in 
the current register.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.31 Number of empowerment 
sessions facilitated for designated 
groups (children, youth, women, 
people with disabilities, older 
persons and LGBTI). 

20 52
54 empowerment 
sessions were facilitated 
for designated groups

2

The fourth quarter marked 
the roll-out of the Protocol 
Agreement between the OTP 
and the Department of Military 
Veterans on the benefits and 
empowerment of Military 
Veterans in the Province.

As a result roadshows 
were held targeting all 
municipalities.  

1.32 Number of State Institutions 
capacitated to improve socio-
economic inclusion of Designated 
Groups.

22 5

6 institutions were 
capacitated to improve 
socio-economic 
inclusion of designated 
groups

1 institution

The National Department 
of Social Development 
conducted training on the 
Work Streams in preparation 
for the mandatory annual 
report on the implementation 
of the White Paper on the 
Rights of Persons with 
Disabilities. 

1.33 Quarterly monitoring of 
mainstreaming and socio-economic 
inclusion of designated groups in 
departments.

4 4

4 [the mainstreaming 
and socio-economic 
inclusion of designated 
groups in departments 
was monitored]

None -

1.34 Average e-mail availability New indicator 90% 90% None -

1.35 Number of ICT security incidents New indicator Less than 5 per year None None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target Comment on Deviation

1.36 Percentage of satisfied ICT users New indicator 50% Unknown Unknown

No surveys were done this 
year as the service desk is 
being manually run using 
a spreadsheet until the 
Service Manager system 
is implemented. Purchase 
memory, restore Service 
Manager, and integrate a survey 
system that automatically surveys 
each user after an incident.

1.37 Number of ICT projects 
completed on time on scope and 
budget

New indicator 2

3 [FM Audit for printer 
auditing and Operations 

Management Suit and 
Tape Reset Status 

were completed on time 
scope and budget] 

1 project

More projects were achieved 
because the department has 
beefed up capacity in the ICT 
unit

Changes to Planned targets
	None

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance
	These are outlined in the ‘comment on deviation’ column 
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Linking Performance with Budget

2017/2018 2016/2017

Sub-Programme Name Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sub-Programme 1.1: Premier’s Office 17 574 16 724 850 17 661 16 978 683

Sub-Programme 1.2: Office of the Director General 372 291 321 207 51 084 58 518 58 031 487

Sub-Programme 1.3: Office of the Chief Operations Office 38 917 38 230 687 42 714 42 712 2

Sub-Programme 1.4: Corporate Services 47 843 40 954 6 889 40 456 39 438 1 018

Sub-Programme 1.5: Financial Management 50 566 48 086 2 480 50 038 49 903 135

Sub-Programme 1.6: Internal Audit 7 038 4 597 2 441 5 624 5 480 144

Sub-Programme 1.7: Enterprise-wide Risk Management 3 741 3 649 92 3 442 3 359 83

Sub-Programme 1.8: Special Programmes Coordinating Unit 38 891 24 669 14 222 10 401 10 354 47

Sub-Programme 1.9: Departmental legal services 1 255 - 1 255 95 15 80

Sub-Programme 1.10: Departmental ICT 18 574 14 542 4 032 20 112 19 479 633

TOTAL 596 690 512 687 83 856 249 061 245 749 3 312
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Under expenditure of R84.0 million is mainly due to the following reasons: 

	Under expenditure of R48.7 million is due to delays in the procurement 
of the provincial broadband rollout project. The programme was 
implemented in October 2017.

	Compensation of employees under expenditure of R9.8 million is 
mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled as per the Annual 
Recruitment Plan. The department is making concerted efforts to fill all 
vacancies pending the finalisation of repositioning the organisational 
structure, and therefore critical posts are given priority.

	Under expenditure of R10.3 million in Special Programmes Unit is 
due to the following:

o Time taken in the registering of the second lot intake in the 
Maritime (SAMSA) project.

o Youth Development Project in maintenance and infrastructure 
project partnered with the Department of Defence experienced 
delays due to the fingerprints process that took longer 
than expected (400 youth throughout the Province) were 
registered.

o Delays were experienced in the procurement process for the 
Youth in Agriculture Project.

Capital under expenditure of R4.8 million is mainly due to reprioritization 
of the budget for the servers, to refurbishing of the server room for the 
existing facilities.

B4.2 Programme 2: Planning, Policy Co-ordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation

Programme Purpose
To set the Provincial Administration’s Programme of Action, and lead 
evidence-based decision-making for integrated policy formulation, planning, 
monitoring, reporting, evaluation and review of government programmes, 
including intergovernmental, stakeholder and international relations 
management. The programme is structured as follows: 
	Sub-Programme 2.1: Programme Management for Planning, Policy 

Co-ordination, Monitoring and Evaluation
	Sub-Programme 2.2: Policy Planning and Research Coordination
	Sub-Programme 2.3: Intergovernmental, Stakeholder and 

International Relations
	Sub-Programme 2.4: Service Delivery Intervention and Coordination 

Support
	Sub-Programme 2.5: Performance Monitoring and Evaluation
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Objectives Applicable to this Programme 

	Strategic Objective 1: Lead the provincial development agenda for a shared vision institutionalising evidence-based decision making and integrated planning over the 
medium term.

	Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality services.

	Strategic Objective 3: Enhance inclusive governance through meaningful implementation of citizen empowerment and stakeholder participatory programmes in the 
current term.

	Strategic Objective 5: Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building internal capability 
and empowering employees.
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Performance Highlights 

1) Departmental Annual Performance Plan Assessments – There is a 
marked improvement in the quality of APPs of departments and this was 
also confirmed by the Department of Planning Monitoring and Evaluation. 
The alignment of APPs to the PoA as well as technical compliance 
of APPs to the planning frameworks has improved. This was, in part, 
due to the support provided by the OTP to the departments during the 
engagement sessions on the findings and recommendations of the APP 
reviews.

2) Provincial Spatial Development Framework (PSDF) development - 
Towards ensuring that resources are invested optimally and areas with 
development potential are promoted in a sustainable manner through 
the PSDF. The Provincial Spatial Development Framework has been 
developed and is being processed for approval by EXCO. The framework 
has already served at Governance and Administration Cluster. 

3) Research coordination – Towards inculcating a culture of evidence 
based decision making the OTP has initiated a process of alignment 
of departmental research initiatives with Provincial Priorities. The 
alignment of research plans for the Departments of Social Development, 
Safety and Liaison, Education as well as the Department of Health were 
completed. Furthermore the research unit has conducted a desktop 
survey on the capacity of departments to fulfil the research agenda of 
the Province which found that departments are not fully capacitated to 
conduct research. As part of addressing this challenge, amongst others, 
the Office of the Premier finalised Memoranda of Agreement between 
Provincial Government and the four universities in the Province, viz: 
Rhodes University, University of Fort Hare, Walter Sisulu University 
and Nelson Mandela University. One of the MOAs was signed by both 
parties while feedback is awaited from the others. The benefit from these 
agreements is expected from the 2018/19 Financial Year. 

4) National engagements - As a way of sharing best practices and the latest 
policy developments in planning as well as monitoring and evaluation 
in the country, OTP participated in the national engagement session of 
the OTPs organised by DPME. Amongst the matters for discussion was 
the draft Bill on Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation as well as the 
Mandate Paper for 2018/19 and beyond. The Bill seeks to regulate the 
planning as well as the monitoring and evaluation environment while the 
Mandate Paper is one of the key planning and budgeting instruments to 
support departments to align their programming and budget proposals 
to NDP and MTSF. The draft bill seeks to strengthen the Planning 
environment. 

5) Four Premier’s Coordinating Forums were successfully coordinated 
with the following outcomes:
a) Strategic alignment of agenda items with MUNMEC and other IGR 

structures.
b) PCF deliberations enabled the resolution of more service delivery 

challenges inclusive of drought, electrification problems, state 
of provincial roads and the rescue of troubles amalgamated 
municipalities.

c) Improved attendance by permanent members of the forum.

6) Eight EXCO Outreach Programmes were organized during the period 
characterized as follows: 
a) Organized the visit to the Kings Great Place where the Political 

Leadership engaged with Traditional Leaders on issues of gender 
based violence. The purpose of the visit was to mobilize traditional 
leadership and general stakeholders on the fight against gender 
based violence and wide spread spat of Muti killings in the affected 
municipalities around Amathole District.  The intended outcomes for 
this visit was to create awareness of the scourge of gender based 
violence and witchcraft killings and the related legal implications. 
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Also to manage perceptions resulting from lack of communication 
of government programmes by our communities. Some of the 
resolutions taken were:
i) That Government must embark on a massive awareness 

campaign on anger management and gender violence which is 
sometimes a two way occurrence as most incidents result from 
cultural orientation that put men above women. 

ii) That the Kings do not get the required recognition from 
Government and yet they are expected to interact with Ward 
Councilors on issues of national importance only. 

iii) That the Budget allocations for the Kings are not the same and 
there’s no clear explanation of the criteria used to determine 
allocations.

b) Coordinated visits to 40 schools during the Back-to-School Campaign 
targeting best performing schools for motivation and poor performing 
school for intervention. The purpose of the visits was to monitor 
progress from previous engagements to be able to hold accountable 
leaders of none performing sector departments and state entities 
on agreed interventions. The intended outcome of the visit was to 
assess and monitor the state of school readiness at the beginning 
of the first term and soliciting feedback on the previously planned 
interventions to poor performing schools which will be integrated 
from various sector departments and stakeholders

c) Coordinated the Pre and Post SOPA Engagement Sessions resulting 
to a total of 7500 community members reached. Their purpose was 
to solicit inputs towards the State of the Province Address (SOPA) in 
ensuring that it is inclusive and aligned to communities and stakeholder 
inputs. Post SOPA sessions were for feedback to stakeholders and 
also creating a platform to debate the issues contained in the SOPA.

d) During each EXCO outreach engagement sector departments, state 
entities and municipalities were represented to note and consider 
issues raised by communities and commitments made by the Political 
Leadership. OTP Service Delivery Facilitation and Monitoring 
compiled a report with action issues and to ensure proper follow up, 
escalation and feedback in the next session. 

7) Consolidated the rollout of Operation Masiphathisane throughout the 
six district municipalities by supporting the establishment of further 278 
ward war rooms. The OTP was directly involved in their establishment of 
76 ward war rooms while 202 were established by Local Municipalities 
after training of Councilors and CDW. Eleven (11) Local War Rooms have 
been established mainly in OR Tambo District Municipality (6) & Sarah 
Baartman District Municipality (5). Training was conducted throughout 
the Province to ward councilors, war room stakeholders and community 
development workers in order to accelerate the rollout of Ward War 
Room in municipalities. Roles and responsibilities of Chairperson (Ward 
Councilor), Secretariat (CDWs) and Ward Committees as a critical 
stakeholder were clarified during these trainings. As a result of the 
trainings conducted more Ward War Rooms were established through this 
intervention and also improved functionality of some Ward War Rooms. 
To ensure institutionalization of the Programme the OTP supported the 
establishment and training of 73 District and Local Implementation Task 
Team members in OR Tambo District Municipality (DITT & LITT). Their 
roles and responsibilities entail the following, inter alia: review local 
level reports to monitor progress made on interventions; produce an 
aggregated District/Local War Room report; escalate issues that need 
further interventions (District, Provincial and National); and provide 
feedback at War Room. 

8) During the period under review the Engagement Sessions that 
were organized provided a platform for communities and organized civil 
society to engage government on their own development agendas. The 
sessions organized were as follows: 
a) National Public Participation Sessions:  The Province coordinated 

participation of communities and Civil Society Stakeholders during 
the visits of the Deputy President on Public Employment Programme 
in Whittlesea on 09 June 2017 and Presidential Siyahlola in Lusikisiki 
on 24 June 2017. In Lusikisiki, the key issue raised was amavondo 
(carnibalism) that at the time were reported as uncontrollable. In 
Whittlesea prevalent issues were mainly on schools that required 
support to improve the pass rate and a need to establish a protection 
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centre for abused children. The OTP Service Delivery Facilitation and 
Monitoring unit responsible for a summative report and monitoring 
the implementation of government commitments made during the 
session.

b) Community Engagements: A consultative session was facilitated on 
13 June 2017 with stakeholders in Port St Johns to discuss possible 
solutions on incidents of violence and abuse against women and 
children in the communities. The OTP Service Delivery Facilitation 
and Monitoring unit produced a summative report and are monitoring 
the implementation of government commitments made during the 
session. In the community engagement session held in Maqanyeni 
Administrative Area and in Moses Mabhida in Kirkwood, human 
settlement matters were the most prevalent. These included housing, 
electrification, roads, water, scholar transport, land ownership and 
farming land. The OTP Service Delivery Facilitation and Monitoring 
compiled a summative report and are monitoring the implementation 
of government commitments made during the session.

c) Business Sector: In the Business Sector Engagement Session held 
in Ndlambe Local Municipality and in OR Tambo District Municipality, 
it was agreed that the Province should establish a multi-disciplinary 
council that will further discuss and develop an approach of resolving 
the issues related to the business sector development agenda. 

d) Mine Workers: The four sessions that were held with the Mine 
Worker stakeholders achieved the following: 
i) Establishment of an Inter-Sectoral public private partnership 

committee which comprised of government and mining private 
sector with clear terms of reference;

ii) In an effort to decentralise the programme to local level, Walter 
Sisulu and King Sabatha Dalindyebo Makana Local Municipalities 
have taken a full involvement position in trying to improve 
accessibility by the beneficiaries;

iii) In the Benefit Medical Examination process; 4921 beneficiaries 
were tracked and traced against reference database; 205 have 
undergone medical examinations at Mqanduli in OR Tambo DM 
and 223 compensable packs were collected

e) Moral Regeneration Movement (MRM): Support was provided to 
the Moral Regeneration Movement Provincial Executive Committee 
in the coordination and execution of the fight against moral decay in 
the following areas: Whittlesea; Masele in Ndlambe LM, and Chris 
Hani DM strategic MRM session which developed the Programme 
of Action. In addition, support was provided to the MRM Executive 
Committee in the revitalisation of MRM structures in six Districts 
and two Metropolitan Municipalities. These are the structures that 
were established and regressed due to change of leadership at local 
government level. 

9) OR Tambo Centenary: The year 2017 was declared the year of OR 
Tambo in celebrating his Centenary. The Eastern Cape Provincial 
Government was given the honour to host the Centenary Celebrations 
of OR Tambo in his birth place in Mbizana in the jurisdiction of Alfred 
Nzo District Municipality. The Celebrations were held on the 27th October 
2017. However, during the year there were various build up activities 
which were coordinated through the development of the integrated plan. 
The Provincial IMC resolved to target 20 000 community members. This 
event resulted in the enhancement of the economy of Alfred Nzo District 
DM and Mbizana Local Municipality as the suppliers were sourced 
from the District and about ninety percent (90%) from Mbizana Local 
Municipality. It further provided an opportunity for government to redress 
the service delivery backlog which resulted in the following infrastructure 
projects being implemented as  “Legacy Projects”:
a) Surfacing of 13km road to Heritage Site
b) Road construction from Mzamba to Mbizana town
c) Re-gravelling of the 5km road to Qobo clinic. 
d) Electrification of 1000 households’ connections around Mbizana 
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Local Municipality.
e) The construction of Ablution Facilities for the OR Tambo Technical 

High School and Nkantolo J.S.S.
f) The construction of the Multi –Purpose Centre.  
g) The construction of 1000 houses i.e. 500 Nkantolo and 500 Silangwe 

villages.

Some of the service delivery interventions that benefitted the communities 
of Mbizana Local Municipality were:
h) During the preparations of OR Tambo Centenary event, the schools 

in the area complained about the learners who are travelling 8 to 10 
kms to school every day and they further indicated that the current 
scholar transport provided by the department of transport only benefits 
30 learners out of the 200 learners that they have applied for. Road 
Accident Fund in partnership with National Department of Transport 
donated 75 bicycles as part of the OR Tambo legacy projects. The 
bicycles were allocated for grade 11 learners in February 2018 and 
assisted them to travel to school.

i) Minister of Tele Communications donated 23 laptops to Vukuzenzele 
special school as part of OR Tambo legacy project.

j) The Department of Safety and Liaison with SAPS delivered 7 police 
vehicles and a mobile police station. The 7 police vehicles have 
been allocated to different villages in Mbizana and this support has 
improved the response rate and visibility of police.

10) Farming Sector: In the Post - SOPA Engagement Sessions held in 
March 2018 in Chris Hani DM with the farming sector of the district and 
Sarah Baartman with Kirkwood farmers, issues that were flagged were 
mainly a need for government to create an enabling environment for 
both emerging and commercial farmers. Emerging Farmers requested 
government to enable them to grow and move into commercial farming 
whilst commercial farmers were more concerned with an environment 
that will assist maintenance of good quality produce for their market 

including exporting. Issues at a glance included: 
a) A need for equal treatment for both black and white Farmers; 
b) Provision of farming tools to emerging Farmers;  Water availability 

and accessibility for irrigation; 
c) A plan to deal with storm water problems, land ownership/title deeds 

for farming/grazing and shortage of land; 
d) Empowerment through a provision of an agricultural college, 

availability of funding of projects and capacitation of emerging 
farmers by privileged farmers; 

e) Road construction and maintenance for transportation of good quality 
produce for a competitive market; 

f) Lack of public participation in Municipal programmes to allow inputs 
by the Sector; Involvement of local Service Providers in projects to 
boost local economic development - this relates to issues of local 
beneficiation; 

g) Support in availing markets for the produce of the emerging Farmers 
and Government’s monitoring of funding that has been provided to 
ensure it is used for its intended purpose.

11) Schools Debate: The 2018 schools debate session on the State of the 
Province Address (SOPA) provided a platform and an opportunity for 
learners to engage government on prioritized development areas and five 
topical issues that were sponsored by Old Mutual and Mercedes Benz 
were Agriculture, Oceans Economy, Information and Communication 
Technology, Social Cohesion and Renewable Energy. 

12) The following initiatives were undertaken with a view to advancement 
of provincial priorities in the international context:
a) Support was provided for the delegation led by the MEC for Sports, 

Recreation, Arts and Culture, to Sydney in Australia in June 2017 
to conduct the repatriation of the spirit of the late Khoikhoi Chief, 
Mr David Stuurman. Discussions were further arranged for the 
MEC to meet the Lloyd McDermott Foundation cooperation on the 
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model used to promote participation in rugby amongst the aboriginal 
communities in Australia for possible implementation in the Eastern 
Cape. The spirit of the Chief Stuurman was returned and his 
descendants conducted rituals and funeral service to bring closure 
to the long standing sadness of not knowing his burial site. 

b) To promote cooperation with the European Union Delegation to 
South Africa, discussions were held in June 2017 to access EU 
technical support in the areas of capacity building for SMMEs, 
vocational training and support for TVET colleges, subsequent to 
previous discussions between the Premier and the Ambassador of 
the European Union. The Eastern Cape receives regular update 
on foreign scholarships and this is relayed to interested students. 
The outcome is now greater awareness and uptake of scholarship 
opportunities by students from Eastern Cape. 

c) A meeting was held with the Representative of German Province of 
Lower Saxony to Eastern Cape, in July 2017, to conduct the mid-
year assessment of implementation of the Eastern Cape-Lower 
Saxony Joint Declaration, review progress and unlock opportunities 
for bilateral cooperation in new areas. Bilateral exchanges between 
the Eastern Cape and Lower Saxony to combat TB and AIDS were 
identified as the new area of cooperation that will be pursued.

d) Discussions were held between the Premier and the Ambassador of 
China to South Africa, in September 2017, to advance the renewal 
of the relations with Zhejiang Province and establish relations with 
Guangdong Province in the areas of trade, tourism, capacity building 
on science and technology to support development priorities of the 
Eastern Cape. The Province agreed to renew relations with Zhejiang 
Province and further established relations with Guangdong Province. 
The Chinese Ambassador agreed to promote the Eastern Cape to 
Chinese Businesses as an investment destination. 

13) While the Province seeks to broaden the base of international 
relations, significant progress is being made in the implementation 
of the agreements that are already in place. To this effect the following 
is worth noting: 

a) Eastern Cape – Lower Saxony MOU Cooperation on Agriculture: 
the Department of Rural Development and Agrarian Reform 
(DRDAR) and the Gottingen University which is situated in Lower 
Saxony have already forged ahead to implement a joint project which 
provides for the introduction of simplified cost effective technologies 
for aquaponics to make them accessible to small scale and emerging 
farmers and the promotion of participation of households in fresh fish 
and salt fish projects to improve food security. 

b) Renewable Energy: DEDEAT is collaborating with Lower Saxony 
to build a Mini-grid to supply electricity from renewable energy in the 
Raymond Mhlaba Municipality. Plans are afoot for Premier Phumulo 
Masualle and Prime Minister Stephan Weil to unveil the mini-grid 
project during the visit of the Prime Minister to the Eastern Cape, 
leading a 36- person strong delegation consisting of Members of 
Parliament from the German Province of Lower Saxony, academics, 
business entrepreneurs and the media. 

c) Cooperation on Agriculture: Equally, DRDAR signed the twinning 
arrangements with the following institutions in Lower Saxony: 
i) Veterinary University of Hanover (TiHo) - This MoU focuses 

on veterinary undergraduate and postgraduate training and 
exchange programmes as well as supporting the creation of a 
second Veterinary Faculty in the Eastern Cape; 

ii) LAVES (Lower Saxony State Office for Consumer Protection and 
Food Safety) - This MoU focuses on supporting an Early Warning 
and Rapid Response Centre Development, and Laboratory 
and Veterinary Public Health Services through cooperation, 
collaboration and skills exchange; 

iii) DEULA Institute - This MoU focusses on human capacity 
development and general agricultural skill development and 
exchange. To this end, fourteen extension service officials were 
trained at DEULA in production practices related to agricultural 
commodities produced in the Eastern Cape Province in 2018. 
These officials gained new technical skills and knowledge and 
in their back to office report they have suggested that in the next 
financial year a budget must be set aside for them to implement 
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new technologies they have learnt, especially on compost 
development; and

iv) Goettingen University - This MoU was signed in February 2018 
and focusses on aquaculture, research and human capital 
development. 

d) Bilateral Cooperation on Sport: Following the signing of the Joint 
Declaration on matters relating to sport, the Eastern Cape and Lower 
Saxony undertook exchange programmes which yielded impressive 
results in the handball, women football, , boxing, canoeing and 
volunteer programme. 
i) Handball: To strengthen skills on handball and facilitating 

initiation of leagues at club level, two coaches from Eastern 
Cape attended an intensive training on handball techniques in 
Germany. Of the two coaches, coach Mboma is the current U/20 
National Coach. Teams which have participated in this exchange 
programme have gained expertise which saw them participating 
in national games and some winning gold medals. 

ii) Women Football: To strengthen women football development 
initiatives in their respective regions of the Eastern Cape and 
Lower Saxony, the Eastern Cape women football team visited 
Germany in August 2017 and participated in a three-match 
tournament winning one match and suffering two loss. Yonela 
Keto who participated in these games is now in the Banyana 
Banyana National team whilst Sibulele Holweni plays a prominent 
role in the U/17 and U/20 National teams and is based at the High 
Performance Centre in the University of Pretoria. 

iii) Volunteer Programme: To strengthen people-to-people 
cooperation and also promote healthy lifestyles, Lower Saxony 
has placed 36 Volunteers in the Eastern Cape for a period of 
one year. DSRAC is responsible for four Volunteers that are 
placed at Coffee Bay doing handball coaching clinics and other 
sport development related programmes. These Volunteers have 
created a foundation base in terms of sport for development 
and assisting learners in schools and federations in talent 

identification, club development and life skills. 
iv) Boxing: Boxing tournaments took place in Lower Saxony and 

in Eastern Cape where boxers from both Provinces participated. 
The programme has further capacitated a number of boxing 
referees and judges. The Eastern Cape is recognized as the 
Mecca of boxing and has continuously provided first–rate boxers 
to the South African national teams. Eastern Cape has invited 
few boxers from Lower Saxony to participate in the Nelson 
Mandela Centenary activities in the next financial year. It is worth 
to mention that Azinga Fuzile, the current South African Junior 
Featherweight Champion and former IBF PanAfrican Champion, 
is a direct beneficiary of the exchange programme with Lower 
Saxony, having participated in this initiatives since he was still in 
the amateur ranks. 

v) Canoeing: Lower Saxony sprinters have made Eastern Cape 
their official base camp as the conditions of Nahoon River 
have proven to be favourable to meet their training needs. The 
German team gained Silver Medal during the last Olympics and 
some of these athletes have used the Eastern Cape as their 
camp. This has inspired one of the local development paddlers 
Sandile Menjenjalo to start a project in Postdam which involves 
kids aged between 8 and 14 years. The Lower Saxony Canoeing 
team visited the Eastern Cape from 14 to 28 March 2018 and 
during this period worked with the local paddlers who won Gold 
and Silver medals.

14) The department has ensured that the implementation of government 
programmes are tracked and business intelligence reports were 
developed for decision making. Planned interventions to support 
implementation of the Programme of Action (PoA) have resulted 
in an improved implementation of government policy and programmes 
from 54% in 2016/17 Financial Year to 58% in 2017/18 Financial Year. 
However, to consolidate gains made to date, there are major risk areas 
that must be addressed in the new financial year such as:
a) Poor access to quality Early Childhood Development (0-5 Years) 
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programmes especially in deep rural areas. There is a need to 
strengthen the provision of infrastructure and the project management 
of ECD infrastructure grant.

b) Provision of school infrastructures especially basic services, water, 
and sanitation: Despite the efforts aimed at provision of the basic 
needs to hospitals and schools, report and experiences still show 
that the Province has not yet made significant impact especially in 
formerly disadvantaged areas. This includes also reports on amenities 
and functionality of Schools for Leaners with Special Needs.

c) Rationalisation of Schools: The progress of the rationalization and 
realignment of schools is not yet at an accelerated pace, partly due 
to length of public participation processes. Approximately 1 902 
schools are targeted for the programme (of the 5332 schools in 
the Province). Rationalisation aims at addressing, for instance, the 
problem of 1 teacher schools in the Province. In 2016/17 Financial 
Year, 199 schools were rationalized, and by the end of the following 
financial year end up to 303 schools had been realigned. There is 
also a risk of misuse and vandalisation of those schools that are 
closed. This requires collaborative efforts including communities to 
ensure the closed schools are put to good use.

d) Medico Legal Claims: The payment of medico legal cases which is 
paid through the courts places pressure on the health care budgets. 

e) Unofficial occupation of land, random settlements, and demand for 
housing has posed challenges of stability within communities. This 
results in delays in the Spatial Planning Development Framework, 
and the Development and Implementation of the Integrated Human 
Settlements Master Plan.

f) Graduation of SMMEs: Despite the interventions and support for 
businesses in this category, there remains the need to enhance 
programmes that will result in graduation of SMME into independent 
and viable players in driving the provincial economy.

g) 30-day payment of service providers is a challenge that affects 
mainly SMMEs. 

h) Capacity of the State: This includes issues of CoE reduction, 
sustainability of audit status at local and provincial government, anti-
corruption initiatives, and the implementation of the holistic back-to-
basic programme that aims to revitalize local government.

i) Infrastructure programmes are generally underperforming.
j) Reduction of municipal debt (Eskom and Department of Water Affairs) 

as well as debt owed to municipalities by the Provincial government.

In mitigating these issues highlighted, the department has developed 
various strategies to improve interdepartmental collaboration on planning 
and budgeting such as an Integrated Planning Framework. This lays 
the foundation for developing government programmes that are aimed 
at accelerating policy implementation. This will assist in strengthening 
planning, monitoring and evaluation of government priorities in the next 
planning cycle. 

15) In addition to the above, great improvement was made on the 
resolutions of citizens’ complaints from the Presidential Hotline by 
exceeding the national target of 90% and registering 92% resolution rate. 
The focus was management of service delivery concerns with the aim of 
strengthening departmental coordination. Furthermore, the department, 
in response to service delivery concerns, has successfully facilitated 
the unblocking of intervention in the following projects:
a) Masonwabe Co-operatives for people living with disabilities 

complained about not receiving financial support from the government 
to upgrade their dilapidated wooden structure building. Anglo Gold 
Ashanti was approached for financial support under their Poverty 
Alleviation Programme and donated R68 000 for project support and 
sustainability of the co-operatives.

b) Pato Junior Secondary School management complained that the 
Department of Education did not respond after the school was 
destroyed by a storm. The school was rendered as a health hazard 
to both the educators and the learners and no effective learning was 
taking place and leaners were sent home when weather conditions 
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were bad. OTP in conjunction with the Department of Education 
intervened and the school subsequently received 15 temporary 
classrooms with water tanks.

c) Tinana Development Forum submitted a petition to the OTP 
complaining about lack of service delivery in Ward 11 of Elundini 
Local Municipality because of no access roads. The Service Delivery 
Co-ordination and Intervention Support Unit visited the area to assess 
the extent of the challenges cited in the petition. The team engaged 
relevant departments and the municipality concerned regarding 
service delivery issues raised to facilitate funding the construction of 
a bridge and 50 meter long of access road to connect the bridge to 
the villages. The projects were completed and 14 local unemployed 
youths benefitted from the projects.

d) The Office of the Premier received a request from the Department 
of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) in the Presidency 
to follow up on a complaint regarding the lack of public toilets at 
the Crossroads Taxi Rank in Motherwell. The matter was also raised 
in the local media. The municipality constructed toilets at the rank 
in 2010, however, the toilets were later vandalised and were never 
renovated. Through the intervention of the Office of the Premier, 
the municipality completed the renovations of the toilets and this 
intervention will eliminate the health hazard as well as improve the 
cleanliness of the area, thus, restoring the commuters’ dignity. 

e) A request to urgently follow up on a service delivery concern where 
a pensioner’s house was destroyed by lightning, rendering her 
homeless. This was the case of Ms Ntombenkosi Mbutho, a 65 year 
old woman from Siphaqeni Village in Flagstaff, who suffers from a 
breast cancer and lives in Trankei where there are no Oncologists 
nor Oncology Units in public hospitals in the region, and whose plight 
was presented on SABC television show. Through the intervention of 
the Office of the Premier, Ms Mbutho was provided with the followings: 
i) Allocation of a site and construction of a house from donations.
ii) Household goods, toilet and a water tank.

iii) Food parcels for 3 months.
iv) Transportation to Frere Hospital to consult an Oncologist was 

provided. 

The lessons learnt was that some service delivery concerns could not 
be resolved due to budgetary constraints and challenges in district co-
ordination. The department has devised strategies to strengthen district 
co-ordination which will be implemented in the new financial year.

16) Back to School Programme: The programme focuses on school 
infrastructure, basic services (electrical, water and sanitation, school 
safety) and school governance to determine readiness to implement the 
curriculum. During the Back to School Programme, a total of 26 schools 
in all six District and two Metropolitan Municipalities were visited by 
the MECs of the Provincial Government at the beginning of the school 
year.  Significant progress was recorded in 25 of the 26 schools after 
unblocking identified challenges. Lessons learnt is that centralized 
delegation of powers, especially procurement and recruitment, causes 
delays on appointments and procurement.

17) Evaluations: The focus on evaluations was to capacitate 13 departments 
on evaluation methodologies whilst supporting 3 departments to 
conduct evaluations successfully. Evaluation training was conducted 
for evaluations champions across all 13 departments to build the 
departmental capacity to conduct evaluations. This training will ensure 
that departments follow the methodology of conducting evaluations as 
part of strengthening evidence based planning using scientific results 
obtained from the evaluations conducted. In 2017/18 Financial Year three 
out of four programmes were evaluated and are as follows: Community 
Libraries (DSRAC); Cropping Programme (DRDAR); and Effectiveness 
of the EC Cooperative Funding (PT).
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The general findings that have emanated from the evaluations conducted 
are; lack of co-ordination and integration of government programmes; 
structural challenges such as co-operative planning, and consolidation of 
funding on programmes dealing with local economic development. These 
reports also highlight issues around policy constraints especially as they 

relate to: (1) land management in the agricultural space, (2) powers and 
functions as it relates to operations and maintenance of infrastructure 
such as libraries, and (3) funding mechanisms and support to emerging 
and subsistence farmers including co-operatives. These reports will 
be used to influence policy briefs as a mechanism to influence policy 
changes during the coming financial year.
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Strategic Objectives Indicators

Strategic Objective 1: Lead the provincial 
developmental agenda for a shared vision 
institutionalising evidence-based decision 
making and integrated planning over 
medium term

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

1.1 Improved institutionalisation of 
integrated planning

Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None 

The following standards have been achieved:
	All departments have 5 year Strategic Plans aligned to 

the PDP and P-MTSF and drafted in accordance with the 
relevant guidelines.

	Annual Performance Plan, Operational Plans, and Projects 
aligned to the PoA were drafted in accordance with the 
relevant guidelines. 

	Service Delivery Agreements of MECs were aligned to the 
PoA and HoD Performance Agreements aligned to the APP.

	Performance Agreements of general staff are aligned to the 
APPs, Ops Plans, and Project Plans. 

	PoA was ready and approved by March 31. 
	Infrastructure Plans were aligned to priorities.
	Strategic Plans and APPs conformed to the planning 

regulations.
	Review of departmental plans done and departments were 

given feedback by Quarter 2 for the first submission.  On 
Quarter 3, they were given the feedback for the second 
submission.

	Review of IDPs at Local Government and feedback given 
by Quarter 3. 

	Projects in department spatially referenced and integrated 
with IDPs. 

	Infrastructure Plans of departments aligned with the PDP 
and IDPs.

However,  
	Provincial Government is yet to develop Legislation to 

coordinate integrated planning in the Province.
	Provincial Spatial Plan has been developed but is awaiting 

approval by EXCO. 
	Sectors i.e. Local Economic Development, Education, and 

Health Plans were aligned with IDPs.
	The Provincial Integrated Skills Plan is yet to be reviewed in 

line with the PDP and P-MTSF.
	There is no programme in place as yet to facilitate that 

Planners and Monitoring & Evaluation Practitioners are 
members of their respective professional bodies.
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Strategic Objectives Indicators

Strategic Objective 1: Lead the provincial 
developmental agenda for a shared vision 
institutionalising evidence-based decision 
making and integrated planning over 
medium term

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

 

 
	Provincial Government is yet to develop Legislation to 

coordinate integrated planning in the Province.
	Provincial Spatial Plan has been developed but is yet to be 

consulted with all relevant stakeholders.
	Sectors i.e. Local Economic Development, Education, and 

Health Plans were aligned with IDPs.
	The Provincial Integrated Skills Plan is yet to be reviewed in 

line with the PDP and P-MTSF.
	There is no programme in place as yet to facilitate that 

Planners and Monitoring & Evaluation Practitioners are 
members of their respective professional bodies.
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Strategic Objective 1: Lead the provincial 
developmental agenda for a shared vision 
institutionalising evidence-based decision 
making and integrated planning over 
medium term

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

1.2 Improved evidence based 
decision making Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None 

	Policy and programme analysis is being conducted. Some of 
the projects completed include policy analysis of the Public 
Sector Transformation Strategy and the Provincial Anti-Poverty 
Strategy.

	On research and development capacity, structurally some 
departments e.g. DRDAR, DEDEAT, and DSD have research 
functions. However, the knowledge management function still 
needs to be strengthened.

	There has been noticeable improvements in the APPs of 
departments which suggests that evidence through research is 
being used to inform policy development and implementation, 
and service delivery improvement interventions. However, this 
still needs to be strengthened.

	Knowledge database established and is being maintained. 
	The Provincial research forum is established through the 

Provincial Forum of Planners, Researchers as well as M&E 
practitioners. However, the Province still needs to grow in 
profiling and elevating research work.

	At least 5 departments have research agendas which are 
aligned to the Provincial Research Agenda.

	The work to ensure research conducted by institutions outside 
government is mainstreamed is still at its infancy stage.

	Protocols and processes for conducting research are yet to be 
developed.

	Sector departments are conducting research to inform policy 
decisions.

	Partnerships with all spheres of government, academia, 
research institutions and communities of practices have been 
established. 

	Structured processes to source funding to conduct research 
are in place. However, not all department are providing 
adequate funding for research.
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

2.2 Improved interdepartmental 
co-ordination at all spheres 

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 None

	Strategic projects and programmes identified from the 
SoNA, PDP, P-MTSF and SOPA

	Baseline data for basic services (electrification, water 
and sanitation) and Premier’s Intervention Projects is 
established.

	The OTP coordinates departments and stakeholders to 
participate in platforms that deal with strategic projects and 
programmes.

	The OTP is facilitating and monitoring the implementation 
of strategic projects and programmes.

	An indicator framework, data monitoring tools and reporting 
templates were developed and reviewed. 

	M&E practitioners were capacitated on data collection 
tools. 

	There is an improved compliance on the submission of 
complete data by departments.

	The OTP is verifying performance reports, although to a 
limited extend due to capacity constraints 

	Departments monitoring the implementation of strategic 
projects and programmes without the support from the OTP

	The OTP is collates and analyse information to provide 
reports on strategic projects in the Province. However, it 
is yet to develop a dashboard that provide a live status of 
each project. Due to capacity constraints the OTP is not 
yet in a position to have performance review sessions with 
sector departments. 

	The decline in the public perception survey index together 
with incidents of protest by citizens suggests that more 
needs to be done to improve service delivery
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

2.3 A responsive public service Level 3 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	Operation Masiphathisane, the presidential Hotlines, EXCO 
Outreaches and walk-ins are some of the mechanisms 
that are in place by government to ensure community 
and stakeholder concerns are addressed. The Operation 
Masiphathisane was launched in 2016 and work is 
underway to ensure the programme is institutionalised at 
all levels of Provincial Government. 

	Over 80% of community concerns are being addressed or 
responded to.

	Despite these initiatives and the programmes in place, 
public perception across the country has been declining 
(from 44% in 2017 to 24% in 2018) in part due to 
allegations of corruption, the downgrading of the South 
African Economy by rating agencies and intra-ruling party 
dynamics at both national and provincial level. 

	The level of service delivery protests in the Province have 
largely remained high.
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

2.4 Improved access to quality 
services

Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	Governance structures involving citizens are in place 
through Operation Masiphathisane. However, the 
programme is being strengthened.

	Participation of citizens in monitoring for improved service 
delivery is taking place through various platforms including 
EXCO outreaches and other programmes organised by the 
legislative arm of government.

	Annual front line service delivery monitoring plan fully 
implemented. However, the scope of the programme is 
still limited and the OTP is exploring decentralising this 
programme

	Departments and municipalities are providing resources for 
the implementation of service delivery improvement plans 
and the implementation is fully monitored.

	Profiling of facilities is unearthing best practice and 
sometimes areas of improvements.

	Capacitation of M&E / Research practitioners is being 
conducted on an on-going basis.

	Departments are being supported in the development 
of concept notes for evaluations and the OTP is actively 
involved in the facilitation of evaluations. Despite 
this, capacity as well as commitment to evaluation in 
departments is still limited.

	Departments have SDIPs and in some cases improvement 
plans.  However, the implementation of these is yet to be 
fully effective.

	The Province is still limited in its ability measure and 
monitor service delivery standard.

	Not all facilities offering government services are 
conducting regular citizen satisfaction surveys.

	The Province has initiated the GIS mapping to identify 
citizen needs. However, sustaining this process is a 
challenge due to capacity constraints. 

	Programme of Action and cluster plans are integrated in 
departmental APPs.  However, implementation still requires 
on-going attention.

	Spatial referencing of projects and integration with IDPs is 
still at an inception phase. The OTP has started piloting an 
approach and methodology in the Chris Hani District with 
the hope of replicating this to other districts
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Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

	Not all facilities offering government services are 
conducting regular citizen satisfaction surveys.

	The Province has initiated the GIS mapping to identify 
citizen needs. However, sustaining this process is a 
challenge due to capacity constraints. 

	Programme of Action and cluster plans are integrated in 
departmental APPs.  However, implementation still requires 
on-going attention.

	Spatial referencing of projects and integration with IDPs is 
still at an inception phase. The OTP has started piloting an 
approach and methodology in the Chris Hani District with 
the hope of replicating this to other districts

Strategic Objective 3: Enhance citizen 
empowerment through improved inclusive 
governance and implementation of 
meaningful stakeholder participatory 
programmes in the current term

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

3.4 Sound intergovernmental 
governance arrangements Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 None

	District and local IGR structures as well as their steering 
committees have been established and these are at 
different levels of functionality. However, more still needs to 
be done to ensure they are effective as information flows 
from local war rooms to district and provincial war rooms is 
still being strengthened. OTP is conducting road shows to 
popularise Operation Masiphathisane war rooms

	There are no ward based plans developed as yet as the 
programme is still in its inception stage.
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Strategic Objective 3: Enhance citizen 
empowerment through improved inclusive 
governance and implementation of 
meaningful stakeholder participatory 
programmes in the current term

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from 

Target
Comment on Deviations

3.5
Improved and meaningful 
participation of citizens in their 
own development

Level 1 Level 3 Level 3 None

	A strategy of stakeholder and community participation 
developed and implemented through the Provincial IGR 
Strategy.

	Monitoring the implementation of the stakeholder 
and community participation strategy is taking place 
at various platforms which includes EXCO sessions 
and environmental scans conducted by the Provincial 
Communications.

	Issues raised by communities and stakeholders 
find expression in government integrated plans and 
programmes. The Pre and Post SOPA debates are an 
example of this.

	While Operations Masiphathisane has been established 
in part to ensure that communities are actively involved in 
the development agenda, there is room for improvement 
in ensuring that the programme is institutionalised to 
ensure that communities are capacitated to be able to 
meaningfully participate.

	Partnerships are leveraged for service delivery and 
mobilisation of resources are in place, even with 
international partners. However, these are yet to be fully 
exploited.
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Performance Indicators 

Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.1 Annual Programme of Action developed 1 1
1 [the Annual 

Programme of Action 
was developed]

None -

2.2 Number of departmental Annual Performance 
Plans aligned with the Provincial priorities 13 13

13 [All 13 APPs of 
departments that 

were assessed were 
found to be aligned 

to the Provincial 
priorities].

None -

2.3 Number of district IDPs aligned with the 
Provincial priorities 8 8

8 [All 8 IDPs of 
District and Metros 

that were assessed 
were found to 

be aligned to the 
Provincial priorities].

None -

2.4 Number of sector departments’ research 
aligned to the provincial research agenda 1 4 [DoH, DSL, DSD, 

DoE]

4 [DoH, DSL, DSD 
and DoE] of the 

targets departments 
had their research 

agendas aligned 
to the provincial 

research agenda

None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.5 Quarterly co-ordination and monitoring of the 
implementation of  IGR strategy 4 4

3 [the roll-out of the 
IGR strategy was 
coordinated and 
monitored]

1 [In  Quarter 1 
the Premier’s 
Coordinating Forum 
was cancelled due 
to the clash with the 
visit of the President 
for the Siyahlola 
Service Monitoring 
programme. 
Technical Premier’s 
Coordinating Forum 
sat on 01 June 2017 
for approving of the 
Agenda]

The matters which 
would have been 
handled in  Quarter 
1 were integrated in 
subsequent meetings 

2.6 Number of war rooms established at ward, 
local, district and Provincial level New indicator 

448 [400 ward, 40 
Local, 7 District and 1
Provincial]

278 ward war rooms 
were established

170 [122 ward, 40 
Local, 7 District and 1 
Provincial] war rooms 
were not established

Metros have not yet 
rolled out the war 
rooms. Operation 
Masiphathisane 
Consolidation 
Roadshows have 
been organised 
for each district 
will commence in 
Quarter 1 of 2018/19 
Financial Year.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.7 Number of established war rooms assessed 
for functionality New indicator 200 

42 war rooms 
were assessed for 
functionality

158 war rooms were 
not assessed

Budgetary constraints 
have limited the 
verification and 
validation of war 
rooms’ functionality 
in the districts. A 
verification plan will 
be drawn up as a 
control mechanism to 
manage the limited 
available funds.

2.8 Number of public participation fora facilitated 
to ensure community engagements 
with government (EXCO Outreach and 
Institutionalised days)

29 4

5 public participation 
fora  were facilitated 
to ensure community 
engagements with 
government

1

1 additional forum 
was organized 
due to the demand 
on Premier’s 
engagement with 
stakeholders in 
the post SOPA 
engagement sessions

2.9 Number of stakeholder engagements 
facilitated to involve them in the design 
and the implementation of government 
programmes  

8 16
16 stakeholder 
engagement sessions 
were  facilitated

None -

2.10 Quarterly co-ordination of the Provincial 
International Relations Steering Committee to 
monitor the implementation of the Provincial 
International Relations Strategy

4 4

4 [the implementation 
of the Provincial 
International 
Relations Strategy 
was coordinated and 
monitored]

None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.11 Number of Twinning Arrangements with 
international partners concluded to advance 
Provincial priorities

2 2 0 2

Twinning 
Arrangements with 
Zhejiang Province of 
China was not signed 
during the visit of 
the Premier there as 
China requested an 
opportunity to sign 
it during the May 
visit to the Eastern 
Cape Province. 
The agreement with 
Guangdong Province 
of China could not be 
signed because the 
Governor was out of 
the Province at the 
time of the visit of the 
Premier. 
The Twining 
Arrangement with 
Zhejiang will be 
concluded in May 
while efforts are 
made to pursue 
the Twinning 
Arrangement with 
Guangdong Province.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.12 Percentage of Presidential Hotline cases 
resolved

91% [8 910 calls 
resolved out of 9 795 

calls received]
95%

92% [9 454 out of 
10 278] calls were 
resolved.

3% [824 out of 10 
278] calls were still 
being resolved.

The departmental 
PLOs do not respond 
to the complaints 
on time citing 
challenges of access 
to the Presidential 
Hotline system. An 
assessment of the 
PLO functionality 
will be conducted to 
assess the extent 
of PLO functionality 
with the aim to 
develop mitigating 
strategies to address 
the challenge in 
Quarter 1 of 2018/19 
Financial Year.

2.13 Percentage of Provincial hotline cases 
resolved New indicator 95% 0 95%

Delays have been 
experienced is setting 
up the Provincial 
Hotline. The system 
arrangements with 
the Department 
of Health were 
concluded and a 
process of person-
to-post matching 
for the OTP is 
nearing completion 
for personnel 
placements.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.14 Number of centres monitored as part 
of Front Line Service Delivery Monitoring 
Programme implementing improvement plans

54 centres 29 centres
9 centres are 
implementing 

improvement plans
20

The OTP was 
only able to verify 
implementation of 
improvement plans in 
12 centres. Of these 
12 centres 9 showed 
good progress in the 
implementation of 
their improvement 
plans while the 
remaining 3 faced 
serious infrastructure 
management 
challenges. The 
verification of the 
remaining centres 
will be conducted 
in the 2018/19 
Financial Year while 
challenges identified 
during this process 
will be escalated 
to department for 
resolution.

2.15 Quarterly monitoring and facilitating 
resolution of service delivery concerns lodged 4 4

4 [service delivery 
concerns were 
monitored and 

facilitated] 
None -
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.16 Quarterly facilitation, monitoring and 
reporting on Provincial and National key 
programmes

	Access to basic services
	EXCO Outreach Programmes
	KSD Presidential Intervention
	Taking Legislature/ Parliament to the People
	Premier’s Intervention Projects

4 [Provincial and 
National key 

programmes were 
monitored] 

None -

2.17 Quarterly facilitation, monitoring and 
reporting on the implementation of Integrated 
Service Delivery Model (Operation 
Masiphathisane)

New indicator

3 [the implementation 
of Integrated 

Service Delivery 
Model (Operation 
Masiphathisane) 

was facilitated and 
monitored]

In Quarter 3 
budgetary constraints 
limited the verification 
and validation of war 
room functionality in 
the districts.

A verification plan 
will be drawn up as 
a control mechanism 
to manage the limited 
available funds

4 4

4
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.18 Percentage of PoA targets achieved 
(Governance and Administration, Social 
Transformation and Economic Development 
Clusters) 

54% [125 of 229] 
of indicators were 
achieved as follows:
	 Economic 

Development 
Cluster: 52% [24 
of 46];

	 Social 
Transformation 
Cluster: 56% [80 
out of 143];

	 Governance and 
Administration 
Cluster: 53%  
[22 of 40]

100%

58% [138 out of 
238] targets were 
achieved as follows:

	ST cluster 63% 
[86 out of 137] 
targets achieved

	ED 53% [19 out 
of 36] targets 
achieved

	G&A 51% [33 
out of 65] targets 
achieved

42% [100 out of 
238] targets were 
achieved as follows:

	ST cluster 37% 
[51 out of 137] 
targets achieved

	ED 47% [17 out 
of 36] targets 
achieved

	G&A 49% [32 
out of 65] targets 
achieved

The under 
achievement and 
underreporting is 
mainly due to low 
performance in the 
working groups 
especially social 
cohesion (ST), 
G&A and ED. The 
OTP will strengthen 
the configuration 
and ownership of 
indicators within the 
working groups, this 
includes emphasis 
on Programme 
Managers within 
departments to 
ensure a clear line 
of sight into the 
implementation of the 
provincial indicators 
in the PoA.
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Performance Indicator Actual Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18

Deviation from 
Target

Comment on 
Deviation

2.19 Number of evaluations coordinated and 
conducted

	Evaluation of the impact of conditional grants 
for libraries 

	Effectiveness of cooperative funding 
	Ward based Primary Health Care Outreach 

Teams
	Evaluation of cropping programme

1 [the impact of 
CFO support to 

municipalities was 
evaluated]

4

3 evaluations were 
completed:
	Evaluation of 

the impact of 
conditional grants 
for libraries 

	Effectiveness 
of co-operative 
funding 

	Evaluation 
of cropping 
programme

1 evaluation, the 
Ward based Primary 
Health Care Outreach 
Teams was still being 
conducted by the end 
of the financial year. 

There is no capacity 
for evaluations which 
resulted in the delays 
in the finalisation of 
the evaluation. The 
OTP is assisting 
departments 
to finalize the 
evaluation.

2.20 Number of Provincial departments 
implementing MPAT improvement plans 13 13

13 [all 13 
departments are 
implementing MPAT 
improvement plans]

None -

Changes to Planned Targets
	None 

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance
	These are outlined in the ‘comment on deviation’ column 
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Under-expenditure of R5.2 million is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled as per the Annual Recruitment Plan. The department is working hard to 
fill all vacancies pending the finalisation of repositioning of the organisational structure, and therefore critical posts are given priority.

Linking Performance with Budget

2017/2018 2016/2017

Sub- Programme Name Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sub-Programme 2.1: Programme Management for  Planning, Policy 
Co-ordination, Monitoring and Evaluation             2 910 2 598 312 2 904 2 399 505

Sub-Programme 2.2: Policy Planning and Research Coordination            50 155 46 799 3 356 45 379 44 471 908

Sub-Programme 2.3: Intergovernmental,  Stakeholder and International  
Relations             18 385 17 761 624 20 278 18 210 2 068

Sub-Programme 2.4: Service Delivery Intervention and Coordination 
Support             25 806 25 703 103 39 382 31 746 7 636

Sub-Programme 2.5: Performance Monitoring and Evaluation             11 816 10 936 880 14 953 11 906 3 047

TOTAL           109 072 103 797 5 275 122 896 108 732 14 164
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B4.3 Programme 3: Institutional Development and Organisational 
Support

Programme Purpose
Managing the administration of the public service system and promoting 
accountable governance by providing institutional development and 
organisational support services to ensure that the Provincial Government has 
sufficient skills capacity to effectively and efficiently deliver on its mandate. 
The programme is structured as follows: 
	Sub-Programme 3.1: Programme Management for Institutional 

Development and Organisational Support
	Sub-Programme 3.2: Institutional Support Services

	Sub-Programme 3.3: Human Capital and Talent Management 
Support Services

	Sub-Programme 3.4: Human Resource Development Support 
Services

	Sub-Programme 3.5: Information Technology Management
	Sub-Programme 3.6: Anti-corruption and Security Management

Strategic Objectives Applicable to this Programme 

	Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality services.  

	Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen accountability in corporate governance through enforcing the implementation of public sector reforms in the Province on an on-going 
basis

	Strategic Objective 5: Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building internal capability 
and empowering employees
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Performance Highlights
1) The finalisation of appointments for the Heads of Department for COGTA 

and DSD assisted in providing leadership stability in the two departments. 
The HoD Performance Evaluations continue to be a mechanism for 
accountability and consequence management and HoDs for DoH; DHS; 
PT; DRPW; DEDEAT and DRDAR have been evaluated to date. 

2) The improvement in compliance with SMS Financial Disclosures from 
96% to 99% this year is a demonstration of the commitment the Province 
is making in strengthening controls and curbing corruption. Work to 
extend this to middle management is gaining momentum with three 
departments already assisted to register their employees and facilitate 
submission of e-disclosures.   

3) Key to operational functionality of the State is existence of departmental 
organograms that are aligned to departmental strategy and Service 
Delivery Model. To this end, 5 organograms during the year in question 
have been finalised (DoH, OTP, DEDEAT, DHS, and DSRAC) paving a 
way for departments to reposition and capacitate themselves to deliver 
on their mandates.  

4) In order to build the much needed Organisational Development capacity 
in the Province, the Office of the Premier has prioritised training of 
departmental officials on Business Process Mapping (BPM) to improve 
operational efficiencies. Towards this end 76 officials from across 
departments have been trained. This will enable departments to develop 
their own Business Processes and Standard Operating Procedures for 
key services areas without relying on the Office of the Premier.

5) To ensure that departments are able to address the gaps in their service 
delivery value chain in key areas, all were assisted to develop their 
Service Delivery Improvement Plans for the three year cycle 2018-2021. 
This will not only ensure timely submission to DPSA, but will enable 

departments to start addressing delivery gaps during the 2018/2019 
Financial Year.

6) Through the Provincial Coordinating and Monitoring Committee 
(PCMT) the office of the Premier has managed to reduce recruitment 
irregularities and inconsistencies across departments where only posts 
that are funded, properly evaluated, have job descriptions, are approved 
for advertising. 

7) Increase of the Scholarship Award from R80, 000 per recipient to a full 
cost of study will go a long way in supporting deserving and poor students, 
in particular, to focus on their studies and not worry about where the 
balance of their fees is going to come from. 26 learners accepted the 
Premier’s scholarship and were assisted to register at various institutions 
of higher learning. 

8) The support provided to TVET College students and other learners 
to access further training opportunities and experience as part of the 
Work Integrated Learning Programme will go a long way in increasing 
employment of the youth, as the learners are assisted to complete their 
experiential training and submit their Diploma applications so that they 
receive their certificates from the Department of Higher Education and 
Training.

9) There is registered improvement in the implementation of the ICT 
Governance Framework in the Province. All departments are making a 
concerted effort to deal with ICT Audit findings with the assistance of the 
Provincial GITO Council ICT Audit Task Team, with some departments 
having addressed all their findings and some significantly reducing them. 

10) The Province is making strides to align the ICT Governance planning 
and implementation with the DPSA CGICT Policy framework guidelines. 
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This will further assist in addressing the urgent need for Integrated ICT 
Planning in response to the departments Service Delivery Improvement 
Plans (SDIPs).

11) Observation and commemoration of days to build an ethical culture, 
improve access to government services and strengthen oversight 

programmes as part of implementing the Batho Pele Revitalisation 
Strategy flagship programme, is well entrenched in the Province. The 
Public Service Month activities are being enriched each year with more 
participation of government entities to provide Services on Wheels to 
benefit broader communities in targeted areas. This includes Khaedu 
programme implementation to unblock service delivery challenges on 
site as well as campaign on awareness on good ethics extended to 
schools.

Strategic Objectives Indicators 

Strategic Objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation of government programmes 
to ensure access to quality services

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

2.5 Improved skills development for 
economic growth Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	All departmental plans in place to host University of Technology 
(UOT) and TVET/HET College students to gain workplace 
experience;

	All Departments budget and plan for the placement of Interns;
	Municipalities are not optimally exhausting their potential 

regarding placement of UOT and TVET/HET College students 
to gain workplace experience;

	Departments are providing funding to students to access 
higher education. 

	Office of the Premier has coordinated the training of artisans;
	Office of the Premier mobilises funding towards the training of 

artisans. In 2017/18 Financial Year for instance, OTP sourced 
over R26m from SETA for training of artisans;

	Artisan development programmes are aligned to economic 
development opportunities;

	The OTP does not have measure in place yet to assess if UOT 
and TVET College students are accessing workplaces within 
three months of completing their classroom learning. However, 
artisan development programmes are made available to 
students.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.7 Effective management and 
operations systems Level 1 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	All departments have identified their key services areas 
for business process mapping and have conducted the 
phase one of BPM which includes the mapping of “AS-IS” 
processes. However, the “TO-BE” process mapping is yet to 
be concluded in many departments.

	Consequently work on developing Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) for all identified key services areas in 
departments is not concluded.

	The OTP has initiated a process to implement business 
process mapping through the roll-out of operations 
management framework.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.8 Skilled public service Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	While departments have developed Workplace Skills Plans 
that are aligned with the core businesses, there is still room 
for improvement to ensure these plans are more relevant to 
current and future needs of their respective departments.

	Departments have developed HRD Implementation Plans 
that takes employees’ performance into account.

	Line Function Managers/ Supervisors prioritise core/critical 
skills training of officials.

	Departments do budget for skills development programmes 
for their employees.

	Departments report quarterly to the OTP on their skills 
development programmes.

	Departments work with Sector Education and Training 
Authorities to implement skills programmes to develop the 
skills in the sector;

	All departments implementing cross critical skills 
(transversal skills)

	Skills development oversight structures (HRD and the 
Provincial Skills Development fora) are in place and are 
functional. 

	Generally officials are completing the training interventions 
successfully.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.9 Professional public service. Level 1 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level 

	The Province developed a business process framework and 
methodology for use by departments.

	8 Departments [DEDEAT, DRPW, DHS, DRDAR, DoE, DoH, 
PT and DSRAC] have Batho Pele Plans and 3 [DRDAR, 
DoT and Treasury] have culture change plans.

	The departments that have these plans are also monitoring 
their implementation. The OTP conducts oversight on 
the implementation of these plans. However, there is no 
evidence that management of departments do discuss the 
issues arising from the implementation of these plans.

	All departments with the exception of COGTA participated in 
the PSM activities

	Only DoT and PT are fully participating in the Khaedu 
programme.

	None of the departments are conducting customer 
satisfaction surveys.

	The implementation of resolutions arising from the PSM 
activities are being monitored.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.10 Improved human resource 
capacity and effectiveness Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	Human resource management policies and functional 
processes are in place in all departments. However, 
departments are at various levels of implementation.

	While there has been a renewed focus on strategic policy 
directives such as the employment equity, success has 
largely been subdued. Only two departments achieved the 
target of women at SMS (DHS and DSD) while other two 
have achieved the disability target (COGTA and DSL).

	HR plans are in place in departments and these fairly 
identify the future needs of departments.

	The PMDS policy is being implemented in departments. 
However, the focus is mainly on rewards.

	Structured platforms exist. However, their functionality and 
efficiency is at various levels. Adherence to prescripts is 
also still not achieved.

	The implementation of Employee Wellness Programmes 
are yet to be fully needs based. There is a strong bias 
towards compliance in the manner in which these are being 
rolled out currently by departments. DoH and DRPW are 
making steady and notable progress though.

	HR units exist in all departments. However, ensuring that 
these play a strategic role and contribute to the overall 
success of government goals still require on-going attention.

	While platforms are in place for the government to engage 
with social partners to enhance the transformation agenda, 
this area still require on-going attention.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.11 Improved leadership capacity 
and accountability Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 None

	Leadership Development Model is in place. 
	All SMS are properly inducted into the ECPA.
	Competency assessments conducted and the identified 

performance gaps are addressed.
	The leadership competency model has informed the 

Leadership Development Programmes. These are being 
implemented across all levels of leadership in the Province.

	Coaching and Mentoring Programme is in place. However, it 
is not optimally implemented and coordinated.

	Reporting and analysis of Leadership Development 
Programmes is/are taking place. However, achieving a 
coherent leadership culture in place across all supervisory 
levels remains a challenge and departments still record 
audit findings on finance and performance management.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.12 Improved integrity in the public 
service Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	All backlog cases dating back to 2005 have been cleared.
	All departments have anti-fraud and corruption policies and 

do have the minimum Anti-Corruption Capacity (MACC)
	The OTP monitors the implementation of anti-fraud and 

corruption programme in the Province
	Technical anti-corruption structures are functional. However, 

Provincial Anti-Corruption Council and Forum are not 
functional.

	While awareness campaigns have been rolled out by the 
OTP, more still needs to be done to reach out to teachers 
and nurses across the Province.

	Whistle blowers reporting mechanisms are in place and are 
continuously being improved.

	The level of collaboration between the OTP and other law 
enforcement agencies is satisfactory as evidenced by joint 
programmes that have been coordinated.

	Case management system has been established but the 
implementation is in its inception phase.

	While there have been some improvements in the reduction 
of fraud and corruption incidences, the Province is still not 
satisfied with the progress.

	On ethical culture, the Ethics Survey Report released in 
2018 indicates that more work still needs to be done to 
address issues of ethics in the public service.
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Strategic Objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
on-going basis

Actual 
Achieved
2016/17

Planned 
Targets
2017/18

Actual 
Achieved
2017/18

Deviation 
from Target Comment on Deviations

4.13 Level of ICT governance 
Framework in the Province

New 
indicator Level 3 Level 3 None

	Planning and budgeting for ICT projects is integrated across 
Provincial Departments.

	There is a Provincial ICT Shared Services model which 
integrates all 13 Provincial Departments ICT Projects. 

	Provincial video conferencing is not fully implemented due 
to bandwidth limitation;

	The Province is yet to develop an ICT skills development 
plan.

	B5 Projects are being monitored through GIS Tools. 
	Upgrade of data line for DoE and DoH to 2 megabytes has 

been done. However, there is still limited bandwidth in the 
Provincial network.

	Provincial integrated VoIP Solution is functional in a 
selected departments (OTP, DRPW, DSRAC and PT) due to 
bandwidth limitation.

	The assessment of Provincial Microsoft licensing revealed 
that it would not be cost effective to consolidate the 
management of these licenses. 

	The anti-corruption case management system has been 
automated while e-recruitment, e-records, e-PILLIR and 
e-leave have been initiated and will be completed in the 
2018/19 Financial Year.

	The Provincial mobile access has been consolidated (cell 
phone and data) completed through PT.
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Performance Indicators 

Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.1 Number of departmental 
service delivery models 
aligned to  departmental 
mandate 

9 4 [DoH,  DoT, COGTA, 
DSD]

5 [3 - DoH,  DoT, 
COGTA; and additional 

2 (OTP, DoH) which 
were not part of the 

target]
1 department [DSD]

DSD service delivery model is still 
in the final stages of finalization 
as it experienced delays in the 
consultation process. OTP is giving 
technical hands-on support to the 
Department of Social Development on 
the finalization of an SDM.

3.2 Number of departments 
with approved 
Organizational Structures 
for the current Medium 
Term Strategic Framework

New indicator 
7 [DHS, DEDEAT, DoE, 
DSL, DRDAR, DSRAC, 

DoT]

3 [DHS, DEDEAT, 
DSRAC] 4 departments [COGTA, 

DSL, DSD and DRDAR]

COGTA is responding to validation 
comments and costing the structure; 
DSD is still finalising the service 
delivery model; DSL is under the 
Premier’s consideration; and DRDAR 
is finalising costing. OTP will continue 
to give technical hands-on support to 
these departments.

3.3 Number of departments 
with credible core business 
process maps. 

	Process flows on core 
business are in place.

	Approved standard 
operating procedures for 
core business processes 
are in place.

	The department 
continuously reviews and 
improves their processes. 

New indicator 2
2 [SOPs have been 

completed for DoT and 
DSL]

None -
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.4 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation service 
delivery improvement 
plans. 

	Service Delivery Charter 
and Service Delivery 
Improvement Plans are in 
place.

	Project plans for the 
implementation of SDIP are 
in place.

	Business processes 
and standard operating 
procedures for SDIP are 
developed.

	The department monitors 
the implementation 
of service delivery 
improvement plans.

10 12
12 [All the targeted 

departments achieved 
the standard excluding 

DoE]
None -
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.5 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of change 
management strategies 

	An approved Batho Pele 
and change management 
plans in place

	A Batho Pele coordinator 
and a change management 
champion formally 
appointed

	Inclusion of Batho Pele 
and change management 
KRA into the performance 
contract of the Batho Pele 
coordinator and change 
management champions 

	A Khaedu plan in place
	Batho Pele forum in place 

and functional
	The department monitors 

the implementation of 
Batho Pele and Change 
Management Plans and 
resolutions arising from this 
monitoring tracked.

New indicator 3
None of the targeted 
departments achieved 
all the required 
minimum standards.

3 [DRDAR did not 
have a Batho Pele and 
Change Management 
Plan, and did not 
have functional 
forum. However, 
Change Management 
champions were 
formally appointed and 
a Khaedu Plan is in 
place. Despite having a 
Batho Pele and Change 
Management Plan in 
place and champions 
appointed, DoT did 
not have Khaedu 
Plan and its forum is 
not functional. In the 
DHS, only Change 
Management and Batho 
Pele champions are 
appointed and there no 
plans in place.

The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.6 Number of service delivery 
‘pockets of excellence’ 
cases documented 
and shared as part of 
the implementation of 
knowledge management 
strategy.

New indicator 4

4 [Fix My School; 
Expertise Profiling; 
Data Driven District 

Dashboard; Ex-Mine 
Workers Track and 

Trace Project]

None -

3.7 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of human 
resource effectiveness 
and capacity assessments 
improvement plans. 

	Functional HR effective 
and capacity assessment 
committee in place.

	Human resource 
effectiveness and capacity 
assessments conducted.

	Improvement plan 
monitored 

	Decisions arising from 
the monitoring of the 
implementation human 
resource effectiveness and 
capacity assessments are 
tracked.

6 13

12 [All departments 
except DoE has 
achieved a minimum 
standard in the 
implementation of 
HR effectiveness 
assessment capacity].

1 [DoE]
The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.8 Number of departments 
implementing credible 
human resource plans

	Strategic skills and 
competency gaps identified.

	Approved human resource 
plan which responds to 
its strategic skills and 
competency gaps.

	Implementation of the 
human resource plan is 
monitored.

	Departments discusses 
implementation reports 
and decisions arising out 
of these discussions are 
tracked. 

13 13

11 [All departments 
except DSD and 
DRAC have achieved 
a minimum standard in 
the implementation of 
HR plans].

2 [DSD and DRAC]
The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.9 Number of departments 
implementing credible HRM 
delegations

	The department has 
approved HRM delegations 
in the prescribed format 
(delegations appropriately 
signed and initialed on 
every page).

	Delegations are compliant 
with the Public Service 
Regulations and relevant 
directives.

	The Executive Authority of 
the department delegated 
duties to the HoD and the 
HoD delegates duties to 
other levels.

	The department monitors 
the implementation of 
delegations and takes 
corrective action where 
necessary.

7 13
10 departments have 
achieved the standard 
on the implementation 
of HRM delegation

3 departments [OTP, 
DSD and DoE] have not 
met the standard on the 
implementation of HR 
delegations

The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.



PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

112Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.10 Number of departments 
meeting the minimum 
requirements on 
implementing the 
Performance Management 
and Development System 
(PMDS) for their HoDs.

	HoDs have a standardised 
Performance Agreement in 
accordance with the SMS 
handbook

	The HoDs’ PAs are aligned 
to the Service Delivery 
Agreements and the budget 
speech.

	The PAs address matters 
raised by the AG.

	The Performance 
Agreement and 
Performance Review forms 
are signed by both parties.

	The PA is signed and 
submitted to OTP by the 
31st of May.

	The standardised review 
forms are used for 
performance reviews.

11 13

7 departments [OTP, 
DoH, DHS, DSRAC, 
DoE, DRPW, and 
DEDEAT] contracted 
on time. DoT, DRDAR 
and PT submitted 
their contracts late. 
DSL, COGTA and 
DSD did not have 
HoD incumbents 
and therefore were 
exempted from the HoD 
PMDS processes. 2 
departments [DoH and 
DHS] complied with all 
requirements of HOD 
PMDS. By the the end 
of the fourth quarter 
only DoH and DHS 
had conducted and 
submitted their mid-year 
reviews

HoDs for OTP; DRPW; 
DoE; DRDAR; DEDEAT; 
DoT; PT; and DSRAC 
are not compliant even 
though correspondence 
requesting the mid-year 
reviews had been sent 
out.

Individual letters have been written 
to non-compliant HoDs. The matter 
will also be escalated to Provincial 
Management Structures.
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.11 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of 
employee wellness 
programmes 

	The department has 
formally appointed wellness 
and PILIR champion/
coordinator 

	The department has 
approved policies and 
plans on HIV/Aids 
and TB Management, 
Health and Productivity 
Management; Safety, 
Health, Environment, Risk 
and Quality; and Wellness 
Management

	The department has a 
committed budget for 
the implementation of 
Employee Wellness 
Programmes

	The department monitors 
the implementation of the 
wellness plans

6 13

10 departments are 
achieving the standard 
in the implementation 
of Employee Wellness 
Programmes. 

DoH, COGTA, DEDEAT 
do not have a complete 
suite of policies. 
However, they are 
implementing some 
activities related to this 
area.

The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.



PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

114Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.12 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of 
employment relations 
strategy and policies

	The department established 
functional platform for 
engagement with unions.

	The department processes 
misconduct cases within 
the prescribed time frames.

	The department 
implements corrective and 
preventative intervention on 
misconduct

0 4
3 of the targeted 

departments [DRDAR, 
COGTA, and DoT] have 
achieved the standard. 

DoE has not succeeded 
in establishing a 
management labour 
platform. However, it 
has implemented some 
preventative measures.

The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.13 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of the 
Provincial skills and 
the human resource 
development plans

	The department has 
established Skills 
Development Committee.

	The department has a 
Workplace Skills Plan

	Department has the 1% 
skills levy budget.

	Department monitors 
the implementation of 
Workplace Skills Plan

	Programmes for youth 
(internships, bursaries, and 
TVET student placements) 
are implemented

	Department conducts line 
function training for staff.

8 13

13 [all departments 
have achieved the 
minimum standards in 
the implementation of 
the Provincial skills and 
the human resource 
development plans] 

None -
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.14 Number of youths 
trained in various skills 
development areas 

• Engineering

100 100 97 3

The Department’s involvement is 
about facilitating and linking youth 
with organizations who are willing to 
offer them experiential learning. The 
target was there an estimation based 
on past performance.   
  

• TVET 1 000 2 500 2 573 73

The Department’s involvement is 
about facilitating and linking youth 
with organizations who are willing to 
offer them experiential learning. The 
target was there an estimation based 
on past performance. 

3.15 Number of departments 
with reviewed Corporate 
ICT Governance framework 

	Corporate governance for 
ICT policy

	Corporate Governance for 
ICT Charter

	ICT Strategic Plan
	ICT implementation plan/

ICT Operational Plan

7 13
13 [all departments 

have reviewed their ICT 
governance framework 

the standard] 
None -
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.16 Number of departments 
with functional ICT 
governance structures 

	Members appointed 
formally.

	The structures meet 
quarterly.

	Decisions of the structures 
are recorded and their 
implementation tracked. 

New indicator 13
13 [all departments 
have functional ICT 

governance structures]
None -

3.17 Number of departments 
implementing ICT audit 
findings 

New indicator 13

13 [Provincial Treasury 
and DRDAR have 
addressed all the ICT 
Audit findings. DSRAC, 
CoGTA, DEDEAT, 
DRPW, DHS, DoT, 
DHS and DSD have 
significantly reduced 
their findings though not 
addressed all]

 

None -

3.18 Uptime of SITA mandatory 
network connectivity 

	WAN datalink connectivity 
to districts

	Batch printing 
	Transversal systems
	Archived data 

99% 99% 99% None -
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.19 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of the 
Provincial Anti-Corruption  
Action Plan 

	The department has 
appointed or delegated 
ethics officers/champions.

	The department has 
established Ethic 
Management Committees

	All SMS disclose their 
financial interests. 

	The department is 
conducting case 
investigations (where 
applicable). 

4 8

7 departments [OTP, 
COGTA, PT, DRPW, 
DRDAR, DoH, DS&L]
meet the applicable 
minimum standard of 
the PACAP. 

DHS did not establish 
an ethics committee, 
though they met all 
other requirements of 
the standard.

The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.
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Performance Indicator
Actual 

Achieved
2016/17

Planned Targets
2017/18

Actual Achieved
2017/18 Deviation from Target Comment on Deviation

3.20 Number of departments 
achieving minimum 
standards in the 
implementation of the 
Provincial Security 
Management Policy

	The department conducts 
security vetting of its staff.

	The department has 
security management 
policies aligned to the 
Provincial security 
management policy.

	The department implements 
findings from the physical 
security audit.

11 13

10 departments meet 
the minimum standards 
in the implementation of 
the provincial security 
management policy.

OTP and DoE do 
not have security 
management policies in 
place. In addition, OTP, 
COGTA and PT have 
recorded a decline in 
the physical security 
audit score from 
2015 to 2017 which 
points to ineffective 
implementation of the 
Minimum Physical 
Security Standards

The matter will be escalated to 
Provincial Management Structures 
while efforts to support these 
departments will continue.

3.21 Number of Anti-Corruption 
backlog cases investigated New indicator 20 30 cases investigated 10

There has been improvements in the 
case alignment process between the 
OTP and Public Service Commission 
which has resulted in an accurate 
update of information.

Changes to Planned Targets
	None 

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance
	These are outlined in the ‘comment on deviation’ column 
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Linking Performance with Budget

2017/2018 2016/2017

Sub- Programme Name Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sub-Programme 3.1: Programme Management for Institutional 
Development and Organisational Support               944 592 352 3 077 2 995 82

Sub-Programme 3.2: Institutional Support Services             10 636 10 561 75 12 243 10 247 1 996

Sub-Programme 3.3: Human Capital and Talent Management Support 
Services

            
         17 820 15 825 1 995 14 715 14 647 68

Sub-Programme 3.4: Human Resource Development Support Services             
43 051 37 913 5 138 36 362 35 879 483

Sub-Programme 3.5: Information Technology Management             74 183 73 920 263 81 676 80 561 1 115

Sub-Programme 3.6: Anti-corruption and Security Management 8 548 7 949 599 7 589 7 493 96

TOTAL 155 182 146 760 8 422 155 662 151 822 3 840
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Goods and services under expenditure of R3,623m (2.3%) is mainly due 
to money paid back for interdepartmental claims for Provincial centralised 
recruitment, projected catering, travel and subsistence for officials attending 
meetings for Programme not utilised; and projected expenditure under 
Anti-Corruption and Security Management Consultants for Review of the 
Provincial Fraud Prevention Plan, awaiting approval of the document.

B5 Transfer Payments 

B5.1 Transfer payments to public entities 

Name of Public 
Entity

Services Rendered 
by the Public Entity

Amount 
Transferred 

R’000

Amount 
Spent 
R’000

Eastern Cape 
Socio Economic 
Consultative Council 
(ECSECC)

ECSECC is a 
Schedule 3C public 
entity in terms of 
the Public Finance 
Management 
Act (Act No1 of 
1999). Its core 
business is to assist 
government and 
other stakeholders 
to achieve integrated 
development for the 
Province.

R39 158 R39 158

Achievements of the Public Entity
As a stakeholder based organisation, ECSECC’s work is carried out through 
strategic partnerships. The main partners are: the controlling department, 
the Office of the Premier; the business, labour, higher education and the 
NGO sector that make up the board; SALGA and municipalities. ECSECC 
has executes joint activities and projects with these partners. Other strategic 

partnerships included the German Development Agency GIZ. The following 
are some of the highlights of the entity for the 2017/18 Financial Year:
1) Stakeholder mobilisation, planning and resource leverage for the nascent 

ocean economy sector. 
2) Intergovernmental liaison and facilitation for the Rural Agro-Industries 

and Financial Initiative (RAFI) where the three districts have signed 
agreements with their government counterparts in Province of Cordoba 
in Argentina for partnerships and investment in the agriculture sector. 

3) Development of 2030 Vision District Development Plan for OR Tambo 
District, Local Development Plan for Nyandeni Municipality and the draft 
District Development Plan for Alfred Nzo District. 

4) Design and implement a capability development programme that targeted 
Local Economic Development managers in the Alfred Nzo District, OR 
Tambo District and respective local municipalities. The purpose of this 
programme was to build a cadre of dynamic economic development 
practitioners through nurturing individual potential. The programme was 
well received and ECSECC will continue supporting practitioners in the 
year to come. 

5) Through a partnership with South Africa National Roads Agency 
(SANRAL) the organisation set up a forum of national and provincial 
government departments and municipalities with a vision to maximise 
the socio-economic impact of the N2 Wild Coast Road in the Wild 
Coast Corridor. ECSECC arranges and facilitates a quarterly briefing, 
thereby deriving collective feedback on the project and saving time and 
resources.  

6) The Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan (ECIP) developed by ECSECC 
as per the request from the Office of the Premier was approved by the 
Eastern Cape Executive Council in April 2017. 

7) Revival of the Local Government Coordination and Integration Framework 
and its approval by EXCO. ECSECC has also provided ongoing support 
to the IDP phased-in approach. This has included facilitation of provincial 
workshops, review and development of a framework and associated 
tools. To take this work forward, ECSECC is currently negotiating a 
partnership agreement for 2018/19 Financial Year.
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8) An Eastern Cape Provincial Implementation Plan (PIP) for HIV/AIDS, TB 
and STIs is now in place. The plan contains agreed provincial actions 
to be taken over the period 2017-2022, provincial targets and an M&E 
framework. To ensure full alignment and implementation, ECAC has 
ensured the PIP targets are included in relevant department’s Annual 
Performance Plans (APPs); facilitated development of seven district 
implementation plans; and supported civil society sector plans through 
the now highly active civil society forum. 

9) Continued provision of data and trend analysis to stakeholders and 

members of the public and the ECSECC website serves as a resource hub 
for stakeholders. There are two projects to note in this regard: Firstly, the 
development of socio-economic profiles for every single local, district and 
metropolitan municipality. Secondly, the development of Eastern Cape 
Social Accounting Matrix, an economy-wide impact assessment model 
for fiscal policy analysis, the building of an Eastern Cape Computational 
General Equilibrium (CGE) model and fiscal policy analysis carried out 
in collaboration with Provincial Treasury, the University of Fort Hare and 
Nelson Mandela University. 

B5.2 Transfer payments to all Organisations other than Public Entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

Name of transferee Purpose for which the 
funds were to be used

Amount budgeted for
(R’000)

Amount transferred
(R’000) Reasons why funds were not transferred

Youth Projects To fund various youth 
projects 20 360 10 022

The under expenditure of R10.3 million  in Special 
Programmes Unit is due to youth development project in 
partnership with Department of Defence & Military Veterans. 
The registration and database creation process, including 
taking finger prints by 400 young people across the province 
took longer than anticipated to finalise.

Small Town Revitalization

To develop internal roads, 
electrification, street lights, 
storm water, sanitation 
in seven identified small 
towns in the Province

96 945             96 898
Procurement processes in various municipalities were 
delayed and in some cases materials were delivered 
late, which translated to under-expenditure on the 
project. 
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B6 Conditional Grants

B6.1 Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid
	The Department does not have conditional grants 

B7 Donor Funds

B7.1 Donor Funds Received
	The department does not have donor funds 

B8 Capital Investment
	The department does not have capital investments 
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PART C: GOVERNANCE

C1 Introduction 
This chapter outlines the efforts of the department to maintain good 
governance structures in order to effectively, efficiently and economically 
utilise state resources, which are funded by the tax payer.

C2 Risk Management
The Accounting Officer has continued to take calculated risks in a way 
that does not jeopardize the direct interests of stakeholders, with due 
consideration for the goals and objectives of the department’s strategic 
plan. It is the policy of the Office of the Premier that sound management 
of risk will enable the department to anticipate and respond to changes 
in its service delivery environment, as well as make informed decisions 
under conditions of uncertainty. The policy is implemented through a risk 
management strategy, which forms part of the department’s internal control 
and governance framework: 
	The strategy explains the department’s underlying approach to risk 

management, documents the roles and responsibilities of the department, 
as well as its Management, Audit and Internal Audit committees, as well 
as other key parties. It also outlines key aspects of the risk management 
process, and identifies the main reporting procedures. 

	In addition, the risk management describes the processes used by the 
department to evaluate the effectiveness of the department’s internal 
control processes. 

	The aim of the strategy is not to have risk eliminated from the department’s 
activities, but rather to ensure that every effort is made by the department 
to manage risk in order to maximise potential opportunities and minimise 
the adverse effects of risk. The intention of this strategy is to provide a 
consistent approach on how risks are managed, integrated and reported 
against business plans.

	The strategy introduces a risk culture, which will evolve with time as a 
result of improved awareness and understanding brought about through 
skill and process development. Risk culture influences the decisions of 
management and employees even if they are not consciously weighing 
risks and benefits.

The department conducts annual risk assessments. A quarterly review of 
risks helps to determine the effectiveness of the risk management strategy 
and also identifies new and emerging risks. 

Risk Management Committee
The Accounting Officer has delegated the Risk Management Committee 
(RMC) with the responsibilities of reviewing the effectiveness of the 
department’s risk management systems, practices and procedures, and 
providing recommendations for improvement. The Committee contributes to 
overseeing the implementation of effective, efficient and transparent financial 
and risk management systems and processes in line with the PFMA (Sec. 
38) and Treasury Regulations (TR 9.1.1) prescripts. The Risk Management 
Committee also serves to oversee the following committee work: 
	The Fraud Prevention and Ethics Management Committee  ensures 

accountability for anti-corruption and fraud prevention  in line with the 
department’s fraud prevention plan, and also serves to strengthen 
measures for managing unethical conduct and promoting integrity in the 
department; 

	The Security Management Committee ensures that effective Security 
strategies and policies exist and are implemented in the department; and 

	The Occupational Health and Safety Committee ensures that there is 
accountability for the Employee Health and Wellness strategies in the 
department. 

The Risk Management Committee Charter details the scope, roles, rules 
and responsibilities of the RMC. 

The risk management strategy provides that the Audit Committee’s role is 
to advise the OTP management on the effectiveness of risk management 
within the department. During the year, the Audit Committee continued to 
advise the department on risk management and independently monitored 
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the effectiveness of the system of risk management. The Audit Committee 
review reported on the state of risk management, together with aspects 
requiring improvement accompanied by the RMC’s recommendations on 
addressing such issues. 

Progress in the management of risks
For Programme 1, 86% [31 out of 36] risk management action plans were 
implemented and 14% [5 out of 36] action plans were not implemented. 
The non-implementation of action plans in the Core Staff, relates to the 
development of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and the automation 
of records which were not achieved. The management decided to prioritise 
the automation of Human Resources and Supply Chain records; however, the 
establishment of the Premier’s Registry commenced in the last quarter of the 
year as means to facilitate e-Records. The establishment of a departmental 
PERSAL forum, was deferred for 2018/19 Financial Year. The last area of 
under-performance in Programme 1 relates to the Disaster Management 
plan which was not be finalised, however the department is currently 
engaging with the Provincial Disaster Management Team for guidance. 
The Business Continuity Plan has been prioritised for the first Quarter ICT 
Steering Committee meeting.

For Programme 2, 62% [8 out of 13] risk management action plans were 
implemented, while 38% [5 out of 13] actions were not finalised. The 
unsuccessful co-ordination of the Provincial intergovernmental (IGR) Forum 
relates to outstanding inputs from other coordinating departments. The 
Draft Terms of reference will be presented on the next scheduled sitting. 
The recruitment processes did not result in the filling of the GM: PME the 
post which is still vacant with an acting GM. The envisaged partnership with 
universities were still not formalised, and the MoAs with the universities have 
been redrafted such that the deliverables per university are in line with each 
institutions’ comparative advantage. Consultations with the 2 metropolitan 
municipalities, the Joe Gqabi District Municipality and the House of Traditional 
Leaders are yet to be conducted for the mapping of infrastructure projects 
(B5s) by GIS. The assessment on the functionality of war rooms was not 
conducted in Alfred Nzo, Buffalo City Metro, Joe Gqabi and O.R. Tambo 

municipalities.

For Programme 3, 79% [11 out of 14] risk management action plans were 
implemented, while 21 [3 out of 14] action plans were not implemented. 
The reasons for non-implementation are as follows: (i) The restructuring of 
the PCMT from coordinating only recruitment related aspects, to include 
Provincial Performance on other areas, e.g. Monitoring & Evaluation, etc. 
proposal made earlier during the financial year was not successful and is yet 
to be revisited.; (ii) the Provincial HRD cost recovery is now intended to be 
implemented from the 2018/19 Financial Year due to outstanding baseline 
information from departments on trainees failing to attend scheduled training 
and, (iii) the Provincial Conflict of Interest policy will be finalised in the first 
quarter of the 2018/19 Financial Year as it is still in the consultation stage – it 
has already been consulted during the launch of the Provincial Ethics Officer 
Forum and during the Anti-Corruption Practitioners meeting. 

Cumulatively 50 out of 63 risk management action plans, which is 79%, 
were successfully implemented. This indicates a significant effort in the 
management of risks. However, it cannot be said that this has translated into 
improvements in the department’s performance. A better risk management 
culture through increased awareness is required to ensure that the 
department improves in this regard. 

C3 Fraud and Corruption
The Risk Management Strategy of the department includes a Fraud 
Prevention Plan. Through the fraud prevention plan, the OTP has committed 
to reject fraud as a business norm. As such this plan encompasses elements 
of the Fraud Risk Management Policy, Minimum Anti-Corruption Capacity 
Requirements, Disciplinary Code and Procedures, and the Ethics Strategy 
(amongst others) as it seeks to limit the risk of fraud within the organisation. 
The Fraud Prevention Plan also prescribes the scope of fraud prevention and 
the relevant role players. Progress made on implementing the department’s 
fraud prevention plan is reviewed and overseen by the Risk and Audit 
Committees. 
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There are various mechanisms that are put in place for whistleblowing. 
The Whistle Blowing Policy defines the mechanisms that may be used to 
report fraud and corruption. While the policy seeks to encourage whistle 
blowing and protection of the employee for disclosure, more needs to be 
done to improve awareness. As such, we conduct awareness workshops 
and campaigns to ensure that people receive the relevant information. To 
date the department has no cases reported through walk-in and nothing 
came through the National Anti-Corruption Hotline (NACH).

C4 Minimising Conflict of Interest
The Risk Management unit facilitates the submission of annual financial 
disclosures for the SMS via the e-Disclosure framework and all relevant 
prescripts as prescribed by the national Department of Public Service and 
Administration. The financial disclosures are verified for the assessment 
of potential and/or actual conflict of interest which are followed up on to 
ensure that they are cleared. During the year, officials in the MMS and those 
in Finance and Supply Chain Management were added in the categories 
required for e-Disclosure. The department has achieved full compliance 
in this regard except for one official (working in SCM) who has been on 
extended sick leave.

On a quarterly basis, feedback is provided to the Provincial Treasury (PT) on 
its conflict of interest report sent to all departments regarding officials found 
registered on the Provincial Supplier Database. The Risk Management unit 
ensures that these conflicts are cleared from the PT report. New officials are 
advised of the relevant government directives and assisted to de-register 
themselves on the supplier database. The majority that make the list of 
officials trading with the State are Learners placed throughout the Provincial 
Administration, employed through the OTP.

The department maintains a register of all gifts received and made as 
determined by the Policy and Procedure on Managing Gifts. Where a 
potential or actual conflict of interest arises, an enquiry is conducted and the 
relevant remedial action is recommended for the approval of the Accounting 
Officer.

C5 Code of Conduct 
The Risk Management Unit upholds the Code of Conduct as included in 
the revised Public Service Regulations 2016.The Ethics Strategy has been 
amended to include the provisions of the Public Service Regulations 2016 
to ensure that all employees comply with the said Regulations and the Code 
of Conduct. The Ethics Strategy is amended regularly to ensure that it is 
updated and applicable to current developments. Significant challenges lie in 
the implementation of certain parts of the Ethics Strategy. These challenges 
will be resolved on the framework prescribed by the DPSA has been 
developed. Whistleblowing mechanisms have been advanced to address 
non-compliance with the Code of Conduct. It is envisaged that all employees 
should report all contraventions of the Code of Conduct, however, due to the 
low levels of reporting, it can be concluded that the department does comply 
with the provisions of the Public Service Code of Conduct. A breach of the 
Code of Conduct would result in disciplinary action being taken depending 
on the nature of the offence. The process and sanctions to be adopted are 
prescribed in the Code of Conduct. Annually, officials in the department 
engage on sessions to discuss the Code for awareness and understanding, 
and sign an acknowledgement thereof. 

C6 Health, Safety and Environmental Issues
The department has an Employee Wellness Unit whose aim is to advance the 
wellness management agenda for the Public Service. Its purpose is to drive 
the departmental wellness management objectives and ensure that specific 
results are achieved in line with the priorities as identified EHW Strategic 
Plan for the Public Service. The department assists employees to become 
aware of, and make choices towards a more successful existence in both 
their personal and working lives. This is done through advocating employees 
to take active steps to curb exposure to chronic diseases and mitigate their 
debilitating impact on personal lives and productivity.  Specific attention 
is placed on the implementation of the programmes that are addressing 
4 wellness pillars as identified by DPSA namely: Wellness Management, 
Health and Productivity Management, HIV/AIDS and TB Management, and 
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SHERQ Management (Safety, Health, Environment, Risk, and Quality)

Wellness government structures: OTP has a functional health and safety 
committee to ensure a safe working environment for its employees. The 
following sub Committees (task teams) were also reviewed to ensure good 
governance in driving safety issues:
	First aiders and peer educators 
	Safety, health and environment representatives 
	Fire fighters were also appointed and trained

Wellness systems, plans and policies:  The SHERQ operational plan 
for the 2017/18 Financial Year was developed and submitted to the DPSA 
via OTP’s transversal institutional development and organisational support 
programme. Emergency plan workshop was conducted for the SHEQ 
structure. 
·	 Trauma debriefing sessions were coordinated on the 18th and 19th of 

July 2017 in an attempt to address the trauma resulting from the fire 
incident of the 30th June 2017. At least 150 employees were expected to 
attend one hour therapy sessions; 75 per day over a two day period. Out 
of a total of 150 expected employees only 68 registered; however only 
21% eventually attended over the 2 day period.  

·	 ICAS Online educational Awareness:  The following information was 
communicated in the month of July: Prevent joint pain at work, Myths 
about depression, How to handle hearing loss. 

·	 Wellness (Health Awareness) day took place on the 14th of December 
2017 at Steve Biko Centre. The session was attended by 293 employees 
out of an expected 350. The programme entailed: a Re-launch of the 
GEMS fitness programme, Health Screening, a Sexual Harassment 
presentation, an HIV/AIDS Talk, Health talk covering Men’s issues, and 
a Financial Fitness and Motivational talk.

	 

	 

	 

Safety health environment risk quality management
·	 Evacuation training was conducted on the 12th April 2017 and was 

attended by SHE representatives. 
·	 A Safety audit/ Evacuation assessment was conducted on the 6th April 

2017.
·	 IOD Awareness sessions were conducted from 10-12 April 2017.
·	 The OTP main building caught fire on the 30th of June 2017. The DoH was 

approached and conducted an inspection of the building on 13 July 2017. 
An inspection report was issued which revealed that improper cleaning 
materials were utilised (i.e. general purpose cleaning detergents not fire 
specific detergents). It was also recommended that the building must be 
ventilated and a professional cleaning service provider sourced which 
will utilise proper fire detergents. 

·	 BCM conducted the first inspection on the 10th of July 2017 and declared 
the building unsafe for occupation and made recommendations that air 
circulation be maximised pending the next inspection. On the 18th of July 
2017 a follow-up inspection was conducted however it was established 
that some of the recommendations were not implemented and thus the 
building remained unsafe for occupation. 

·	 The DoL conducted its inspection on the 18th of July 2017 and interviewed 
the SHE Practitioner on compliance issues around the legislated safety 
structures at the workplace and the availability of proper signage for 
emergency situations. 

·	 SHERQ compliance tool was submitted to DPSA.
·	 Attendance was fair with a turnover of 52% for the safety workshop 

conducted on 14 March 2018,
·	 Super sounders were purchased to assist in the fire drill.
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	The Department must ensure that integrated planning is 
implemented in the Province and encourage cluster based 
planning.

	The Department must minimize the use of Consultants in 
conducting research, Universities must be utilized in assisting 
Departments with research work.

	The Department must strengthen Intergovernmental Relations 
in the Province.

	The Department must fill all the vacant posts within the M&E 
Unit, to strengthen the capacity of the unit and ensure that 
performance monitoring is done in all Provincial Departments.

	The Department must provide the committee with a detailed 
report explaining the discrepancies in the figures allocated to 
Programme 3 (IDOS). 

	The Department must provide the necessary support and 
guidance including setting time frames for finalization of the 
second and third notch as well as HROPT for all Provincial 
Departments, and provide the committee with a report on the 
status of implementation of the above matters.

C7 Portfolio Committees
As part of its accounting to the oversight bodies, the Department attended 
Portfolio Committee Meetings during the year under review. A summary of 
the issues raised by the Portfolio Committee is contained in the table below.

Date April 2017

Purpose Consideration of the Budget Vote of the OTP

Key Issues 
raised

	The OTP must provide a detailed report to the committee 
explaining the discrepancy in figures allocated for Operation 
Masiphathisane. The Department also needs to raise 
awareness regarding Operation Masiphathisane, its purpose 
and its function to all relevant stakeholders.

	The Department must ensure that the broadband roll-out 
is implemented, as this will allow the Province to adopt 
and introduce innovative solutions such as the e-health 
and e-learning systems.The Department must develop an 
electronic Media Monitoring system to increase effectiveness 
and the scope of coverage amongst all platforms.

	The Department must strengthen the support it provides to 
the Department of Health with regards to the medico-legal 
cases and provide quarterly reports to the committee on the 
interventions made.

	The Department must as a matter of urgency ensure the 
finalization of the research of the Home of Legends to improve 
the branding in the Province.

	The Department must ensure that there is alignment between 
HODs’ Performance Agreements and the MECs’ Service 
Delivery Agreements in the Province.  
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	The Department must provide the necessary support to all 
departments that have not reviewed and or finalized their 
organograms before the end of the term. 

	The Department must ensure that steps are taken to assist 
the Department of Education and Department of Health in the 
management of PILIR and in fast tracking the resolution of all 
these cases.

	The Office of the Premier must conduct competency 
assessment on SMS personnel in terms of DPSA 
determination.

	The Department must work with Provincial Treasury to closely 
monitor the compliance of Departments with the 30-day 
payment of suppliers and must take necessary action against 
Departments that fail to comply with the rule.

	The Department must engage with the TVET Colleges in 
identifying priority skills that are needed in the Province and 
closing the identified gaps in the Curriculum.

	The Department must ensure that there is a central information 
database in the Province by the end of the financial year.

Date November 2017

Purpose Consideration of 2017/18 Financial Oversight Report for OTP

Key Issues 
raised

	The Department must provide a plan of action and a strategy 
to mitigate, minimize and act to eliminate non-transfer of 
funds, non-filling of vacant posts, payment of performance 
bonuses and delays in invoicing. A report must be submitted 
to the committee within 30 days.

	The Office of the Premier must closely monitor the payment 
of creditors and its spending in order to avoid the financial 
year end spending spike which results in accruals.

	The Office of the Premier must at all times ensure full 
compliance with PMDS. To this end, a report must be 
submitted to the committee on the status of the contracting 
and quarterly reviews conducted for the period under review.

	The OTP must ensure that Audit findings are implemented and 
must provide the committee with the alternative management 
action plan that will be implemented to remedy internal control 
weaknesses.

	The Office of the Premier is commended for the progress on 
the organizational structures. The Office of the Premier must 
continue to provide support to departments such as Social 
Development, Transport and Roads and Public Works that 
are still lagging behind in the process of finalization of their 
organizational structures.

	The Provincial Communication must be strengthened in 
order to ensure the effective marketing and stakeholder 
participation.

	The Department must properly monitor its spending patterns 
to ensure that the programme does not underspend. The 
department must also ensure that service delivery is not 
compromised. 

	The department must ensure that the front line service 
delivery activities are achieved especially the Presidential 
and the Premier’s hotline and recruitments are taking place 
to improve service delivery.

	OTP must ensure that there is standard payment of interns 
and learnership in the province. 

	The OTP must come-up with the plan to improve utilization of 
the ECD grant to improve infrastructure in the province.

	OTP must come up with a plan of ensuring that scheduled 
meetings for HODs takes place to improve performance and 
be able to resolve departmental priorities.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure the Heads of 
Department technical working group and clusters sit.

	The Office of the Premier must engage with ECSECC on the 
customization and utilization of the ECSECC’s monitoring 
tool.

	The planning unit must assist Provincial Departments in 
setting up credible targets.

	The Office of the Premier must urgently attend to the filling 
the posts in this unit.

	The department must collaborate with ECSECC on the 
development of automated M&E system
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	The department must collaborate with ECSECC and 
universities to leverage on their research capability.

	The Department must ensure that all vacant funded posts in 
this critical sub-programme are filled.

	The department procures the equipment outright, and OTP 
should build its own datacenter to improve service delivery.

	The department must submit to the committee a written 
commitment from the departments that are affected.

	The department must enforce and strengthen processes of 
consequence management throughout the province.

	Inter-Governmental Relations must be strengthened in the 
province.

	The OTP must ensure proper planning and allocation of 
budget.

	The department must keep up the good work it is doing 
in relation to partnership arrangements on international 
relations.

	The Executive Council or Executive Management of 
the province must enforce an increased pace on the 
implementation of some economic initiatives related to the 
international partnerships.

Date November 2017

Purpose Consideration of 2017/18 Financial Oversight Report for 
Special Programmes

Key Issues 
raised

	The Office on the Status of Children must, in its future plans, 
target the delivery of sanitary towels in all districts in the same 
financial year.

	The Office on the Status of Disabled People must submit a 
report to the Committee within 30 days after the adoption of 
this report on training conducted in other districts and the 
metros.

	The Office on the Status of Disabled people must, in its 
future plans, target the conduction of these intergenerational 
sessions in all districts in the same financial year.

	The Youth Office must submit to the Committee a report on 
how the Provincial Youth Maritime Development Programme 
will be rolled out since the students have been placed in 
international line cruisers.

	The Office on the Status of Women must extend these Gender-
based violence awareness and Economic Empowerment 
Programmes for women campaigns to other areas of the 
Province and must submit a report in this regard within 30 
days after the adoption of this report.

	The Department must develop a template for Departments to 
use when reporting on Special Programmes to the Office of 
the Premier and to the Committee. 

	The Department must ensure that there is integrated planning 
amongst the various Departmental Special Programmes 
Units. This will bring about better co-ordination of the work 
being done.

	The Department must, within 30 days after the adoption of 
this report, submit to the Committee a report on the reasons 
for the over-expenditure.

Date November 2017

Purpose Consideration of the 2016/17 Annual report for OTP

Key Issues 
raised

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that the process of 
repositioning and alignment of its organizational structure 
with the generic structure for OTPs in the country is finalized 
without delay and that vacant funded posts are filled without 
delay in order to ensure effective service delivery.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that the irregular 
expenditure is investigated and that due process is followed 
in respect of consequence management, recovery, write-off 
or condonation of the irregular expenditure. The Office of the 
Premier must further provide the committee 
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	with a detailed plan on how the incurrence of irregular 
expenditure will be prevented in future.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that the wasteful 
expenditure is investigated, and that due process is followed 
in respect of consequence management, recovery, write-off 
and condonation of the wasteful expenditure.

	The Office of the Premier must provide the committee with a 
report indicating why the department continuously fails to fully 
comply with PMDS. Further, the committee must be provided 
with a strategy on what the department will do in future to 
ensure full compliance with PMDS.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that all programmes 
implement the Risk Management action plans and in the event 
of failure to implement by respective programme managers, 
take appropriate action to ensure implementation. 

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that there is a 
person acting in the position of spokesperson whenever 
the spokesperson is not available for any reason in order to 
ensure that service deliver is not adversely affected.

	The Office of the Premier must conduct an impact assessment 
with a view to ascertain effectiveness of the Masincokole and 
Ikhwelo Publications as communication tools.

	The Office of the Premier through the relevant 
Intergovernmental Relations structures must ensure the 
co-operation and buy-in of the Department of Co-operative 
Governance and Traditional Affairs in the project of training 
municipalities on by-law development.

	The committee must be provided with a clear strategy on the 
implementation of key controls related to disaster recovery 
planning and facilities and environmental controls.

	The Office of the Premier must provide the committee with an 
action plan with clear timeframes on how it intends to address 
the lack of internal controls in the ICT Environment.

	The department must provide the committee with a cost 
implications as well as cost benefit analysis of co-sourcing 
versus in-sourcing of some of the Internal Audit functions.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that the process of 
repositioning and alignment with organizational structure with 
the generic structure for OTP is finalized without delay and 
that vacant funded posts are filled without delay in order to 
ensure effective service delivery. Further, the department 
must provide the committee with a plan on how it will curb 
delays in the signing of Service Level Agreements for youth 
related projects.

	The Office of the Premier should monitor the payment of 
Creditors and must ensure that departments comply with 
the 30 days payment as required by the law. The committee 
must be provided with quarterly reports on the compliance of 
Departments.

	The Office of the Premier must strengthen accountability 
levels in the Province.

	The Department must ensure that the infrastructure plans are 
aligned to the provincial priorities.

	The Department must ensure that research findings are utilized 
in policy development and service delivery improvement in 
order to ensure evidence based decision making.

	The Office of the Premier in collaboration with COGTA 
must ensure that the newly amalgamated municipalities are 
provided with the necessary support to ensure viability.
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	 The Department must ensure that governance structures 
that involve citizens such as ward committees, war rooms 
and front line service delivery monitors are fully functional and 
effectively utilized to improve access to quality services.

	The Department must ensure that there is sound and effective 
Intergovernmental Governance arrangements, ensure that 
agendas for different IGR structures are aligned and tracking 
of the implementation of decisions is in place

	The Department must ensure that the capacity challenges 
are addressed, five (5) district municipalities are supported 
and their IDPs are aligned to the provincial priorities.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that it takes all 
necessary action to ensure the establishment and the 
functioning of the Integrated Service Delivery Model.

	The Office of the Premier, COGTA and Provincial Treasury 
must provide the necessary support to Municipalities in the 
appointment of Section 56 and Section 57 managers.

	The Department must ensure that Memorandum of 
Understanding (MoU) with Universities on research is finalized 
and ensure that the consultation process is expedited.

	The department must ensure that funds for skilling young 
people at Tertiary level are available and accessible to 
deserving learners.

	The department must ensure that all 13 Department are 
implementing the Operations Management Framework for 
effective management.

	The department must ensure that the Planning Commission’s 
Communication Plan is in place to improve the service 
delivery process.

	The Department must ensure that all 13 Departments have 
approved Culture Change and Batho Pele Revitalization 
Plans to improve professionalism in the public service.

	The Department must ensure that HODs’ forums are effective 
and that matters raised in the HODs’ forums are implemented 
and project management capacity matters are adhered to.

	ECSECC is commended for maintaining a clean audit for five 
consecutive financial years and must share best practices 
with OTP and other departments.

	The Office of the Premier must fast track the legislative 
process on the founding legislation for ECSECC in order to 
ensure the effective and smooth functioning of the entity.

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that the ECSECC 
continues to perform well, its capabilities are not shaken 
up by budget cuts, vacant posts are filled and fast track the 
process of developing the white paper or legislation for the 
smooth functioning of the entity.

	ECSECC and OTP must finalize all the outstanding funding 
agreements and procurement processes with the construction 
company to fast track the uMzimvubu Dam project and ensure 
that the Municipality concerned, Traditional Leaders and the 
community members are part of the process. 

	The Provincial Government should ensure that, departments 
fill the vacant funded posts and do not exceed the 90 days 
requirement.

	The views of customers and clients during pre-SOPA and post-
SOPA engagements should find expression in the reports of 
the Department as these provide meaningful insights on the 
views of stakeholders on the services delivered.

	The Office of the Premier should strengthen the capacity of 
Provincial Communication in order to ensure that government 
speaks with one voice and that government’s good work is 
show cased.
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	The Province should strengthen its fight against crime and 
awareness programmes on drug abuse through the relevant 
Provincial Departments.

	The Office of the Premier working with Provincial Treasury 
must provide necessary support to the Department of Health 
in order to ensure that the root causes to medical negligence 
cases are addressed at the source with the view to minimize 
litigation.

	The Office of the Premier and COGTA must strengthen 
their support to municipalities in order to improve their audit 
outcomes and ensure service delivery is in place.

	The Office of the Premier must move with speed in ensuring 
that the HODs for COGTA and Safety and Liaison are 
appointed.

	The Heads of Departments (HODs) as well as the clusters 
are not sitting and thereby render the Executive Council 
ineffective. This is a bad reflection as the Provincial 
departments have in their reports attributed the delays in the 
filling of vacant funded posts to the delays in processing and 
approval of their posts by the Provincial Coordinating and 
Monitoring Team (PCMT) whereas the report submitted by the 
Office of Premier indicates that it is Departmental recruitment 
processes that are causing the delays in the filling of posts.

	There is no flow of information from Senior Management, 
Office of the Director General and the Premier.

Date November 2017

Purpose Consideration of the 2016/17 Annual report for Special 
Programmes

Key Issues 
raised

	The Office on the Status of Children must, in its future plans, 
target the delivery of sanitary towels in all the districts in the 
same financial year.

	The Office on the Status of Children must, in its future plans, 
target the conduction of empowerment sessions in all districts 
in the same financial year.

	The Committee welcomes the establishment of the Provincial 
Disability Rights Machinery. The Department must ensure 
that this machinery is representative of all disability rights 
activists.

	The Office on the Status of Disabled Persons must, within 
30 days after the adoption of this report, submit a report to 
the Committee on training in this regard taking place in other 
districts and in the metros.

	The Office on the Status of Disabled Persons must, within 30 
days after the adoption of this report, submit a report to the 
Committee on a plan to roll out the Computer Skills training in 
other districts and in the metros.

	The Office on the Status of Disabled Persons needs to be 
part of those departments that have achieved the targets for 
employing people with disabilities in order to set an example.

	The Office on the Rights of Older Persons must, in its future 
plans, target the conduction of these intergenerational 
sessions in all districts in the same financial year.

	The Department must, within 30 days after the adoption of this 
report, submit to the Committee a report on the differences 
between the ‘Know your rights” and the “Legal Rights of Older 
persons” campaigns.

	The Youth Office must submit to the Committee a report on 
the progress
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	and performance of the Young Women’s Empowerment 
Programme within 30 days after the adoption of this report.

	The Office on the status of women must, within 30 days of 
the adoption of this report, provide the Committee with a 
provincial breakdown of gender equity figures at SMS level 
in all departments.

	The Office on the Status of Women must continue to provide 
Gender Based Violence intervention programmes to other 
areas in the province as and when the need arises.

	The Office of the Premier must issue a directive or a circular 
on the status of Special Programmes Units in Departments 
in terms of where they are supposed to be located in the 
organogram as there seems to be confusion in Departments 
in this regard. A report must be submitted to the Committee 
within 30 days after the adoption of this report. 

	The Office of the Premier should lead by example, and 
ensure that it achieves the 50-50% gender equity targets at 
SMS level.

	The Premier must impress upon members of the Cabinet the 
need to meet targets with regards to employing people with 
disabilities. Currently, the Department of Education and the 
Department of Health are not doing enough to employ people 
with disabilities. These two departments have the potential to 
be the biggest employers of persons with disabilities in the 
Province.

	The Premier must consider creating a sub-programme in the 
Special Programmes unit in order to bring in much-needed 
budget resources. It must also impress upon members of the 
Cabinet the need for cooperation from departmental SPUs

	The Office of the Premier must ensure that the Departments’ 
Special Programme Units submit projects to the unit for better 
coordination of the programmes and projects

C8 SCOPA Resolutions
The department did not receive any resolutions from SCOPA in the year 
under review.

C9 Prior Modifications to Audit Reports

Nature of qualification, 
disclaimer, adverse opinion 

and matters of non-compliance

Financial year 
in which it first 

arose

Progress made in 
clearing / resolving the 

matter

Irregular Expenditure 2014/15 Awaiting condonation by 
the National Treasury

Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure 2014/15 Will be condoned in the 

2018/19 Financial Year

C10 Internal Control Unit
The Internal Control Unit continues to assist the department in checking 
compliance with the relevant policies, regulations and Acts in our expenditure. 
Additionally the unit has developed an Audit Improvement Plan which is 
aimed at addressing all the matters of non-compliance or concern raised by 
the Office of the Auditor-General and the Internal Audit.

C11 Internal Audit and Audit Committee
Objectives of Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function provides an independent assurance that controls 
are in place to manage and mitigate risks and that they are adequate and 
functioning effectively. In undertaking its audit work, the Internal Audit 
Activity has complied with Section 38(1) (a) (ii) of the PFMA in terms of 
its establishment, the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 
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Auditing, as well as the Code of Ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors 
and any other relevant guidelines.

Summary of audit work done
The scope of work of the Internal Audit Activity is encapsulated in its Risk 
based Annual and Three Year Strategic Internal Audit Plan. This plan 
indicates the objectives and the proposed scope of each audit.  The progress 
against this plan was presented to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

Internal Audit completed 81% of its audit plan, where 21 audits out of a total 
of 26 planned audits were completed. The main contributory factor to the 
audits not concluded was capacity constraints in the form of human resources 
within the unit. The internal audit plan was based on an assumption of a 
fully resourced organogram at the time. The actual capacity was less than 
anticipated with a number of vacancies throughout different stages of the 
financial year.

On a quarterly basis, the unit performed a follow-up and validation of 
progress made by management to implement recommendations arising from 

prior Auditor General Reports and Internal Audit Reports. Other audit work 
performed includes validation of quarterly performance reports and Interim 
Financial Statements and this contributed towards improving the credibility 
of information reported by the Department.

Objectives of the audit committee
The Audit Committee is an independent governance structure whose 
function is to provide an oversight role for the financial reporting process, 
system of internal control, risk management and governance. The Audit 
Committee assists the Accounting Officer/Director General in the effective 
execution of her responsibilities with the ultimate aim of the achievement of 
the Department’s objectives. 

Attendance of audit committee meetings by audit committee 
members
The Audit Committee meets on a quarterly basis with management to review 
the Department’s financial reporting process, system of internal control as 
well as risk management and governance processes within the Department.
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During the year ending 31st March 2018, the Audit Committee held meetings comprising of ordinary (4) and special meetings (4).
The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:

Name Qualifications Internal or external Date appointed Date Resigned
Total no. of 
meeting for 
2017/2018

No. of Meetings 
attended

Adv. Collen 
Weapond 
(Chairperson)

M. Tech (IT), M Tech 
(Forensics), LLB External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 08

Mr. Kevin Pather CA (SA) External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 07 (apology)

Ms. Thobeka 
Njozela

B.Compt 
(Honours), CIA, 
CCSA, CRMA

External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 08

Mr. Singa Ngqwala B.Compt (Honours) External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 07 (apology)
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C12 Audit Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31st March 
2018.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee - “AC” confirms that, it has carried out its responsibilities 
as contained in Section 38 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management 
Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  The Audit Committee also reports that 
it adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee 
Charter; regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and discharged 
all its responsibilities as contained therein.

During the year, the Committee received presentations from a variety of key 
units of the Office of the Premier -“OTP” at its quarterly meetings. These 
made a very important contribution to the Committee’s work and assisted 
in providing Committee members with appropriate oversight of operations 
throughout the Department. They also provided the Committee with an 
opportunity to follow-up on issues raised in audit reports and to stay abreast 
of developments within the Department.

Composition of the Audit Committee and Attendence
The Audit Committee comprised five independent non-executive members. 
The Audit Committee members were appointed on a three-year term ending 
in October 2018.

During the year ending 31st March 2018, the Audit Committee held meetings comprising of ordinary (4) and special meetings (4). 

Name Qualifications Internal or 
external

Date 
appointed

Date 
Resigned

Total no. of 
meetings

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Adv. Collen Weapond

M. Tech (IT), 

M Tech (Forensics), 
LLB

External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 08

Mr. Kevin Pather CA (SA) External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 07 1apology

Ms. Thobeka Njozela B.Compt (Honours), 
CIA, CCSA, CRMA External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 08

Mr. Singa Ngqwala B.Compt (Honours) External 15/ 10/ 2015 N/A 08 07 1 apology

Mr Jason O’hara CA (SA) External 15/ 10/ 2015 05/06/2017 08 none



141Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

PART C: GOVERNANCE

The Director-General, The DDGs, Corporate and Operational Support and 
the Chief Risk Officer have a standing invite to attend the meetings of the 
Committee. 

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
The Audit Committee uses the work of Internal Audit to monitor the 
effectiveness of Internal Controls in the Department. The 2017/2018 Internal 
Audit Plan, as prepared by the Internal Audit Unit “IAU”, was agreed both 
by the Committee and by the Department’s Management. Progress in 
implementing the plan was monitored by the Committee primarily through 
the quarterly progress reports that were presented to the Committee by 
the IAU. All audit reports finalised by the IAU during the financial year were 
reviewed and discussed by the Committee on a quarterly basis. 

A number of control weaknesses were reported in the reports, including 
concerns on the number and value of unverified assets in the Department, 
particularly computer equipment and ICT assets. Other internal audit reports 
also raised that some policies and procedure manuals have been in draft for 
an extended amount of time, some have not been reviewed for some time, 
and therefore have not been fully implemented to address the risks upon 
which they were to mitigate.

Critically, the Committee also focused on the timely implementation by 
management of outstanding audit recommendations as contained in the 
Audit Improvement Plan. The Committee expressed a degree of concern as 
to the timeliness of implementation of some previous audit recommendations, 
especially on ICT, and agreed to keep this under close review at its quarterly 
meetings.

Effectively addressing the findings of the Auditor General’s reports as well 
as Internal Audit reports will have a meaningful and positive impact on the 
control environment of the Department. Senior management should continue 
promoting a culture in which controls are constantly improved upon and 
where evidence of accountability and consequence management remains 
a key focus.

Risk Management 
The Risk Management Unit facilitated the identification of Strategic and 
Operational risks of the Department during the 2017/18 financial year. As 
part of this process, action plans were developed to manage the risks and 
implementation thereof monitored throughout the financial year. The audit 
committee received in its quarterly meetings, risk management reports and 
made recommendations to improve the risk management functionality as 
and when necessary.

Performance of the Department
The monitoring of the Department’s performance is a key function of 
management, Executive Management and the Executive Authority. The 
Committee has no direct line responsibility for the Department’s performance 
measurement. However, the Committee has ensured, principally through 
the Internal Audit function, that the systems of performance measurement 
and reporting, as well as the systems of internal control that underpin the 
performance management framework of the Department, remain robust and 
are addressed routinely in the audit plans.

The Department did not achieve 100% of its annual targets in the year under 
review. Management highlighted certain deficiencies in the current service 
delivery model which contributed to the under achievement of its targets.

Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Committee convened on the 25th May 2018 to review, provide inputs 
and advice on the Annual Financial Statements prior to submission to the 
Auditor General.

Annual Committee Effectiveness Review
Each year, the Transversal Internal Audit Services from Provincial Treasury 
coordinates the process of assessing the effectiveness of the Audit 
Committee, through use of assessment questionnaires that are completed 
by the audit committee members themselves, executive management and 
the chief audit executive. The overall results of the review for 2017/2018 
were extremely positive; action plans have been developed for areas where 
opportunities for improvements were identified.
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CONCLUSION 
Investigation of expenditure 
The Audit committee notes the expenditure which Management has disclosed 
as under investigation. Investigation outcomes will inform and settle (in 
case of different understanding and or interpretation of certain prescripts 
by different assurance providers). Continuous engagements between the 
AG and Management should be considered to address concerns emanating 
from the identified expenditure which is under investigation.

Recurring findings
The AC acknowledge that Management has identified and disclosed irregular 
expenditure which should therefore result in enquiry or investigation. 
Management should finalise and implement the recommendations which 
emanate from the investigation of the identified expenditure.

Interventions undertaken by the OTP
The AC notes the interventions that the OTP has undertaken to address 
emergencies in any of the provincial department’s environment, municipalities 
or entities within the province. Monitoring of the potential exposure should 
form part of the provincial risk register.

I would like to thank all members of the Committee for their contribution and 
the professional way in which meetings were conducted. To the Executive 
Authority, Director-General, Senior Management, the Internal Audit Unit, and 
the staff of the Department, our sincere appreciation for the progress made 
this year.

Advocate JC Weapond                                                                           
Date: 10 August 2018  
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Office of the Premier – Eastern Cape
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as stipulated in the policy. These delays indirectly affect the 
moderation process for both categories. In the management 
of discipline the challenge is in relation to the adherence to 
timeframes. This is caused by under resourcing of staff in the 
unit, as well as the availability of line managers when they are 
required to play their respective roles during case management 
value chain.          
 

• OD and Change Management: The department has been 
undergoing a restructuring process throughout 2017/18. As 
would be anticipated, that led to a state of uncertainty amongst 
the staff members. As a conscious remedy to that challenge, a 
change management programme was launched whereby change 
management sessions were conducted for all programmes. By 
end of the financial year 2017/18, the department had finalized 
the process of skills audit and the results were utilized in the 
person to post matching process. 

Furthermore, with respect to HR Effectiveness assessment, a 
15% decrease has been registered compared to 2016/ 2017 
assessment. However, whilst the Department adopted a coherent 
Change Management plan and program; the following challenges 
were cited during the assessment: 

• Ownership and Visibility of the programme is not yet instilled 
across branches and employees and management. 

• Line managers are not properly supported in terms of 
implementing the change management programmes. 

• This function still appears to be an add-on function without a 
fully dedicated unit.

1. INTRODUCTION 
The information contained in this part of the annual report has been 
prescribed by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration 
for all departments in the public service.

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
Various HR strategies have been developed with a view to promote 
and strengthen the quality, responsibility, value for money and 
accountability with regards to implementation of HR plan. These 
strategies include the following:

• HRD strategy that encompasses succession planning, retention 
strategy, induction and training guidelines and standard 
operations procedures.  

• Recruitment and Selection: According to the analysis recruitment 
and selection remain a challenge and posts took too much time to 
be filled. Amongst the reason that caused the delay is the delay 
in sitting during shortlisting process and the unavailability of the 
panel members both shortlisting and interviews.

• Employment Equity: The rate of women at SMS level are at 
44 and males are at 56%. This means that there is a decrease 
at representation of females as compared to the previous year. 
That requires therefore, that women empowerment programmes 
should then be focused at junior and middle management level 
in order to create a pool of capable managers who are groomed 
to be well equipped and demonstrate potential to readily compete 
and occupy senior management positions should opportunities 
be available.

• The implementation of PMDS remains a challenge from both 
levels 1-12 and SMS category. The glaring matter is in relation 
to contracting and adherence to performance reviews’ intervals 
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• Full implementation of retention policy and succession plan  

• Capacity Building on employment relations issues for line 
managers and unions.

The overall HR Effectiveness assessment reflected that the HR 
function is viewed as being aligned to strategic priorities of the 
department, especially when considering general positioning of the 
function on the organizational structure complemented by level of 
representation at strategic planning processes. 

• New policies and strategies are not widely communicated, 
leading to skepticism amongst employees to buy into those 
strategies.

• Employee championship: The overall implementation of 
Employee Health and Wellness strategy has proved to be 
successful and as a result four employee wellness operational 
plans, SHERQ compliance tool and annual report were approved 
and implemented accordingly.

The main challenge is non- implementation of the career pathing 
programmes across the Department. As 2018/19 priorities, the 
following has to be embarked upon:

• HR has to initiate programmes that promote career path for 
employees
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Identified Challenges Proposed Strategies are 

Poor relationship in department’s strategic plan and HR plan. Improved linkage between strategic plan and HRP

Line managers are not frequently informed on HR related issues which are diversity 
management, HRP, WSP and ARP.

Improved relationship with the line managers regarding HR issues

HR policies are not always demonstrating people- centered management approach. Some of the HR policies need to be reviewed to meet the departmental state of affairs

A department does not present itself as an employer of choice in relation to attraction 
and retention.

Implementation of retention programmes 
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• amount spent on personnel 

• amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances 
and medical aid. 

3. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

3.1. Personnel related expenditure

The following tables summarise the final audited personnel related 
expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In particular, it 
provides an indication of the following:
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Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Programme
Total 

expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Professional 
and special 

services 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of total 
expenditure

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000)

Administration 512 687 155 374 1 219 0 30 50

Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 103 797 47 841 0 0 46 57

Institutional Development and Organisational Support 146 762 51 913 0 0 35 70

TOTAL 763 246 255 128 1 219 0 33 177
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Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Salary band Personnel expenditure 
(R’000) % of total personnel cost No. of employees Average personnel cost 

per employee (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 210 0 19 11

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 8 989 4 39 230

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 44 565 17 116 384

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 105 309 41 151 697

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 60 805 24 56 1 085

Contract Other 1 508 1 14 108

Periodical Remuneration 725 0 4 181

Abnormal Appointment 33 017 13 1 072 31

TOTAL 255 128 100 1 471 173
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Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Programme

Salaries Overtime  Home Owners 
Allowance  Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Administration 126 521 81 3 085 2 4 056 3 4 484 3

Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 45 966 44 78 0 1 084 2 963 2

Institutional Development and Organisational Support 69 462 48 399 1 1 167 2 1 067 1

TOTAL 255 128 31 3 562 1 6 307 2 6 514 2
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Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Salary band

Salaries Overtime Home Owners Allowance Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 146 70 0 0 20 10 25 12

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 6 389 71 323 4 551 6 750 8

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 34 275 77 1 455 3 1 460 3 2 683 6

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 93 122 84 1 785 2 2 258 2 2 215 2

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 81 891 100 0 0 2 019 2 841 1

Contract Other 783 52 0 0 0 0 0 0

Abnormal Appointment 25 343 77 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 241 949 93 3 563 1 6 308 2 6 514 2
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• programme

• salary band

• critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. 
In terms of current regulations, it is possible to create a post on the 
establishment that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, 
the vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled. 

3.2. Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment 
and vacancies. 

 
The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, 
the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff 
that are additional to the establishment. 

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:
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Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2018

Programme Number of posts on approved 
establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Administration 267 226 0 41

Planning, Policy Coordination,  
Monitoring and Evaluation 80 61 15 7

Institutional Development and 
Organisational Support 78 48 38 0

TOTAL 425 335 10 48
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Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2018

Salary band Number of posts on 
approved establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Lower skilled ( 1-2) 0 0 0 9

Skilled(3-5) 45 45 0 2

Highly skilled production (6-8) 119 95 11 11

Highly skilled supervision (9-12) 173 141 13 9

Senior management (13-16) 88 54 19 17

TOTAL 425 335 10 48

Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2018

Critical occupation Number of posts on 
approved establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Administrative Related 177 120 16 29

Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals Etc 25 21 16 0

Communication and Information Related 5 2 40 0

Engineers and Related Professionals 1 1 0 0

Finance and Economics Related 7 7 0 0

Financial and Related Professionals 16 13 19 0

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 18 18 0 0
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Critical occupation Number of posts on 
approved establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

General Legal Administration 
and Related Professionals 5 2 40 0

Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 1 1 0 0

Human Resources and Organisational 
Development and Related Professionals 35 29 17 0

Human Resources Clerks 6 6 0 0

Human Resources Related 18 16 11 0

Information Technology Related 3 3 0 0

Legal Related 4 2 50 0

Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 1 0 0

Light Vehicle Drivers 2 0 50 1

Logistical Support Personnel 4 4 0 0

Material Recording and Transport Clerks 3 1 33 0

Messengers Porters and Deliverers 7 7 0 0

Other Administrative and Related Clerks And 
Organisers 5 3 0 2

Other Occupations 1 1 0 0

Risk Management and Security Services 2 2 0 0

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 29 26 7 1

Senior Managers 50 49 2 15

TOTAL 425 335 10 48
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3.3. Filling of SMS Posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and 
vacancies as it relates to members of the Senior Management Service 
by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of 
SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed timeframes and 
disciplinary steps taken.

Notes
• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories 

within an occupation – 

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons 
currently or anticipated in the future, either because such skilled 
persons are not available or they are available but do not meet the 
applicable employment criteria;

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject 
area or science or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by 
a prolonged course or study and/or specialised instruction;

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent 
exercise of discretion and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and

(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree 
of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employees.   
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Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2018

SMS Level Total number of 
funded SMS posts 

Total number of  
SMS posts filled 

% of SMS posts 
filled 

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant 

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 8 4 50 4 50

Salary Level 14 21 19 90 3 14

Salary Level 13 57 47 82 10 18

TOTAL 88 72 63 16 18
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Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2017

SMS Level Total number of 
funded SMS posts 

Total number of  
SMS posts filled 

% of SMS posts 
filled 

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant 

% of SMS posts 
vacant 

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 8 4 50 4 50

Salary Level 14 21 12 43 9 18

Salary Level 13 57 37 35 20 35

TOTAL 88 55 38 33 38

Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

SMS Level
Number of vacancies per level 

advertised in six months of 
becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per 
level filled in six months of 

becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per level 
not filled in six but filled in 12  

months

Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 2 2 0

Salary Level 13 6 6 0

TOTAL 8 8 0
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Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS 
- Advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for 
the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within 12 months

none

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

none

Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed 
timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 months for the period 1 April 2017 and 
31 March 2018

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

none
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3.4. Job Evaluation

There were no jobs evaluated in the financial year under review

3.5.  Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of 
the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Salary band
Number of employees 

at beginning of period-1 
April 2017

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department 
Turnover rate

Lower skilled ( Levels 1-2) 17 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels3-5) 32 1 8 25

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 129 8 7 5

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 139 7 18 13

Senior Management Service Bands A 50 4 6 12

Senior Management Service Bands B 17 2 1 6

Senior Management Service Bands C 9 0 3 33

Senior Management Service Bands D 2 0 0 0

TOTAL 395 22 43 11
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Table 3.5.2  Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Critical occupation
Number of 

employees at 
beginning of period-

April 2017

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department
Turnover rate

Administrative Related 158 15 19 12

Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals Etc. 25 0 4 16

Communication and Information Related 2 0 0 0

Engineers and Related Professionals 1 0 0 0

Finance and Economics Related 6 2 1 17

Financial and Related Professionals 16 0 0 0

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 18 0 0 0

General Legal Administration and Related Professionals 3 0 1 33

Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 1 0 0 0

Human Resources and Organisational Development and Related 
Professionals 33 0 2 6

Human Resources Clerks 6 0 0 0

Human Resources Related 18 0 2 11

Information Technology Related 3 0 0 0

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other Communicators 4 0 0 0

Legal Related 2 0 0 0



Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report158

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Critical occupation
Number of 

employees at 
beginning of period-

April 2017

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department
Turnover rate

Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 0 0 0

Light Vehicle Drivers 2 0 1 50

Logistical Support Personnel 4 0 0 0

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 3 0 0 0

Messengers Porters and Deliverers 7 1 1 14

Other Administrative and Related Clerks and Organisers 5 0 3 60

Other Occupations 1 0 0 0

Risk Management and Security Services 2 0 0 0

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 29 0 0 0

Senior Managers 45 6 9 20

TOTAL 395 24 43 11
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is acquired by a prolonged course or study and/or specialised 
instruction;

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires 
consistent exercise of discretion and is predominantly 
intellectual in nature; and

(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree 
of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employees.
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Notes

• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within 
an occupation – 

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced 
persons currently or anticipated in the future, either because 
such skilled persons are not available or they are available 
but do not meet the applicable employment criteria;

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified 
subject area or science or learning field and such knowledge 

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the department. 

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Termination Type  Number % of Total Resignations

Death 1 3

Resignation 10 31

Expiry of contract 12 38

Retirement 9 28

TOTAL 32 100%

Total number of employees who left as a % of total employment 10%
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Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Occupation Employees 
1 April 2017

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary level 
promotions 

as a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Progressions 
to another 

notch within a 
salary level

Notch 
progression 

as a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Administrative Related 158 5 3 93 59

Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals ETC. 25 0 0 13 52

Communication and Information Related 2 0 0 2 100

Engineers and Related Professionals 1 0 0 1 100

Finance and Economics Related 6 1 17 3 50

Financial and Related Professionals 16 0 0 12 75

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 18 0 0 14 78

General Legal Administration and Related Professionals 3 0 0 2 67

Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 1 0 0 1 100
Human Resources and Organisational Development and Related 
Professionals 33 0 0 26 79

Human Resources Clerks 6 0 0 6 100

Human Resources Related 18 0 0 14 78

Information Technology Related 3 0 0 3 100

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other Communicators 4 0 0 5 125

Legal Related 2 0 0 2 100

Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 0 0 1 100

Light Vehicle Drivers 2 0 0 0 0

Logistical Support Personnel 4 0 0 4 100

Material Recording and Transport Clerks 3 0 0 3 100
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Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Salary Band Employees 
1 April 2017

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary bands 
promotions as a % 
of employees by 

salary level

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 

level

Notch progression 
as a % of

employees by 
salary bands

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 17 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 32 0 0 26 81

Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 129 2 2 97 75

Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 139 3 2 113 81

Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 78 1 1 46 59

TOTAL 395 6 2 282 71

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Occupation Employees 
1 April 2017

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary level 
promotions 

as a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Progressions 
to another 

notch within a 
salary level

Notch 
progression 

as a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Messengers Porters and Deliverers 7 0 0 5 71

Other Administrative and Related Clerks and Organisers 5 0 0 5 100

Other Occupations 1 0 0 0 0

Risk Management and Security Services 2 0 0 2 100

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 29 0 0 26 90

Senior Managers 45 0 0 39 87

TOTAL 395 6 2 282 71



Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report162

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

3.6. Employment Equity  

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories as on 31 March 2018

Occupational category
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Senior Officials and Managers      32 5 1 1 25 1 1 66

Professionals                      35 4 0 1 39 1 1 1 82

Technicians and Associate Professionals 53 0 0 1 88 3 1 3 149

Clerks                             10 0 0 0 41 2 0 2 55

Service Shop and Market Sales Workers 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Plant and Machine Operators and Assemblers 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Labourers and Related Workers      8 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 28

TOTAL 20 0 0 0 62 2 0 2 383

Employees with disability 1 0 0 1 3 0 0 1 6
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Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational bands as on 31 March 2018

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 7

Senior Management 29 5 1 1 27 1 0 2 66

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management 58 4 0 2 60 3 2 3 132

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foreman and superintendents

37 0 0 0 92 3 0 2 134

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 11 0 0 0 33 0 0 0 44

TOTAL 140 9 1 3 214 7 2 7 383
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Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Senior Management, Permanent 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 3

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management, Permanent 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen, Permanent

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Contract (Senior Management), Permanent 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Contract (Professionally qualified), Permanent 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Contract (Skilled technical), Permanent 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6

TOTAL 13 2 0 0 29 0 0 0 22

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management, Permanent 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 3

Senior Management, Permanent 18 3 1 1 14 1 0 2 40

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management, Permanent 49 3 0 1 54 2 1 2 112

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen, Permanent

22 0 0 0 68 3 0 2 95

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making, 
Permanent 9 0 0 0 17 0 0 0 26

Contract (Top Management), Permanent 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Contract (Senior Management), Permanent 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 3

Contract (Professionally qualified), Permanent 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4

Contract (Skilled technical), Permanent 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

TOTAL 102 7 1 2 162 7 1 6 288

Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 3
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Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Senior Management, Permanent 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management, Permanent 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 5

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen, Permanent

0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 4

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6

Contract (Top Management) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Contract (Senior Management) 3 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 7

Contract (Professionally qualified) 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

Contract (Skilled technical) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Semi-skilled) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

TOTAL 10 1 1 0 19 0 0 1 31

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3
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Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Disciplinary action
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Altercation in public  1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Insubordination 3 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 7

Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Occupational category
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials and managers 3 1 0 0 13 0 0 0 17

Professionals 5 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 14

Technicians and associate professionals 4 0 0 6 0 0 0 1   11

Clerks 4 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 27

Service and sales workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators and assemblers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 16 1 0 6 45 0 0 1 69

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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3.7.  Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information regarding the signing of performance 
agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken is presented here.	

Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2017

SMS Level Total number of funded 
SMS posts

Total number of  SMS 
members

Total number of  signed 
performance agreements

Signed performance 
agreements as % of total 
number of SMS members

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 1 100%

Salary Level 16 1 1 1 100%

Salary Level 15 8 7 1 14%

Salary Level 14 21 18 2 11%

Salary Level 13 57 51 25 49%

TOTAL 88 77 29 37%
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Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 March 2018

Reasons 

SMS were affected by the organisational redesign  process during the submission of agreements eg: change in organisational and strategic functions

SMS may have completed agreements but do not submit signed documents timeously to PMDS Office

Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance agreements as on 31 March 2018

Reasons 

No disciplinary action taken 
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3.8. Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under review. The information is presented in terms of 
race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Race and Gender

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
group Cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee

African 189 363 52 4 073 21

  Male 66 144 46 1 541 23

  Female 123 219 56 2 532 20

Asian 2 3 67 78 39

  Male 1 1 100 44 44

  Female 1 2 50 34 34

Coloured 8 17 47 219 27

  Male 4 10 40 133 33

  Female 4 7 57 85 21

White 5 8 63 135 27

  Male 4 2 50 29 7

  Female 1 6 66 106 106

TOTAL 204 391 52 4 505 22
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Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within salary 

bands
Total Cost 

(R’000)
Average cost 
per employee

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (level 3-5) 34 37 91 297 8 753 0.129

Highly skilled production (level 6-8) 80 102 78 1 307 16 336 0.34

Highly skilled supervision (level 9-12) 77 177 44 2 347 30 477 0.32

TOTAL 191        316 60 3 951 55 566 0.29
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Critical occupation Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
occupation

Total Cost (R’000) Average cost per 
employee

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 16 18 89 226 14

Human Resources Clerks 4 6 67 48 12

Messengers Porters and Deliverers 5 7 71 36 7

Human Resources and Organisational Development 
and Related Professionals 15 31 48 544 36

Risk Management and Security Services 0 2 0 0 0

Finance and Economics Related 3 7 43 85 28

Logistical Support Personnel 4 4 100 70 18

Other Administrative and Related Clerks and 
Organisers 2 5 40 30 15

Other Occupations 0 1 0 0 0

Legal Related 1 2 50 59 59

Financial and Related Professionals 12 13 92 338 28

Administrative Related 63 147 42 1 665 26

Communication and Information Related 2 2 100 55 27

Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 25 28 89 402 16

Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018
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Critical occupation Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
occupation

Total Cost (R’000) Average cost per 
employee

Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals Etc. 21 21 100 171 8

Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 1 100 12 12

Human Resources Related 12 16 75 302 25

Head Of Department/Chief Executive Officer 0 1 0 0 0

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communicator 3 4 75 63 21.03

General Legal Administration and Related Professionals 1 2 50 21 21

Material Recording and Transport Clerks 3 3 100 50 17

Senior Managers 11 70 16 326 20

Engineers and Related Professionals 1 1 100 33 33

Other Information Technology Personnel 0 1 0 0 0

Light Vehicle Drivers 0 1 0 0 0

Information Technology Related 0 3 0 0 0

TOTAL 205 397 52 4 539 22
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Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a 
% of the total 
personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries Number of 

employees
% of total within 

salary bands
Total Cost 

(R’000) Average cost 
per employee

Band A 9 51 18 254 28 237 25

Band B 5 20 25 166 33 178 17

Band C 0 8 0 0 0 0

Band D 0 2 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 14 81 17 420 30 001 42

Notes

• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories 
within an occupation –	

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons 
currently or anticipated in the future, either because such skilled 
persons are not available or they are available but do not meet 
the applicable employment criteria;

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified 

subject area or science or learning field and such knowledge 
is acquired by a prolonged course or study and/or specialised 
instruction;

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent 
exercise of discretion and is predominantly intellectual in nature; 
and

(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of 
difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employees;  



175Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

3.9. Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band and major occupation. 

Table 3.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Salary band
01 April 2017 31 March 2017 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Lower skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Lev. 6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision (Lev. 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 13-16) 2 2 2 2 0 0

TOTAL 2 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.9.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Major occupation
01 April 2017 31 March 2017 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Professionals and managers 2 0.5 2 0.5 0 0
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3.10. Leave utilisation 

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The following tables provide an indication of the 
use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Salary band Total days
% Days with 

Medical 
certification

Number of 
Employees using 

sick leave

% of total 
employees using 

sick leave
Average days 
per employee

Estimated Cost 
(R’000)

Lower Skills (Level 1-2) 18 67 7 58 3 1 144

Skilled (levels 3-5) 345 89 38 11 10 236

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 951 74 109 11 9 1 213

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9 -12) 1052 76 140 13 8 827

Top and Senior management (levels 13-16) 402 67 45 11 7 1 623

TOTAL 2 768 82 339 12 8 5 043
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Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Salary band Total days
% Days with 

Medical 
certification

Number of 
Employees using 
disability leave

% of total 
employees using 
disability leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated Cost 
(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 87 0 3 25 44 74

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 39 0 2 16 20 60

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 155 0 5 41 78 362

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 182 0 2 17 91 754

TOTAL 463 0 12 25 58 1 250

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of 
annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 3.10.3 Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Salary band Total days taken Number of Employees using annual 
leave Average per employee

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 108 25 5

Skilled Levels 3-5) 948 47 21

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 2 526 130 20

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 3 526 177 21

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 1 514 86 20

TOTAL 8 619 465 19
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Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Salary band Total days of capped 
leave taken

Number of 
Employees using 

capped leave

Average number 
of days taken per 

employee

Average capped 
leave per employee 
as on 31 March 2018

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 92

Skilled Levels 3-5) 2 1 2 92

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 117

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 2 2 1 125

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 71

TOTAL 4 3 1 109

The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 3.10.5 Leave Payouts for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Reason Total amount (R’000) Number of employees Average per employee 
(R’000)

Leave pay-out for 2017/18 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous cycle 0 0 0

Capped leave pay-outs on termination of service for 2017/18 1 597 18 8 872

Current leave pay-out on termination of service for 2017/18 16 2 8 000

TOTAL 1 613 20 80 650
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Question Yes No Details, if yes

3.11. HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) Key steps taken to reduce the risk 

None

Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and provide the required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement 
the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name and position.

X Ms N. Maceba 
Snr Manager: SHRIMS

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific 
staff members to promote the health and well-being of your employees? If so, 
indicate the number of employees who are involved in this task and the annual 
budget that is available for this purpose.  

                   
X  

The department has a fully-fledged Employee Wellness unit with  2 Staff 
Members
1 x manager
1 x Assistant Manager
Budget: R120 000

3. Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health 
Promotion Programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/
services of this Programme. 

X

ICAS ( In the process of renewing the contract)
• Mgnt of disease and chronic illnesses
• Mental Health/ Psychosomatic illnesses awareness
• Management of IODs and Incapacity due to ill health
•  Occupational health education and Promotion
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Question Yes No Details, if yes

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part 
VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please 
provide the names of the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s) 
that they represent.  

X

Ms L. Dakada
Ms N. Maceba
Ms S. Sekalo
Ms Nonkelela
Ms Mazwi
Mr Lufutha
Ms N Vakalisa
Ms Batayi
Mr M Gongxeka

5. Has the department reviewed its employment policies and practices to 
ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis 
of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/practices so reviewed.     X

The department has a HIV and Aids policy and is implementing the DPSA 
wellness policies

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive employees 
or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key 
elements of these measures. 

X
Employees are registered in the “Aid for AIDS program managed by 
GEMS. The program is completely confidential and the department only 
received statistics to protect the identity of staff members.

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary 
Counselling and Testing? If so, list the results that you have you achieved. X The department conducts quarterly HIV/AIDS screening sessions and 

educational awareness’s 

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor & evaluate 
the impact of its health promotion programme? If so, list these measures/
indicators.

X
No of employees defaulting in the program

Death attributed to HIV/AIDS 
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3.12. Labour Relations

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Subject matter Date

Resolution 1 of 2017 -Agreement on the amendments/improvement of certain existing pension benefits and creation of new benefits 27 June 2017

Resolution 2 of 2017 -Agreement on thresholds and procedures for the granting of organisational rights within the public service 27 June 2017

Resolution 3 of 2017- Negotiation Protocol agreement: Wage negotiation process 27 June 2017

Resolution 4 of 2017- Agreement on the review of the Government Employees Medical Scheme (GEMS) 5 December 2017

Resolution 5 of 2017 -Agreement on the establishment of an advisory body for the Government Housing Scheme (GEHS) 5 December 2017
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The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under review.

Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling 4 44%

Verbal warning 0 0%

Written warning 0 0%

Final written warning 2 22%

Suspended without pay 0 0%

Fine 0 0%

Demotion 0 0%

Dismissal 0 0%

Not guilty 1 11%

Case withdrawn 2 22%

TOTAL 9 100%
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Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

 Type of misconduct Number % of total

Altercation in public  2 67%

Insubordination 1 33%

TOTAL 3 100%

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Grievances Number % of Total

Number of grievances resolved 5 62%

Number of grievances not resolved 3 38%

TOTAL NUMBER OF GRIEVANCES LODGED 8 100%

Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Disputes Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 1 100%

Number of disputes dismissed 0 0

TOTAL NUMBER OF DISPUTES LODGED 1 100%
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Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018	

Total number of persons working days lost                                                                                      0

Total costs working days lost                                                                                                                                           R0

Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000) R0

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Number of people suspended 0

Number of people who’s suspension exceeded 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

Cost of suspension(R’000) 0
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3.13. Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development. 

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 

Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as 
at 1 April 2017

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 
short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
managers

Female 28 0
Job Evaluation;

Gender Mainstreaming;
Project Khaedu;

Strategic Management;

Workshops
Seminars 213 175

Male 39 0
Job Evaluation;

Gender Mainstreaming;
Project Khaedu;

Strategic Management;

Workshops
Seminars 213 175
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as 
at 1 April 2017

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 
short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Professionals

Female 44 0

Monitoring
 and Evaluation;  Finance 

for non-Financial managers; 
Advanced PC;

Public Relations Marketing and 
Branding;

Certificate in Risk 
Management;

Presentation Skills;
Budget for Non Financial 

Managers.

Workshops
Seminars 408 445

Male 41 0

Monitoring
 and Evaluation;  Finance 

for non-Financial managers; 
Advanced PC;

Public Relations Marketing and 
Branding;

Certificate in Risk; 
Management;

Presentation Skills;
Budget for Non Financial 

Managers.

Workshops
Seminars 423 672
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as 
at 1 April 2017

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 
short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female 95 0

Monitoring
 and Evaluation; Finance for 

non-Financial managers
Certificate in Risk 

Management;
Presentation Skills;

TOGAF/ Enterprise Architech
CIP

Workshops
Seminars 493 942

Male 54 0

Monitoring
 and Evaluation;  Finance for 

non-Financial managers
Certificate in Risk; 

Management
Presentation Skills;

TOGAF/ Enterprise Architech
CIP

Workshops
Seminars 555 400
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as 
at 1 April 2017

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 
short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Clerks 

Female 47 0

Electronic Records 
Management;
CIP;
Advance PC;
Project Management;
Recruitment and Strategic 
HRM.

Workshops
Seminars

435 162

Male 10 0

Electronic Records 
Management;
CIP;
Advance PC;
Project Management;
Recruitment and Strategic 
HRM.

Workshops
Seminars 55 673

Labourers and related workers

Female 21 0
Compulsory Induction 
Programme;
Drivers License

Workshops
Seminars 85 645

Male 10 0
Compulsory Induction; 
Programme;
Drivers License

Workshops
Seminars 53 712

Sub Total
Female 235 0 1 636 369

Male 154 0 1 301 632

TOTAL 389 0     2 938 000
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Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Occupational category Gender Number of employees 
as at 1 April 2017

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Legislators, senior officials and managers

Female 28 0
Job Evaluation Panel, 
Project Khaedu; Barnowl 
Risk in-house training

0 13

Male 39 0 0 4

Professionals
Female 44 0

IIASA Border Kei 
Regional Conference; 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
for organisational 
performance; Security 
management, Practical 
guideline in building 
Stakeholder Relations,

0 9

Male 41 0 0 5

Technicians and associate professionals
Female 95 0 Barnowl- Risk in-house 

training, IIASA 0 6

Male 44 0 0 4

Clerks 
Female 47 0

Persal Introduction 
Training, Monitoring 
and Evaluation 
for Organisational 
Performance, IIASA

0 17

Male 10 0 0 4
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Service and sales workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators and assemblers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Labourers and Related
Female 21 0 4 0 0

Male 10 0 2 0 0

Sub Total
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 389 0 0 0 68

Occupational category Gender Number of employees 
as at 1 April 2017

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total
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3.14. Injury on duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 6 100%

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

TOTAL 6 100%
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3.15. Utilisation of Consultants

The following tables relates information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of the Public Service Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or 
juristic person or a partnership who or which provides in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services to a department against 
remuneration received from any source:

(a) The rendering of expert advice;
(b) The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and
(c) The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of a department.

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Project title Total number of consultants that 
worked on project

Duration
(work days)

Contract value in
Rand

Forensic Investigation Services 4 (four) 3 months R 488 152

Forensic Investigation Services 6 (six) 18 months Rate Based Contract

Forensic Investigation Services 1 (one) 12 months R 1 504 982

Culture Change Programme 2 (two) 14 months (attended Culture Change 
session arranged by Department) R 438 499

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration
Work days Total contract value in Rand

1 project 5 consultants 18 months Rate Based

2 projects 5 consultants 15 months R 1 993 135

1 project 2 consultants 14 months (attended sessions arranged 
by the Department) R 438 4199
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Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 
2018

Project title Percentage ownership by HDI groups Percentage management by HDI 
groups

Number of consultants from HDI 
groups that work on the project

Forensic Investigation Services 21 % 21 % 0

No Consultants were appointed using Donor Funding for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

3.16. Severance Packages 
 
 
Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Salary band Number of applications 
received

Number of applications 
referred to the MPSA

Number of applications 
supported by MPSA

Number of packages 
approved by department

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 2 2 2 2

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 2 2 2 2
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Report of the auditor-general to the Eastern Cape 
Provincial Legislature on vote no. 1: Office of the 
Premier

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
1.	 I have audited the financial statements of the Eastern Cape Office 

of the Premier set out on pages 202 to 262, which comprise the 
appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 
31 March 2018, the statement of financial performance and the 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

2.	 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Eastern Cape Office of 
the Premier as at 31 March 2018, and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
Modified Cash Standard prescribed by the National Treasury 
and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of 
Revenue Act of South Africa, 2017 (Act No.3 of 2017) (Dora).

Basis for opinion
3.	 I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards 

on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report. 

4.	 I am independent of the department in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have 
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA code.

5.	 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters
6.	 I draw attention to matters below. My opinion is not modified in 

respect of these matters.

Irregular expenditure

7.	 As disclosed in note 22 of the financial statements, irregular 
expenditure of R33 million (2017: R8, 3 million) that has accumulated 
over a number of years has not been recovered, written off or 
condoned. Irregular expenditure of R23 million incurred during the 
current year is included in the amount disclosed.  
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Irregular expenditure under investigation

8.	 As disclosed in note 22.4 of the financial statements, expenditure 
of R142 million is under investigation. The expenditure is subject 
to court review taking place in August 2018. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

9.	 As disclosed in note 23 of the financial statements, fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure of R2 million that had accumulated over 
the last two years has not been recovered or resolved. This was 
because assets purchased did not meet the expected functionality 
for use by the department.

Capital assets under investigation

10.	 As disclosed in note 29.1 of the financial statements, intangible 
capital assets of R 4, 7 million are under investigation. The 
outcomes of the investigations will determine whether adjustments 
need to be made on capital assets and wasteful expenditure.

Other matter 

11.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

12.	 The supplementary information set out on pages 263 to 274 does 
not form part of the financial statements and is presented as 
additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, 
accordingly, I do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements 

13.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
Modified Cash Standard prescribed by the National Treasury and 
the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the 
accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

14.	 In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is 
responsible for assessing the Eastern Cape Office of the Premier’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the accounting officer either intends to liquidate 
the department or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements 

15.	 My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

16.	 A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s 
report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope 

17.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in 
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings 
on the reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report. I performed procedures to identify findings but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance.

18.	 My procedures address the reported performance information, which 
must be based on the approved performance planning documents 
of the department. I have not evaluated the completeness and 
appropriateness of the performance indicators/measures included 
in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend 
to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance 
strategies and information in respect of future periods that may 
be included as part of the reported performance information. 
Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters. 

19.	 I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information in accordance with the criteria developed 
from the performance management and reporting framework, as 
defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report of the department for 
the year ended 31 March 2018:

Programmes
Pages in 

the annual 
performance 

report
Programme1 – administration 39 – 67
Programme 2 – planning, policy coordination, monitoring 
and evaluation

67 – 95

Programme 3 – institutional development and 
organisational support

96 – 121

20.	 I performed procedures to determine whether the reported 
performance information was properly presented and whether 
performance was consistent with the approved performance planning 
documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether 
the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, 
and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information 
to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

21.	 I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of 
the reported performance information of the selected programmes.

Other matters 

22.	 I draw attention to the matters below. 

Achievement of planned targets

23.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 39 to 121 for 
information on the achievement of planned targets for the year and 
explanations provided for the under/over achievement of a significant 
number of targets. 
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Adjustment of material misstatements

24.	 I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report 
submitted for auditing. These material misstatements were on the 
reported performance information of administration programme. 
As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did 
not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of 
the reported performance information. 

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope 

25.	 In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in 
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings 
on the compliance of the department with specific matters in key 
legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance. 

26.	 The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key 
legislations are as follows: 

Procurement and contract management 

27.	 Some of the deviations were approved by the accounting officer 
although it was practical to invite competitive bids, as required by 
Treasury regulation 16A6.4. 

28.	 Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders based on 
preference points that were not allocated and calculated in 
accordance with the requirements of the Preferential Procurement 
Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000) and its regulations.

Expenditure management

29.	 Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular 
expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and 
treasury regulation 9.1.1.  

Other information

30.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report. The other information does not include the financial statements, 
the auditor’s report and those selected programmes presented in the 
annual performance report that have been specifically reported in 
this auditor’s report. 

31.	 My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported 
performance information and compliance with legislation do not 
cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

32.	 In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the 
selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, 
or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

33.	 If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement in this other information, I am required to 
report that fact.

34.	 I have nothing to report in this regard.
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Internal control deficiencies

35.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements, reported performance information and compliance 
with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to 
express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below 
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that 
resulted in the findings on compliance with legislation included in 
this report.

Leadership 

36.	 The department’s compliance monitoring process has not been 
effective. This contributed to repeat and additional findings on 
compliance in the current year.

37.	 The internal controls relating to financial management and 
performance management were not fully implemented. 
Consequently, the financial statements and performance report 
were subject to material adjustments.

Other reports

38.	 I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various 
parties that had, or could have, an impact on the matters reported 
in the department’s financial statements, reported performance 

information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related 
matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial 
statements or my findings on the reported performance information 
or compliance with legislation.

Investigations  

39.	 The department appointed an independent consulting firm to inves-
tigate allegations of procurement irregularities over the information 
technology assets. The investigation was also disclosed in the pre-
vious year and is still in progress.

East	London

16	August	2018	
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the 
audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures 
performed on reported performance information for selected 
programmes and on the department’s compliance with respect to 
the selected subject matters.

Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial 

statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also: 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the department’s internal control

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the accounting officer

• conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Eastern Cape Office of the 
Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions 
are based on the information available to me at the date of this 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a 
department to cease continuing as a going concern

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that I identify during my audit. 

4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where 
applicable, related safeguards. 
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Appropriation per programme
2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of  

final 
appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Programme

Administration 604 430 - (7 740) 596 690 512 834 83 856 85.9% 249 061        245 749 
Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring 
and Evaluation

116 931 - (7 859) 109 072 103 797 5 275 95.2%       122 896        108 732 

Institutional Development and 
Organisational Support

139 583 - 15 599 155 182 146 615 8 567 94.5% 155 662        151 822 

Subtotal 860 944 - - 860 944 763 246 97 698 88.7%       527 619        506 303 

2017/18 2016/17

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

TOTAL (brought forward) 860 944 763 244 527 619 506 303

ADD

Departmental receipts 10             225 

Aid assistance              499 

Actual amounts per statement of financial performance (total revenue) 860 954       528 343

ADD

Aid assistance - 9
Actual amounts per statement of financial performance (total expenditure) 763 244 506 312
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Appropriation per economic classification

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Economic classification

Current payments 641 378 - - 641 378 561 132 80 248 87.5% 444 346 424 386

Compensation of employees 273 999 - - 273 999 255 128 18 871 93.1% 255 237 242 324

Salaries and wages 242 626 (2 356) 1 468 241 738 228 076 13 662 94.3% 219 791 216 526

Social contributions 31 373 2 356 (1 468) 32 261 27 052 5 209 83.9% 35 446 25 798

Goods and services 367 379 - 367 379 306 004 61 377 83.3% 189 109 182 062

Administrative fees 642 7 - 649 649 - 100.0% 555 555

Advertising 12 159 (3 618) - 8 541 6 822 1 719 79.9% 7 233 7 197

Minor assets 109 - - 109 40 69 36.7% 509 508

Audit costs: External 3 217 994 - 4 211 4 211 - 100.0% 4 117 4 117

Bursaries: Employees 347 (36) - 311 271 40 87.1% 276 276

Catering: Departmental activities 5 484 303 - 5 787 5 748 39 99.3% 8 472 8 424

Communication 4 725 (1 151) - 3 574 3 380 194 94.6% 4 263 4 260

Computer services 263 797 (2 230) - 261 569 213 298 48 265 81.5% 77 945 77 913

Consultants: Business and advisory services 16 449 17 607 - 34 056 32 355 1 701 95% 35 613 29 624

Legal services 995 700 - 1 695 1 695 - 100.0% 3 957 3 957

Contractors 13 804 (813) - 12 991 5 050 7 941 38.9% 9 512 9 439

Agency and support / outsourced services 2 812 (433) - 2 379 2 061 318 86.6% 3 604 3 604

Fleet services 1 571 295 - 1 866 1 866 - 100.0% 1 477 1 477

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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Appropriation per economic classification

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Cons supplies 559 520 - 1 079 923 156 85.5% 729 644

Cons: Stationery, printing and office supplies 2 516 (757) - 1 759 1 317 442 74.9% 1 497 1 475

Operating payments 1 080 (1 080) - - - - -

Property payments 272 610 -                 882           810 72 91.8% 209 137

Transport provided: Departmental activity 2 150 (647) -              1 503 1 227 276 81.6% 2 192 2 168

Travel and subsistence 26 164 8 923 - 17 241 18 676 1 435 108.3 % 18 522 18 202

Training and development 2 722 (729) - 1 993 1 219 774 61.2% 1 605 1 589

Operating payments 1 466 908 -              2 374 1 936 438 81.6% 2 273 2 224

Venues and facilities 4 339 (1 527) -              2 812 2 444 368 86.9% 4 549 4 271

Transfers and subsidies 205 985 - -           205 985 194 081 11 904 94.2% 73 471 73 030

Provinces and municipalities 96 945 - -             96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -
Municipalities 96 945 - -             96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -

            Municipal bank accounts 96 945 - -             96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -
Departmental agencies and accounts 67 258 (28 100) -             39 158 39 158 - 100.0% 43 811 43 811

 Departmental agencies and accounts 67 258 (28 100) -             39 158 39 158 - 100.0% 43 811 43 811
Households 41 782 28 100 -             69 882 58 025 11 857 83.0% 29 660 29 219

Social benefits 3 616 - -              3 616 2 765 851 76.5% 3 452 3 426

Other transfers to households 38 166 28 100 -             66 266 55 260 11 006 83.4% 26 208 25 793
Payments for capital assets 13 581 - -             13 581 7 977 5 604 62.6% 9 802 8 853

Machinery and equipment 12 735 - -             12 735 7 977 4 758 62.6% 9 002 8 853

Transport equipment 990 - -                 990 1 481 (491) 149.6% 1 546 1 477

Other machinery and equipment 11 745 - -             11 745 6 496 5 249 55.3% 7 456 7 376

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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Appropriation per economic classification

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Intangible assets 846 - - 846                       -            846 - 800 -

Payments for financial assets - - -                     - 56 (56) - - 35

TOTAL 860 944 - -          860 944 763 246 97 698 88.7% 527 619 506 303

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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Programme 1: Administration 

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

1. Premier’s Office 16 209 1 365 - 17 574 16 724 850 95.2% 17 661 16 978

2. Office of the Director General 401 756 (29 465) - 372 291 321 207 51 072 86.3% 58 518 58 031

3. Office of the Chief Operations Officer 38 917 - - 38 917 38 218 699 98.2% 42 714 42 712

4. Corporate Services 48 714 (871) - 47 843 40 983 6 860 85.7% 40 456 39 438

5. Financial Management 49 695 871 - 50 566 48 086 2 480 95.1% 50 038 49 903

6. Internal Auditor 7 038 - - 7 038 4 597 2 441 65.3% 5 624 5 480

7. Enterprise Wide Risk Management 3 741 - - 3 741 3 649 92 97.5% 3 442 3 359

8. Special Programmes Coordinating Unit 19 039 27 592 (7 740) 38 891 24 669 14 222 63.4% 10 401 10 354

9. Departmental Legal Services 1 255 - - 1 255 - 1 255 - 95 15

10. Departmental ICT 18 066 508 - 18 574 14 542 4 032 78.3% 20 112 19 479

TOTAL FOR SUB PROGRAMMES 604 430 - (7 740) 596 690 512 687 84 003 85.9% 249 061 245 749

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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Programme 1: Administration 

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Economic classification

Current payments 444 034 - -           444 034 376 707 67 327 84.8% 235 234 232 512

Compensation of employees 165 159 - -           165 159 155 374 9 785 94.1% 146 690 144 171

Salaries and wages 147 824 (2 834) -           144 990 138 694 6 296 95.7% 130 689 128 683

Social contributions 17 335 2 834 -             20 169 16 680 3 489 82.7% 16 001 15 488

Goods and services 278 875 - -           278 875 221 480 57 395 79.4% 88 544 88 341

Administrative fees 642 7 - 649 649 - 100.0% 555 555

Advertising 3 964 (950) - 3 014 3 139 (125) 104.1% 5 698 5 698

Minor assets                 109 - - 109 40 69 36.7% 509 508

Audit costs: External              3 217          994 -              4 211 4 211 - 100.0% 4 117 4 117

Bursaries: Employees                 347            (36) -                  311 271 40 87.1% 276 276

Catering: Departmental activities              3 443           803 -              4 246 4 310 (64) 101.5% 7 112 7 112

Communication              4 725      (1 151) -              3 574 3 380 194 94.6% 4 263 4 260

Computer services           201 983     (1 725) -          200 258 151 586 48 672 75.7% 9 374 9 374

Consultants: Business and advisory services             12 682 11 931     -             24 613 23 961 652 97.4% 21 410 21 410

Legal services                 995           700 -              1 695 1 695 - 100.0% 3 957 3 957

Contractors             13 289          (314) -             12 975 5 034 7 941 38.8% 8 458 8 456

Agency and support / outsourced services              2 812         (433) -              2 379 2 061 318 86.6% 3 604 3 604
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Programme 1: Administration 

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Fleet services              1 571           295 -              1 866 1 866 - 100.0% 1 477 1 477

Cons supplies                 559           515 -              1 074 918 156 85.5% 674 589

Cons: Stationery, printing and office supplies              2 516      (757) -              1 759 1 317 442 74.9% 1 183 1 183

Operating leases 1 080 (1 080) - - - - - - -

Property payments                 272            610 -                 882 810 72 91.8% 209 137

Transport provided: Departmental activity  606                     (295) -                311 76 235 24.4% 825 801

Travel and subsistence             19 224       (9 448) -            9 776 11 962 (2 186) 122.4% 10 027 10 028

Training and development              2 022            (46) -              1 976 1 219 757 61.7% 1 580 1 580

Operating payments              1 413           363 -               1 776 1 391 385 78.3% 2 061 2 043

Venues and facilities              1 404              17 -
             1 421 

1 447 (26) 101.8% 1 175 1 175

Transfers and subsidies           147 661 - (7 740) 139 921 127 947 11 974 91.4% 4 825 4 385

Provinces and municipalities             96 945 - - 96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -

Municipalities             96 945 - - 96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -

Municipal bank accounts             96 945 - 96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -

Departmental agencies and accounts 28 100 (28 100) - - - - - - -

Departmental agencies and accounts 28 100 (28 100) - - - - - - -

Households 22 616 28 100 (7 740) 42 976 31 049 11 927 72.2% 4 825 4 385

Social benefits              3 616 - - 3 616 2 765 851 76.5% 3 452 3 426
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Programme 1: Administration 

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Other transfers to households             19 000 28 100 (7 740) 39 360 28 284 11 076 71.9% 1 373 959

Payments for capital assets             12 735 - - - 7 977 4 758 62.6% 9 002 8 853

Machinery and equipment             12 735 - - 12 735 7 977 4 758 62.6% 9 002 8 853

Transport equipment                 990 - - 990 1 481 (491) 149.6% 1 546 1 477

Other machinery and equipment             11 745 - - 11 745 6 496 5 249 55.3% 7 456 7 376

Payment for financial assets - - - - 56 (56) - - -

TOTAL         604 430 -     (7 740)           596 690 512 834 83 856 85.9% 249 061 245 749

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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1.1 Premier’s Office

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 15 209 - - 16 574 15 800 774 95.3% 16 288 16 019

Compensation of employees 13 308 - - 13 308 12 541 767 94.2% 13 198 13 060

Goods and services 1 901 1 365 - 3 266 3 259 7 99.8% 3 090 2 959

Transfers and subsidies 1 000 - - 1 000 924 76 92.4% 1 373 959

Households 1 000 - - 1 000 924 76 92.4% 1 373 959

TOTAL 16 209 1 365 - 17 574 16 724 850 95.2% 17 661 16 978

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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1.2 Office of the Director General

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 258 086 (1 365) - 256 721 206 931 49 790 80.6% 58 518 58 031

Compensation of employees               36 986                 - -             36 986             33 239              3 747 89.9%               27 463               26 976 

Goods and services             221 100               (1 365) -           219 735 173 692 46 043 79.0%               31 055               31 055 

Transfers and subsidies 143 045 (28 100) - 114 945 114 236 709 99.4% - -

Provinces and municipalities 96 945 - - 96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -

Municipalities 96 945 - - 96 945 96 898 47 100.0% - -

   Municipal bank accounts 96 945 96 945 96 898 47 100.0%

Departmental agencies and 
accounts 28 100 (28 100) - - - - - - -

Departmental agencies (non-
business entities) 28 100 (28 100) - - - -

Households 18 000 - - 18 000 17 338 662 96.3% - -

Other transfers to households 18 000 18 000 17 338 662 96.3%

Payments for capital assets 625 - - 625 40 585 6.4% - -

Machinery and equipment 625 - - 625 40 585 6.4% - -

Other machinery and equipment 625 625 40 585 6.4%

TOTAL 401 756 (29 465) - 372 291           321 207             51 084 86.3% 58 518 58 031
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1.3 Office of the Chief Operating Officer

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 38 917 - - 38 917 38 406 511 98.7% 42 714 42 712

Compensation of employee             29 493                     -                     -             29 493             28 223              1 270 95.7% 26 479 26 477

Goods and services              9 424 - -              9 424 10 007 (583) 106.2% 16 235 16 235

TOTAL 38 917 - - 38 917 38 230 687 98.2% 42 714 42 712

1.4 Corporate Services

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 45 098 (871) - 44 227 38 181 6 046 86.3% 37 004 36 013

Compensation of employees 37 894 (20) - 37 874 33 183 4 691 87.6% 29 350 30 753

Goods and services 7 204 (851) 6 353 4 998 1 355 78.7% 7 654 5 260

Transfers and subsidies 3 616 - - 3 616 2 765 851 76.5% 3 452 3 425

Households 3 616 - - 3 616 2 765 851 76.5% 3 452 3 425

Payment for financial assets - - - - 8 (8) - - -

TOTAL 48 714 (871) - 47 843 40 954 6 889 85.6% 40 456 39 438
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1.5 Financial Management

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 40 855 871 - 41 726 41 415 311 99.3% 41 116 41 050

Compensation of employees           30 545                   20 -             30 565             30 565                      -            100.0% 28 612 28 558

Goods and services           10 310                 851 -             11 161             10 850                 311 97.2% 12 504 12 492

Payments for capital assets 8 840 - - 8 840 6 671 2 169 75.5% 8 922 8 853

Machinery and equipment             8 840                     -                        -              8 840              6 671                2 169 75.5% 8 922 8 853

TOTAL 49 695 871 - 50 566 48 086 2 480 95.1% 50 038 49 903

1.6 Internal Audit

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 7 038 - - 7 038 4 597 2 441 65.3% 5 624 5 480

Compensation of employees          4 815 - -              4 815                3 687              1 128 76.6% 4 282 4 140

Goods and services            2 223 - -              2 223 910 1 313 40.9% 1 342 1 340

TOTAL 7 038 - - 7 038 4 597 2 441 65.3% 5 624 5 480
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1.7 Enterprise Wide Risk Management

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 3 741 - - 3 741 3 649 92 97.5% 3 442 3 359

Compensation of employees            3 537 - -              3 537              3 484                   53 98.5% 3 272 3 247

Goods and services                204                - -                 204                 165                   39 80.9% 170 112

TOTAL 3 741 - - 3 741 3 649 92 97.5% 3 442 3 359
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1.8 Special Programmes Coordinating Unit

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 18 289 (508) - 17 781 14 647 3 134 82.4% 10 401 10 354

Compensation of employees                 2 890 - -              2 890                 7 364             (4 474) 254.8% 6 991 6 945

Goods and services               15 399                (508) -            14 891 7 283 7 608 48.9% 3 410 3 409

Transfers and subsidies - 28 100 (7 740) 20 360 10 022 10 338 49.2% - -

Households - 28 100 (7 740) 20 360 10 022 10 338 49.2% - -

Payments for capital assets 750 - - 750 - 750 - - -

Machinery and equipment 750 - - 750 - 750 - - -

Other machinery and equipment 750 750 750 -

TOTAL 19 039 27 592 (7 740) 38 891 24 669 14 222 63.4% 10 401 10 354
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1.9 Departmental Legal Services

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 1 255 - - 1 255 - 1 255 - 95 15

Compensation of employees              1 043 - -              1 043 -              1 043 - 95 15

Goods and services                 212 - -                 212 -                 212 - - -

TOTAL 1 255 - - 1 255 - 1 255 - 95 15
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1.10 Departmental ICT

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 15 546 508 - 16 054 13 228 2 826 90.3% 20 032 19 478

Compensation of employees              4 648 - -              4 648               3 088              1 560 66.4% 6 948 4 000

Goods and services             10 898                508 -             11 406 10 140 1 266 88.9% 13 084 15 478

Payments for capital assets 2 520 - - 2 520 1 266 1 254 50.2% 80 -

Machinery and equipment              2 520 - -              2 520              1 266              1 254 50.2% 80 -

Payments for financial assets - - - - 48 (48) - - -

TOTAL 18 066 508 - 18 574 14 542 4 032 78.3% 20 112 19 478
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Programme 2:  Programme Management for Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

1. Programme Management for 
Planning, Policy, Coordination, 
Monitoring and Evaluation  

         6 335     (3 425)                     -             2 910 2 598 312 89.3% 2 904 2 399

2. Policy Planning and Research 
Coordination

        50 155          - -                               50 155 46 799 3 356 93.3% 45 379 44 471

3. Intergovernmental and Stakeholder 
Relations

        24 093      (5 708) -                                18 385 17 761 624 96.6% 20 278 18 210

4. Service Delivery Intervention and 
Coordination

   16 673        9 133 -                                25 806 25 703 103 99.6% 39 382 31 746

5. Performance Monitoring and 
Evaluation

    19 675              -      (7 859)             11 816 10 936 880 92.6% 14 953 11 906

Total for sub programmes        116 931                     -       (7 859)           109 072 103 797 5 275 95.2% 122 896 108 732

Economic classification

Current payments             77 773 -   (7 859)             69 914 64 639 5 275 92.5% 79 085 64 886

Compensation of employees             59 614                        -      (7 859)             51 755 47 841 3 914 92.4% 55 004 47 270

Salaries and wages             51 845   248      (6 296)             45 797 43 413 2 384 94.8% 44 089 42 949

Social contributions              7 769   (248)      (1 563)              5 958 4 428 1 530 74.3% 10 915 4 321

Goods and services             18 159 -       -             18 159 16 798 1 361 92.5% 24 081 17 616
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Programme 2:  Programme Management for Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Advertising              5 183      (2 267) -              2 916 2 916 - 100.0% 922 922

Catering: Departmental activities              1 054            (58) -                 996 918 78 92.2% 493 493

Computer services                 838          (505) -                 333 - 333 - 427 422
Consultants: Business and advisory 
services

             1 277 5 148 -              6 425 5 910 515 92.0% 11 387 5 454

Contractors                 515           499 -                   16 16 - 100.0% 87 16

Cons supplies                     -                       2 -                     2 2 - 100.0% 55 55

Cons: Stationery, printing and office 
supplies

                    -                       - - - - - - 314 292

Transport provided: Departmental 
activity

             1 544                 (352) -              1 192 1 151 41 96.6% 1 367 1 367

Travel and subsistence              4 544 213 -              4 757 4 554 203 95.7% 5 954 5 697

Training and development                 683 (683) -                 - - - - 9 9

Operating payments -                   545 -                 545 545 - 100.0% 178 178
Venues and facilities

2 521 (1 544) - 977 786 191 80.5% 2 888 2 711

Transfers and subsidies 39 158 39 158             39 158 - 100.0% 43 811 43 811

Departmental agencies and accounts             39 158 - -             39 158             39 158 - 100.0% 43 811 43 811

Departmental agencies           39 158 - -            39 158             39 158 - 100.0% 43 811 43 811
Public corporations and private 
enterprises

- - - - - - - - -

Private enterprises - - - - - - - - -
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Programme 2:  Programme Management for Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Other transfers to private 
enterprises

- - - - - - - - -

Payments for financial assets - - - - - - - - 35

TOTAL           116 931 -      (7 859)        109 072         103 729         5 275 95.1% 122 896 108 732

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1
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2.1 Programme Management For Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 6 335 (3 425) - 2 910 2 598 312 89.3% 2 904 2 399

Compensation of employees              5 854     (3 425) -              2 429              2 219          210 91.4% 2 307 1 832

Goods and services                481 - -                   481 379 102 78.8% 597 567

TOTAL 6 335 (3 425) - 2 910 2 598 312 89.3% 2 904 2 399

2.2 Policy Planning and Research Coordination

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 10 997 - - 10 997 7 641 3 356 69.5% 8 368 7 460

Compensation of employees              8 942 - -              8 942              6 519         2 423 72.9% 7 541 6 613

Goods and services              2 055 - -              2 055              1 122           933 54.6% 827 847

Transfers and subsidies 39 158 - - 39 158 39 158 - 100.0% 37 011 37 011

Departmental agencies and accounts             39 158 - -             39 158             39 158 100.0% 37 011 37 011

TOTAL 50 155 - - 50 155 46 799 3 356 93.3% 45 379 44 471
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2.3 Intergovernmantal and Stakeholder Relations

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 24 093 (5 708) - 18 385 17 761 624 96.6% 20 278 18 175

Compensation of employees             10 020               - -             10 020 9 616 404 96.0% 11 336 9 548

Goods and services             14 073      (5 708) -              8 365 8 145 220 97.4% 8 942 8 627

Payment for financial assets                             
-                              

- 
                            

- 
                            

- 
                            

- 
                            

- 
                            

- 
                         

35 
TOTAL 24 093 (5 708) - 18 385 17 761 624 96.6% 20 278 18 210

2.4 Service Delivery Intervention and Coordination

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 16 673 9 133 - 25 806 25 703 103 99.6% 32 582 24 946

Compensation of employees             15 714              3 425 -             19 139             19 004              135 99.3% 19 782 18 058

Goods and services                959              5 708 -              6 667 6 699 (32) 100.5% 12 800 6 888

Transfers and subsidies - - - - - - - 6 800 6 800

Departmental agencies and accounts - - - - - - - 6 800 6 800

TOTAL 16 673 9 133 - 25 806 25 703 103 99.6% 39 382 31 746
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2.5 Performance Monitoring and Evaluation

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 19 675 - (7 859) 11 816 10 936 880 92.6% 14 953 11 906

Compensation of employees             19 084 -             (7 859)             11 225             10 483              742 93.4% 14 038 11 219

Goods and services                591 - -                591                453              138 76.6% 915 687

TOTAL 19 675 - (7 859) 11 816 10 936 880 92.6% 14 953 11 906
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Programme 3:  Institutional Development and Organisational Support

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

1. Programme Management for Institutional 
Development and Organisational Support            1 386          (442)                -               944 592 352 62.7% 3 077 2 995

2. Institutional Support Services              5 123      5 513                -             10 636 10 561 75 99.3% 12 243 10 247

3. Human Capital and Talent Management Support
          

  11 318 

   

   552 

      

  5 950 

            

         17 820 15 825 1 995 88.8% 14 715 14 647

4. Human Resource Development Support Services
           

 33 786 

     

      - 

      

 9 265 

            

43 051 37 913 5 138 88.1% 36 362 35 879
5. Information Technology Management             79 806       (5 623)                -             74 183 73 920 263 99.6% 81 676 80 561

6. Anti-Corruption and Security Management              8 164               -            384              8 548 7 949 599 93.0% 7 589 7 493

Total for sub programmes           139 583               - 15 599           155 182 146 760 8 422 94.6% 155 662 151 822

Economic classification

Current payments 119 571 - 7 859 127 430 119 637 7 793 93.9% 130 027 126 988

Compensation of employees             49 226                -        7 859             57 085 51 913 5 172 90.9% 53 543 50 883

Salaries and wages             42 957     230        7 764             50 951 45 969 4 982 90.2% 45 013 44 894

Social contributions              6 269      (230)         95              6 134 5 944 190 96.9% 8 530 5 989

Goods and services             70 345        - -                     70 345           67 871         2 474 96.5% 76 484 76 105

Advertising              3 012 (401) - 2 611 779 1 832 29.8% 613 577
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Programme 3:  Institutional Development and Organisational Support

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Catering: Departmental activities                 987     (442) -                                 545 520 25 95.4% 867 819

Computer services             60 976                -         -             60 976 61 714 (738) 101.2% 68 144 68 117

Consultants: Business and advisory services              2 490          528 -              3 018 2 484 534 82.3% 2 816 2 760

Contractors                     -            - -                     - - - - 967 967

Consumable supplies                     -       3 -                     3 3 - 100.0%

Travel and subsistence              2 396  312 -              2 708 2 160 548 79.8% 2 541 2 477

Training and development                   17     - -                   17 - 17 - 16 -

Operating payments                   53    - -                   53 - 53 - 34 3

Venues and facilities 414 - - 414 211 203 51.0% 486 385

Transfers and subsidies 19 166 - 7 740 26 906 26 976 (70) 100.3% 24 835 24 834

Households             19 166 -        7 740 26 906             26 976            (70) 100.3% 24 835 24 834

Payments for capital assets 846 - 846 - 846 - 800 -

Intangible assets 846 - 846 - 846 - 800 -

TOTAL 139 583 - 15 599 155 182 146 760 8 422 94.6% 155 662 151 822
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3.1 Programme Management for Institutional Development and Organisational Support

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 1 386 (442) - 944 592 352 62.7% 3 077 2 995

Compensation of employees             214 - -                 214 -                 214 - 2 006 2 002

Goods and services             1 172                (442) -                 730                 592                 138 81.1% 1 071 993

TOTAL 1 382 (442) - 944 592 352 81.1% 3 077 2 995

3.2 Institutional Support Services

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 5 123 5 513 - 10 636 10 561 75 99.3% 12 243 10 247

Compensation of employees            4 520              5 071 -              9 591              9 591 - 92.8% 11 362 9 402

Goods and services              603                 442 -              1 045                 970                   75 100.0% 881 845

TOTAL 5 123 5 513 - 10 636 10 561 75 99.3% 12 243 10 247

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018



227Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

3.3 Human Capital and Talent Management Support Services

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 11 318 552 5 950 17 820 15 825 1 995 88.8% 14 715 14 647

Compensation of employees           8 318                 552              5 950             14 820             14 820 - 100.0% 13 618 13 623

Goods and services           3 000 - -              3 000              1 005              1 995 33.5% 1 097 1 024

TOTAL 19 636 552 5 950 17 820 15 825 1 995 88.8% 14 715 14 647

3.4 Human Resource Development Support Services

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 14 620 - 1 525 16 145 10 790 5 355 66.8% 11 527 11 045

Compensation of employees           11 410 -              1 525             12 935 7 977 4 958 61.7% 8 233 7 836

Goods and services            3 210 - -              3 210 2 960 250 92.2% 3 294 3 209

Transfers and subsidies 19 166 - 7 740 26 906 26 976 (70) 100.3% 24 835 24 834

Households           19 166 -              7 740             26 906             26 976                  (70) 100.3% 24 835 24 834
Other transfers to households

          19 166 -              7 740             26 906             26 976                  (70) 100.3% 24 835 24 834

TOTAL 33 786 - 9 265 43 051             37 913              5 138 88.1% 36 362 35 879
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3.5 Information Technology Management

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 78 960 (5 623) - 73 337 73 920 263 99.6% 80 876 80 561

Compensation of employees          17 753             (5 623) -             12 130             12 130 - 100.0% 11 545 11 271

Goods and services          61 207 -                 846             61 207             61 790                 263 99.6% 69 331 69 290

Payments for capital assets 846 - - - - - - 800 -

Intangible assets 846 - - 846 - 846 - 800 -

TOTAL 79 806 (5 623) - 74 183 73 920 263 99.6% 81 676 80 561

3.6 Anti-Corruption and Security Management

2017/18 2016/17

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Economic classification R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 8 164 - 384 8 548 7 949 599 93.0% 7 589 7 493

Compensation of employees          7 011 -                 384              7 395              7 395 - 100.0% 6 779 6 749

Goods and services          1 153 - -              1 153                 554 
                599 48.0%

810 744

TOTAL 8 164 - 384 8 548 7 949 599 93.0% 7 589 7 493
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1.  Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-C) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2.  Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3.  Detail on payments for financial assets

 Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual Financial Statements.

4.  Explanations of material variances from amounts voted (after Virement):

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018



4.1  Per programme Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance  
R’000

Variance as a % of Final 
Appropriation

Administration 596 690 512 687 84 003 14.08%

Under expenditure of R84.0 million is mainly due to the following reasons:

	 under expenditure of R48,7 million is due to delays in the procurement of the provincial broadband rollout project. The programme was implemented in October 2017 after a decision 
was taken to participate in an existing contract. 

	Compensation of employees under expenditure of R9.8 million - is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled on time, this was due to the organisational repositioning process 
which delayed. There was a short period of time after the structure was approved by DPSA and the year end, due to capacity constraints the necessary recruitment could  not be filled 
before the year end. 

	 under expenditure of R10.3 million  in Special Programmes Unit is due to youth development project in partnership with Department of Defence & Military Veterans. The registration 
and database creation process, including taking finger prints by 400 young people across the province took longer than anticipated to finalise.

	  Capital under expenditure of R4.8 million  - Computer and equipment and furniture (R2.2 m, refurbishment of the server facility and training lab (R2.9 m). 

Planning, Policy 
Coordination, Monitoring 
and Evaluation

Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance  
R’000

Variance as a % of Final 
Appropriation

109 072 103 797 5 275 4.9%

	Under-expenditure of R5.3 million is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled. This is due to the scarcity of the skills required to fill the posts, a number of interviews and 
assessments were held, however, no suitable people could be found to fill the posts. 

Institutional development and 
organisational support Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance  

R’000
Variance as a % of Final 

Appropriation

155 182 146 762 8 420 5.43%

Goods and services under expenditure of R2.4 million is mainly due to paid back interdepartmental claims for Provincial centralised recruitment, projected catering, travel and subsistence for 
officials attending meetings for Programme not utilised and projected expenditure under Anti-Corruption and Security Management Consultants for Review of the Provincial Fraud Prevention 
Plan, awaiting approval of the document.

Compensation of compensation R5.1 million - is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled on time, this was due to the organisational repositioning process which delayed. There was 
a short period of time after the structure was approved by DPSA and the year end, due to capacity constraints the necessary recruitment could not be filled before the year end.
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Goods and services under expenditure of R2.4 million is mainly due to paid back interdepartmental claims for Provincial centralised recruitment, projected catering, travel and subsistence for 
officials attending meetings for Programme not utilised and projected expenditure under Anti-Corruption and Security Management Consultants for Review of the Provincial Fraud Prevention 
Plan, awaiting approval of the document.

Compensation of compensation R5.1 million - is mainly attributable to funded posts not being filled on time, this was due to the organisational repositioning process which delayed. There was a 
short period of time after the structure was approved by DPSA and the year end, due to capacity constraints the necessary recruitment could not be filled before the year end.
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4.2 Per economic classification Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance
Variance as a % of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments

Compensation of employees 273 999 255 128 18 871 6.89%

Goods and services 367 379 306 005 61 375 16.71%

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities 96 945 96 898 47 0.05%

Departmental agencies and accounts 39 158 39 158 - 0.00%

Households 69 882 58 025 11 857 16.97%

Payments for capital assets

Machinery and equipment 12 735 7 977 4 758 41.26%

Intangible assets              846              -             846        100%

Payments for financial assets - 56 (56)
- 
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Explanation of variances    

1. Compensation of employees underspending - R18.9 million

Organisational repositioning process was delayed and affected 
filling of posts based on the approved structure. There was a short 
period of time after approval by DPSA and the year end, due to 
HR capacity constraints they could not finish all the necessary 
recruitment before year end. In programme 2 there has been 
interviews and assessments conducted however, due to the 
scarcity of the skills for the Planning and Monitoring professional, 
these posts could not be filled. 

2. Goods and Services underspending – R61.4 million 

Broadband rollout – this was due to procurement delays that 
resulted in the delay in implementation. The programme was 
implemented in October 2017.

3. Households – R11. 9 million 

Youth development project in partnership with Department of Defence 
& Military Veterans. The registration process which included creation 
of database and taking of the finger prints by all 400 young people 
across the Province, this process delayed and affected the start of 
the programme. Balance relates to centralised recruitment funds 
not paid back on time by departments and other smaller operational 
costs i.e. travelling.

4. Payments for capital assets – R4.8 million 

The specifications for the refurbishment of the server room were not 
done on time (R1.3 million). R2.8 million - Computers and Furniture 
for use by staff members were not purchased (R2.2 million). Planned 
training lab was not executed on time (R750 000). 
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Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1           860 944 527 619
Departmental revenue 2 10 225
Aid assistance 3 - 499
TOTAL REVENUE 860 954 528 343

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 4 255 127 242 324
Goods and services 5 306 005 182 062
Aid assistance 3 - 9

Total current expenditure
561 132 424 395

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 7 194 081 73 029

Total transfers and subsidies 194 081 73 029
Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 8 7 977 8 853

Total expenditure for capital assets 7 977 8 853

Payments for financial assets 6 56 35

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
763 246 506 312

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 97 708 22 031

Reconciliation of Net Surplus for the 
year 

Voted funds 97 698 21 316
Annual appropriation

97 698 21 316
Departmental revenue and NRF 
Receipts

2
10 225

Aid assistance 3 - 490
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 97 708 22 031

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

ASSETS 

Current assets 113 180 30 278
Cash and cash equivalents 9 69 074 22 759
Prepayments and advances 10 1 266 3 548
Receivables 11 42 840 3 971

 
Non-current assets 45 104

Receivables 11 45 104
  
TOTAL ASSETS           113 225 30 382

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 113 225 30 382
Voted funds to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund

12 97 698 21 316

Departmental revenue and NRF 
Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund 13

66 14

Payables 14 15 461 6 770
Aid assistance unutilised 3 2 282

  -
  
TOTAL LIABILITIES 113 225 30 382
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PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following 
policies, which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless 
otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements 
present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.  

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise 
indicated.  Management has used assessments and estimates in preparing 
the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best information 
available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed 
to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the 
statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 
of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued 
in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act. 

1
Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Modified Cash Standard.  

2
Going concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3
Presentation currency
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African 
Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the department. 

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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Note 2017/18 2016/17
 R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES
Receipts 528 290

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 860 942 527 619
Departmental revenue received 2 333 172
Aid assistance received 3 - 499

Net increase in working capital (27 837)) (1 653)
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (21 597) (27 290)
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor (2 282) -
Current payments (561 130) (424 395)
Payments for financial assets (56) (35)
Transfers and subsidies paid (194 081) (73 029)
Net cash flow available from 
operating activities 15 54 292 1 888

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 9 (7 977) (8 853)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.2 - 330
Net cash flows from investing 
activities (7 977) (8 523)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 46 315 (6 635)

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of period 22 759 29 394

Cash and cash equivalents at end 
of period 9 69 074 22 759
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4
Rounding 
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the 
nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5

Foreign currency translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated 
into South African Rands using the spot exchange rates prevailing at 
the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information

6.1

Prior period comparative information 
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current 
year’s financial statements.  Where necessary figures included in the 
prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that 
the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the 
format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2

Current year comparison with budget 
A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts 
for each programme and economic classification is included in the 
appropriation statement.  

7 Revenue

7.1

Appropriated funds
Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as 
direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance on the date the appropriation becomes effective.  
Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are 
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the 
adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant 
revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable / 
receivable in the statement of financial position.  

7.2

Departmental revenue 
Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial 
performance when received and is subsequently paid into the relevant 
revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is 
recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position. 

7.3

Accrued departmental revenue 
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) 
are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when:
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the transaction will flow to the department; and

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured 
at amounts receivable from collecting agents.

Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy

8 Expenditure

8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1
Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment.  
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8.1.2

Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current 
employees are recognised in the statement of financial performance on 
the date of payment.  

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees 
are classified as transfers to households in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment.

8.2

Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies 
and payments for capital assets) is recognised in the statement 
of financial performance on the date of payment.  The expense is 
classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more 
than the capitalisation threshold.  

8.3
Accruals and payables not recognised 
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements at cost at the reporting date.

8.4 Leases

8.4.1

Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are 
recognised as current expenditure in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

8.4.2

Finance leases 
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised 
as capital expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the 
date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements and are not apportioned between the capital and 
interest portions.  

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded 
and measured at the lower of:
• cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

• the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any 
payments made to acquire ownership at the end of the lease 
term, excluding interest.

9 Aid Assistance

9.1

Aid assistance received
Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of 
financial performance when received.  In-kind aid assistance is 
recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt 
and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised 
funds from aid assistance that are required to be refunded to the donor  
are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

9.2

Aid assistance paid
Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of payment. Aid assistance payments made 
prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the 
statement of financial position.
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10

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of 
financial position.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of 
financial position as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid 
investments and bank overdrafts.

11

Prepayments and advances
Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial 
position when the department receives or disburses the cash.  

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured 
at cost.

Prepayments are expensed when the payment for goods/service 
relating the prepayment has been made.   

12

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial 
position at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less 
amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are made according 
to the department’s write-off policy.

13
Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
cost.

14 Financial assets

14.1

Financial assets
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial 
asset.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at 
cost, less amounts already settled or written-off, except for recognised 
loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued 
interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or 
written-off. 

14.2

Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an 
estimation of the reduction in the recorded carrying value, to reflect the 
best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected 
to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements.

15
Payables
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are 
recognised at cost.
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16 Capital Assets

16.1

Immovable capital assets
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department 
are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost or fair 
value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets 
acquired in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at 
the date of acquisition.  Immovable assets are subsequently carried in 
the asset register at cost and are not currently subject to depreciation 
or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the 
existing asset when ready for use.

16.2

Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements at cost.  Movable capital assets acquired through a non-
exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.  

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, 
the movable capital assets are measured at fair value and where fair 
value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by 
the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not 
subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost 
of the existing asset when ready for use.

16.3

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements at cost.  Intangible assets acquired through a non-exchange 
transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements when the department commences the development 
phase of the project.  

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, 
the intangible capital assets are measured at fair value and where fair 
value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by 
the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject 
to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the 
existing asset when ready for use. 

16.4

Project Costs: Work-in-progress
Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of 
financial performance at cost when paid. 

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts 
recognised and accumulated in work-in-progress until the underlying 
asset is ready for use.  Once ready for use, the total accumulated 
payments are recorded in an asset register.  Subsequent payments to 
complete the project are added to the capital asset in the asset register. 

Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project 
asset, the asset is transferred to the custodian subsequent to 
completion.
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17 Provisions and Contingents

17.1

Provisions
Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 
there is a present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic 
benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the 
funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements when there is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the 
control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is 
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably.

17.3

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when a possible asset arises from past events, and whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not within the control of the department.

17.4

Commitments 
Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at 
cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is a contractual 
arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a 
valid expectation that the department will discharge its responsibilities 
thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of 
cash.  

18

Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial 
position until such time as the expenditure is either:
• approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding 

and the related funds are received; or

• approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without 
funding and is written off against the appropriation in the 
statement of financial performance; or

• transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed 
unauthorised expenditure.

19

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements when confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal 
to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the 
financial statements when it is resolved or transferred to receivables 
for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the 
amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when 
settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.
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20

Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal to the value of the 
irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in 
which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.  

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned 
by the relevant authority, transferred to receivables for recovery or not 
condoned and is not recoverable.   

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is 
expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or 
subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21

Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors
Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have 
been applied retrospectively in accordance with MCS requirements, 
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy.  In such 
instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective 
restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in 
accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the 
error has occurred in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the 
extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or 
the cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the department shall 
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the 
earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

22

Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events 
have been accounted for in the financial statements.  The events after 
the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after 
the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.  

23

Departures from the MCS requirements
 Management has concluded that the financial statements present 
fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; that 
the department complied with the Standard and there has been no 
departure from the Modified Cash System. 

24

Capitalisation reserve
The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities 
originating in a prior reporting period but which are recognised in the 
statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting 
period.  Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when 
identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/
Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and 
the related funds are received.

25

Recoverable revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment 
made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor 
in the current financial year.  Amounts are either transferred to the 
National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred 
to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2018



241Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

26

Related party transactions
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or 
obligations between the reporting entity and a related party. Related 
party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in 
the notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at 
arm’s length. 

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation 
is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

27

Inventories 
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the 
statement of financial performance.

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, 
the inventories are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value or where intended for distribution (or consumed in the 
production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal charge, the 
lower of cost and current replacement value.

The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost 
basis.

28

Employee benefits
The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, 
payables not recognised and provisions) is disclosed in the Employee 
benefits note.
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

PART B:  EXPLANATORY NOTES

1. Annual Appropriation 
1.1  Annual Appropriation
Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the 
Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National Departments (Voted funds) and 
Provincial Departments:

2017/18                        2016/17

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Funds 

Received

Funds not 
requested/

not 
received

Final 
Appropriation

Appropriation 
received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 596 690 596 690 - 232 386 232 386

Planning, Policy 
Coordination, 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation

109 072 109 072 - 133 554 133 554

Institutional 
Development 
and 
Organisational  
Support

155 182 155 182 - 161 679 161 679

Total 860 944 860 942 - 527 619 527 619

2. Departmental revenue 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services other than 
capital assets

2.1 172 169

Sales of capital assets 2.2 - 330

Transactions in financial assets and 
liabilities

2.3 161 3

Total revenue collected 333 502

Less: Own revenue included in 
appropriation

13 (323) (277)

Departmental revenue collected 10 225

1.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Note 2017/18 2016/17

2 R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services produced 
by the department

Other sales 172 169

Total 172 169



243Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1.2 Sale of capital assets

Note 2017/18 2016/17
2 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 28 - 330

Total - 330

1.3 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
2 R’000 R’000

Other receipts including recoverable 
revenue 161 3

Total 161 3

3. Aid assistance 
2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening Balance 2 282 1 792
As restated - 1 792
Transferred from statement of 
financial performance - 490

Paid during the year (2 282) -
Closing Balance - 2 282

1.1 Analysis of balance by source 

2017/18 2016/17
Note R’000 R’000

Aid assistance from RDP 3 - 2 282
-

Closing balance - 2 282
 

1.2 Analysis of balance 

2017/18 2016/17
Note R’000 R’000

Aid assistance unutilised 3 - 2 282

Closing balance - 2 282

4. Compensation of employees 

1.1 Salaries and Wages 

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Basic salary 171 431 162 574
Performance award 4 525 4 074
Service Based 269 227
Compensative/circumstantial 18 225 5 732
Other non-pensionable allowances 33 624 43 919
Total 228 074 216 526
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4.2 Social contributions
2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Employer contributions
Pension 20 267 19 103
Medical 6 505 6 412
UIF 249 258
Bargaining council 32 25
Total 27 053 25 798

Total compensation of employees 
255 127 242 324

Average number of employees 395 403

5. Goods and services 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 649 555
Advertising 6 822 7 195
Minor assets 5.1 40 508
Bursaries (employees) 271 276
Catering 5 750 8 424
Communication 3 380 4 262
Computer services 5.2 213 302 77 913
Consultants: Business and advisory 
services 32 396 29 625

Legal services 1 695 3 957
Contractors 5 052 3 662
Agency and support / outsourced 
services 2 097 9 384

Audit cost – external 5.3 4 211 4 117
Fleet services 1 866 1 477
Consumables 5.4 2 139 2 120
Property payments 5.5 812 126
Transport provided as part of the 
departmental activities 1 231 2 179

Travel and subsistence 5.6 18 687 18 199
Venues and facilities 2 458 4 270
Training and development 1 210 1 588
Other operating expenditure 5.7 1 937 2 225
Total 306 005 182 062
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5.1 Minor assets 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 40 508
Machinery and equipment 40 508

Total 40 508

5.2  Computer services 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Computer services 209 815 76 448
External computer service providers 3 485 1 465
Total 213 300 77 913

5.3  Audit cost – External  

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 4 211 4 117
Total 4  211 4 117

5.4  Consumables 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Cons supplies 1 312 854
Uniform and clothing 123 13
Household supplies 713 538
IT Consumables 9

Other Consumables 476 294

Stationery, printing and office 
supplies

827 1 266

Total 2 139 2 120
 

5.5  Property payments 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Property maintenance and repairs 812 -
Other 126
Total 812 126

 

5.6  Travel and subsistence 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Local 18 083 17 160
Foreign 604 1 039
Total 18 687 18 199
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5.7  Other operating expenditure 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
5 R’000 R’000

Professional bodies, membership and 
sub fees

50 40

Resettlement costs 130 28
Other 1 757 2 157
Total 1 937 2 225

6. Payments for financial assets 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Debts written off
Other

6.1
-

56

35

-
Total 56 35

1.1 Debts written off 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
6 R’000 R’000

Nature of debts written off
Staff Debts - 35

Total 56 35

7. Transfers and subsidies

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Note
Provinces and municipalities Annex 1A 96 898 -
Departmental agencies and 
accounts

Annex 1B 39 158 43 811

Households Annex 1C 58 025 29 218
Total 194 081 73 029

Unspent funds transferred to the above 
beneficiaries 
ECSECC  3 366 3 097

SAMSA           - 3 247

ECRDA 2 822

Total 3 366 9 166
 

8. Expenditure for capital assets 
 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 7 977 8 853
Machinery and equipment 28 7 977 8 853

Total 7 977 8 853
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8.1  Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2017/18

Voted funds Aid 
assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 7 977 7 977
Intangible assets
Software

Total           7 977 7 977
 
 

8.2  Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2016/17 

Voted funds Aid 
assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 8 853 8 853
Machinery and equipment 8 853 - 8 853

Intangible assets - -
Software - - -

Total 8 853 - 8 853
 

8.3  Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital  
       assets

2017/18 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 5 596 7 283
Machinery and equipment 5 596 7 283
Total 5 596 7 283

9. Cash and cash equivalents

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 69 084 20 477
Cash receipts (10) -
Investments (Domestic) - 2 282
Total 69 074 22 759

10. Prepayments and advances

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Prepayments (Not expensed) 10.2 1 266 2 059
Advances paid (Not expensed) 10.1 - 1 489
Total 1 266 3 548

10.1  Advances paid (Not expensed) 

Note Balance as 
at 1 April 

2017

Less: 
Amount 

expensed in 
current year

Add: 
Current Year 

advances

Balance as 
at 31 March 

2018

10 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Public entities 1 489 (1 489) - -
Total 1 489 (1 489) - -
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11.1 Claims recoverable
2017/18 2016/17

 R’000 R’000
Provincial departments Annex 3 42 310 3 426
Total 42 310 3 426

11.2  Recoverable expenditure  

Note 2017/18 2016/17
11 R’000 R’000

Tax Debt          10 9
Total 10 9

11.3  Staff debt 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
11 R’000 R’000

Staff debt 565 640
Total 565 640

 

11.4  Impairment of receivables 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Staff Debts - 25
Total - 25

10.2 Prepayments (Not expensed) 

Note
Balance 
as at 1 

April 2017

Less: 
Amount 

expensed in 
current year

Add: 
Current Year 
prepayments

Balance 
as at 31 
March 
2018

14 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and 
services

2 059 (2 059)       1 266        1 266

Total 2 059 (2 059)       1 266        1 266

11. Receivables 

Current Non-
current Total Current

Non-
current

Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims 
recoverable

11.1                
42 310  -                 

42 310 3 426 - 3 426

Staff debt 11.3 520 45 565 536 104 640

Recoverable 
expenditure

11.2 10 - 10 9 - 9

Total     42 840 45     42 885 3 971 104 4 075
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12. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
Opening balance 21 316 26 786

Prior period error 12.2 - -

As restated 21 316 26 786

Transfer from statement of financial 
performance (as restated)

97 698 21 316

Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 - -

Paid during the year (21 316) (26 786)

Closing balance 97 698 21 316

13. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to  
 the Revenue Fund 

Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
Opening balance 14 16

Prior period error 13.1 -

As restated 14 16
Transfer from Statement of Financial 
Performance (as restated)

10 225

Own revenue included in appropriation 323 277

Paid during the year (281) (504)

Closing balance 66 14

14. Payables – current
Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000

Advances received 14.1 14 839 6 637
Clearing accounts 14.2     622 133
Total 15 461 6 770

14.1 Advances received
Annex 

8B
2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

National departments 1 779 1 206
Provincial departments 13 060 5 431
Total 14 839 6 637

1.2 Clearing accounts
Note 2017/18 2016/17
14 R’000 R’000

Clearing accounts 622 133
Total 622 133
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15. Net cash flow available from operating activities 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial 
Performance

97 710 22 031

Add back non cash/cash movements not 
deemed operating activities

(43 418) (20 143)

Increase in receivables – current (38 810) (3 349)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and 
advances

2 282 (833)

Increase in payables – current 8 691 2 529
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - (330)
Expenditure on capital assets 7 977 8 853
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (21 597) (27 290)
Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor (2 282) -
Voted funds not requested - -
Own revenue included in appropriation 323 277
Net cash flow generated by operating 
activities

54 294 1 888

16. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow 
purposes

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account 69 084 20 477
Cash with commercial banks (Local)
Cash receipts                                                                     

-
(10)

2 282

-
Total 69 074 22 759

17. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

17.1  Contingent liabilities 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A 62 62
Claims against the department Annex 2B 21 999 4 732
Total 22 061 4 794

All cases listed on the contingent liabilities are currently open. As at 31 March 2018 the 
department is not certain as to when these cases will be concluded. The department is 
defending all the cases.

17.2 Contingent assets

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Nature of contingent asset
Claims by the department - 250
Total - 250
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Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
Listed by programme level
Administration 5 298 28 119
Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation  1 190 1 077

Institutional Development and Organisational  
Support 18 778 655

Total 25 266 29 851
 

19.2   Payables not recognised 

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification
30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services      1 124 21  1 145       5 008
Other - 133 - 133    881
Total 1 257 21 1 278 5 889

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level
Administration 499 3 498

Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 279 725

Institutional Development and Organisational  
Support 500 1 666

Total 1 278 5 889

18. Commitments

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 2 824 666 88 141
Approved but not yet contracted - 115 488

Total Commitments 2 824 666 203 629

Included in the Commitments are commitments longer than a year amounting to 
R2, 7 billion.

19. Accruals and payables not recognised 

19.1    Accruals 

2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 24 907 221 25 128 29 484

Other 138 -      138 367

Total 25 045 221 25 266 29 851
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21. Lease commitments 

21.1   Operating leases 

2017/18

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total

Not later than 1 year 97 97
Total lease 
commitments

97 97

2016/17

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total

Not later than 1 year 73 73

Total lease 
commitments 73 73

 
 

2017/18 2016/17

Included in the above totals are the 
following: R’000 R’000

Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 4 399 -

Total 399 -

 

20. Employee benefits 

2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
Leave entitlement (with negative balance) 11 156 9 235

Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 6 139 5 816

Total 17 295 15 051

Included in leave entitlement are negative leave balances amounting to 
R213 000.
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The finance leases relate to printers and photocopies, government fleet and 
cellular phones.

Cellular phones: The service level agreement allows for the renewal of the 
lease and does not include any escalation clauses. 

Printers and photocopy machines: The service level agreement allows 
for the renewal of the lease and does not include any escalation clauses. 
Restrictions imposed on the department relate to repairs and maintenance, 
disposal and sub leasing of assets.

Fleet :The service level agreement with department of transport  is in place 
for a indefinite period and includes the review of the rates on an annual basis 
in terms of National Treasury Regulations (19.5.3). However, each vehicle is 
leased for a period of 4 years. Restrictions relate to repairs and maintenance, 
disposals enhancement and sub-leasing.

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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for the year ended 31 March 2018

21.2  Finance leases  

2017/18

Specialised 
military 

equipment
Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment

 

Total
Not later than 1 year - - - 3 603 3 603
Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years - - - 4 924 4 924
Total lease 
commitments

- - - 8 527 8 527

2016/17

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment
Total

Not later than 1 year - - - 6 398 6 398
Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years - - - 2 520 2 520

Total lease 
commitments

- - - 8 918 8 918
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22.2  Details of irregular expenditure – added current year (relating to  
           current and prior years)

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings

2017/18

R’000
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 181
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 295
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 Awaiting condonation from NT 68
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 713
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 150
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 295
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 Awaiting condonation from NT 159
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 168
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 70
Non-compliance with PPPFA Under investigation 7
Non-compliance with PPPFA Awaiting condonation from NT 749
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 Under investigation 378
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 Under investigation 2 707
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 Awaiting condonation from NT 114
Non-compliance with PPPFA Under investigation 8 501
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 103
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 12
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 1000
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 3499
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 2639
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 2221
Non-compliance with TR16A6.4 Under investigation 699

Total 24 728

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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22. Irregular expenditure 

22.1  Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 8 319 4 410
Prior period error - -
As restated 8 319 4 410
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year 1 719 -
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 23 009 3 909
Less: Prior year amounts condoned (22) -
Less: Current year amounts condoned - -
Closing balance 33 025 8 319

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age 
classification
Current year 23 009 3 909
Prior years 10 016 4 410
Total 33 025 8 319



255Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

22.3  Details of irregular expenditure condoned 
 

Incident Condoned by (condoning 
authority)

2017/18

R’000
Irregular relates to prior year Condoned (22)

Total (22)
 
 

2017/18
22.4 Details of irregular expenditure under investigation (not included in the main note) R'000

Incident
142 771 

Total 142 771 
After the OTP invoked Treasury Regulation 16A6.6 and enlisted the services of Liquid Telecoms (LT) for the 
roll-out of broadband network services (Broadband) in the Eastern Cape Province, SITA launched an interdict 
and review application in the Bisho High Court under case number 250/2018.  SITA has since abandoned the 
interdict application.  The review application will be heard on 23 August 2018.  The court is being asked to 
decide on the following issues: 
a) Was the ECPG entitled to enlist LT without using SITA to procure the services?  This question relates to 
whether ECPG was entitled to invoke SITA regulation 17.6.  In this regard the Eastern Cape Provincial 
Government’s (ECPG’s) position is that SITA’s delay and inability to assist ECPG threatened the delivery of 
Broadband to where it is needed most, and as soon as possible.
b) Furthermore, the second question is in respect of ECPG elected to, in terms of Treasury Regulation 
16A6.6, participate in a contract procured by SITA/Western Cape Provincial Government (WCPG) for the 
rollout of Broadband in the Western Cape.  That contract (RFB1161) was concluded by SITA on behalf of 
WCPG after following a competitive process.  In using TR16A6.6, ECPG obtained conditional consent from 
SITA.  However, a key issue the High Court will have to determine is whether ECPG needed SITA’s consent at 
all since it was merely acting as an agent on behalf of WCPG.  If the court decides that ECPG properly 
invoked SITA Regulation 17.6 and Treasury regulation 16A6.6, then enlisting of LT by ECPG will be confirmed 
by the High Court to be lawful and, of course, expenditure will remain as not being irregular. 

Expenditure incured to date

23. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

23.1  Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Note 2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 2 021 11
Prior period error - -
As restated 2 021 11
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – 
relating to prior year

- 1 912

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – 
relating to current year

29 98

Less: Amounts resolved (28) -
Closing balance 2 022 2 021

 

23.2 Analysis of awaiting resolution per economic classification 

2017/18 2016/17
R’000 R’000

Current 29 98
29 98

23.3  Analysis of Current year’s (relating to current and prior years)  
 fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings

2017/18

R’000
Officials not attended training Under investigation 9
Officials not attended training Under investigation 11
Late cancellation fee Resolved 9

Total 29
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24. Related party transactions 

All Departments within the province are related to the Office of the Premier, in 
particular the following are disclosed:

 ECSECC – a Public Entity reporting to the Office of Premier, 

ECRDA -  a Public Entity where Office of the Premier transferred funds for 
certain projects 

The Eastern Cape Department Roads and Public Works – For the use of 
buildings, 

The Eastern Cape Department of Education – For which the Office of the 
Premier entered into certain transactions as part of the Premier’s intervention.

The Eastern Cape Department of Transport – For the lease of the fleet.

 

25. Key management personnel

No. of 
Individuals

2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
Political office bearers 1 2 260 2 173
Officials:

Level 15 to 16 8 12 889 11 767
Level 14 20 24 906 21 454

Total 40 055 35 394

26. Provisions
Note 2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000
 Performance Awards 4 110 3 850
 Capped Leave Commitments 13 577 13 535
Total 17 687 17 385

26.1  Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2017/18

Performance 
Awards

Capped 
Leave 

Commitments
Total provisions

R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 850 13 535 17 385
Increase in provision 260 42 302
Settlement of provision
Closing balance 4 110 13 577 17 687

Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2016/17

Performance 
Awards

Capped Leave 
Commitments

Total 
provisions

R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 503 15 023 18 526
Increase in provision 347 - 347
Settlement of provision - (1 488) (1 488)
Closing balance 3 850 13 535 17 385

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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27. Non-adjusting events after reporting date

2017/18
Nature of event R’000

Orders decommitted after year end   733

Total 733

28. Movable Tangible Capital Assets 

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT

27 131 2 381 1 325 28 187

Transport assets - 1 481 1 481
Computer equipment 11 332 895 722 11 505
Furniture and office 
equipment

13 509 5 340 13 174

Other machinery and 
equipment

2 290 - 263 2 027

TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

27 131 2 381 1 325 28 187

Movable Tangible Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value 
R’000

Included in the above total of the movable 
tangible capital assets per the asset register 
are assets that are under investigation:

          

Machinery and equipment 87

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE
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28.2  Disposals
Sold for 
cash

Non-cash 
disposal

Total 
disposals

Cash 
received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT

1 325 1 325

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT
Transport assets
Computer equipment 722 722 

Furniture and office 
equipment

340 340 

Other machinery and 
equipment

263 263 

SPECIALISED 
MILITARY ASSETS
Specialised military 
assets

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - -
TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

1 325 1 325

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

28.1  Additions 

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Cash
Non-
cash

(Capital 
Work in 

Progress 
current 

costs and 
finance 
lease 

payments)

Received 
current, 
not paid

(Paid 
current 

year, 
received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT

7 980 (5 599) 2 381

Transport assets 3 126 (1 645) 1 481
Computer 
equipment

895 895

Furniture and office 
equipment

5 5

Other machinery 
and equipment

3 954 (3 954) -

TOTAL ADDITIONS 
TO MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

7 980 (5 599) 2 381
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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28.3  Movement for 2016/17

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT

26 658 1 570 1 097 27 131

Transport assets 1 097 - 1 097 -
Computer equipment 10 167 1 165 - 11 332
Furniture and office 
equipment

13 104 405 - 13 509

Other machinery and 
equipment

2 290 - - 2 290

TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

26 658 1 570 1 097 27 131

28.4  Minor assets 
 

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Intangible 
assets

Machinery and 
equipment Total

Opening balance 

Additions 

Disposals

7 825

40

(324)

7 825

40
(324)

7 541 7 541

Minor Capital Assets under investigation
Number Value 

R’000
Included in the above total of the minor capital 
assets per the asset register are assets that are 
under investigation:

Machinery and equipment 30 59
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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29. Intangible Capital Assets 

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Software 6 262 - - - 6 262

Patents, 
licences, 
copyright

1 098 - - - 1 098

TOTAL 
INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL 
ASSETS

7 360 - - - 7 360

28.5  Minor assets 
 

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Intangible 
assets

Machinery and 
equipment

Total

Opening balance 

Additions 

7 317

508

7 317

508
7 825 7 825

28.6  Movable assets written off 

Intangible assets
Machinery and 

equipment
Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets written off 1 325 1 325

TOTAL MOVABLE 
ASSETS WRITTEN 
OFF

1 325 1 325

Movable assets to the value of R1.3 million were written off as there were no 
economic benefits being realised.  Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 Total 

                                                 
 Number of minor assets at cost 5 320 5 320

 TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 5 320 5 320
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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29.1  Movement for 2016/17 

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening 
balance

Prior 
period 
error

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Software 6 262 - - - 6 262

Patents, licences, 
copyright, brand 
names, trademarks

1 098 - - - 1 098

TOTAL 
INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

7 360 - - - 7 360

Intangible Assets under investigation

Number Value 
R’000

Included in the above total of the intangible 
assets per the asset register are assets that are 
under investigation:

Software 12 4 794

These intangible assets are still under investigation.     
 

30. Immovable Tangible Capital Assets 

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS 
AND OTHER 
FIXED 
STRUCTURES

69 679 - - 3 946 65 733

Other fixed 
structures

69 679 - - 3 946 65 733

TOTAL 
IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL 
ASSETS

69 679 - - 3 946 65 733
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30.1 Disposals 

Sold for 
cash

Non-
cash 
disposal

Total 
disposals

Cash 
received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
BUILDING AND OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES
Other fixed structures 3 946 3 946

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF IMMOVABLE 3 946 3 946

30.2 Movement for 2016/17 

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening 
balance

Prior 
period 
error

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND 
OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES

69 679 - - - 69 679

Other fixed structures 69 679 - - - 69 679

TOTAL 
IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

69 679 - - - 69 679

30.3 Immovable assets written off 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Heritage 
assets

Land and 
subsoil 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets written off 3 946 3 946

TOTAL IMMOVABLE 
ASSETS WRITTEN OFF

3 946 3 946

Immovable assets to the value of R3.9 million were written off due to the fact 
that there was no economic benefit being realised.

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018



263Office of the Premier                             2017/18 Annual Report

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 1A
 
STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND OTHER TRANSFERS PAID TO MUNICIPALITIES

NAME OF 
MUNICIPALITY

GRANT ALLOCATION TRANSFER SPENT 2016/17

DoRA 
and 

other 
transfers

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer
Funds 

Withheld

Re-allocations 
by National 

Treasury 
or National 
Department

Amount 
received 

by 
municipality

Amount  
spent by 

municipality

Unspent 
funds

% of  
available 

funds 
spent by 

municipality

Division 
of 

Revenue 
Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000

Ntabankulu 
Municipality

8 102

Raymond 
Municipality

11 287

Nyandeni 
Municipality

25 272

Port St Johns 5 091

Sundays River 
Valley

35 579

Elundini 
Municipality

11 566

TOTAL 96 897
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ANNEXURE 1B
 
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND ACCOUNTS

DEPARTMENTAL AGENCY/ ACCOUNT

2017/2018 2016/17

TRANSFER ALLOCATION TRANSFER

Adjusted
Appropriation

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available 

funds 
Transferred

Final 
Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000

ECSECC 39 158 39 158 39 158 37 011

ECRDA - 3 553

SAMSA - 3 247

TOTAL 39 158 39 158 39 158 43 811
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 1C
 
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

 
HOUSEHOLDS

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE 2016/17

Adjusted
Appropriation 

Act

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available 

funds 
Transferred

Final 
Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000

Transfers
Leave Gratuity 1 611 2 653

Severance Package 1 153 749

Injury on Duty 1 23

Bursaries non-employees 27 110 103

Other households 28 150 25 690

TOTAL        58 025 29 218
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 1D

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

NAME OF ORGANISATION NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP
2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000

Received in cash

Mtn 10 laptops 60

Standard Bank Tickets for Grahamstown  festival 1 150

Peiter Mare Scarf *2 R350 each for R700 1

Subtotal 2 210

Received in kind

Subtotal - -

TOTAL 2 210
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 1E

STATEMENT OF AID ASSISTANCE RECEIVED

NAME OF DONOR PURPOSE OPENING 
BALANCE REVENUE EXPENDI-TURE PAID BACK ON/BY 

31 MARCH
CLOSING 
BALANCE

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Received in cash

European Union Rural Livelihoods Development  2 282   (2 282) -

TOTAL 2 282 (2 282) -
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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ANNEXURE 1F

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS MADE 

NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP

(Group major categories but list material items including name of organisation

2017/18 2016/17

R’000 R’000

Made in kind

Local and foreign 619 41

Staff 3 18

Communities - 881

TOTAL 622 940
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

 ANNEXURE 2A 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED AS AT 31 MARCH 2018– LOCAL

Guarantor 
institution

Guarantee in 
respect of

Original 
guaranteed 
capital 
amount

Opening 
balance 
1 April 2017

Guarantees 
draw downs
during the 
year

Guarantees 
repayments/ 
cancelled/ 
reduced/ 
released 
during the 
year

Revaluations

Closing 
balance
31 March 
2018

Guaranteed 
interest for 
year ended 31 
March 2018

Realised 
losses not 
recoverable 
i.e. claims 
paid out

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Housing

ABSA 62 62

TOTAL 62 62
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 2B

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Nature of Liability

Opening 
Balance 

Liabilities 
incurred 

during the 
year

Liabilities 
paid/

cancelled/
reduced 

during the 
year

Liabilities 
recoverable 

(Provide 
details 

hereunder)

Closing 
Balance

1 April 2017 31 March 2018

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims against the department    

Contractual Disputes 4 732 17 267 21 999

 

TOTAL 4 732 17 267 21 999
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 3 

CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

Government Entity

Confirmed balance 
outstanding

Unconfirmed balance 
outstanding Total Cash in transit at year end 

2017/18 *

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Receipt date 
up to six (6) 

working days 
after year end

Amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Department
Department of Education 36 155 - - 2 432 36 155 2 432

Department of Economic Dev - - - - - -

Department of Social Development - - 92 436 92 436

Department of Sports, Arts & Culture - - 126 126 -

Department of Traditional Affairs 91 - - - 91 -

Provincial Treasury 71 - - - 71 -

Department of Transport - - 105 91 105 91

Safety 22 - - - 22 -

Rural Development 54 - - - 54 -

Department of Health - - 303 255 303 255

Roads and  Public Works 150 - - 117 150 117

Human Settlement 183 - - 94 183 94

WRSITA - - 4 958 - 4 958 -

TOTAL 36 726 - 5 584 3 425 42 310 3 425
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ANNEXURE 4
 
INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

GOVERNMENT ENTITY

Confirmed balance 
outstanding

Unconfirmed balance 
outstanding TOTAL Cash in transit at year end 

2017/18 *

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Payment date 
up to six (6) 

working days 
before year 

end

Amount

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

DEPARTMENTS

Current

Dept of Public Works 1 1

Dept of School of Government 138 138

Dept of Justice 398 398

Dept of  Justice 1 073 1 073

OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITY

SARS 1 328 1 328

TOTAL 399 - 2 539 2 938
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ANNEXURE 8A

INTER-ENTITY ADVANCES PAID (note 14)

ENTITY

Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding TOTAL

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

PUBLIC ENTITIES

Public entities - 1 489 - - - 1 489

TOTAL - 1 489 - - - 1 489

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
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ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ANNEXURE 8B

INTER-ENTITY ADVANCES RECEIVED (Note)

ENTITY

Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding TOTAL

31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

NATIONAL DEPARTMENTS
Current
National Skills Funds 1 779 1 206 1 206

 

 

 

Subtotal 1 779 1 206 1 206

PROVINCIAL DEPARTMENTS
Current
National Skills Funds 13 060       5 431       5 431

 

 

 

Subtotal 13 060 5 431 5 431

TOTAL 14 839 6 637 6 637
Current 14 839 6 637 6 637
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Definition of Performance inDicators for strategic objectives

1.1 Improved institutionalisation of integrated planning

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 74% or less of departmental 5 year Strategic Plans are aligned to the PDP and 
P-MTSF;

	 74% or less of departmental Annual Performance Plans and Operational/or Projects 
are aligned to the IGCP /PoA 

	 All departments have 5 year Strategic Plan aligned to the PDP and P-MTSF and drafted in 
accordance with the relevant guidelines

	 Annual Performance Plan and Operational/or Projects aligned to the PoA and drafted in 
accordance with the relevant guidelines 

	Delivery agreements of MEC aligned to the PoA and HoD agreement aligned to the APP
	 Staff performance agreements aligned to the APP and APP and Ops Plans/Projects Plan 
	 PoA must be ready and approved by March of every year 
	Draft P-MTSF must be ready and approved by year 4 of the strategic planning cycle
	 Infrastructure Plans aligned to priorities
	 Strategic Plans and APPs conforms to the planning regulations

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 75% or more of departmental 5 year Strategic Plans are aligned to the PDP and 
P-MTSF;

	 75% or more of departmental Annual Performance Plan and Operational/or Projects 
are aligned to the IGCP /PoA

	 Legislation to coordinate integrated planning in the province adopted
	Review of departmental plans done and departments given feedback by the 2nd quarter for 

1st submission and 3rd quarter for the 2nd submission
	Review of IDPs at local government and feedback given by the third quarter annually
	Development of Provincial Spatial plan
	 Projects in department spatially referenced and integrated with IDPs
	 Infrastructure Plans of departments aligned with the PDP and IDPs
	 Sector (Local Economic Development Plans, Education, Health Plans) aligned with IDPs
	 The Provincial integrated skills plan is reviewed in line with the PDP and P-MTSF
	Registration of planners to professional bodies

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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1.2 Improved evidence based decision making  

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 The Province does not have a research agenda or 
	Research agenda is not aligned to the PDP and P-MTSF

	 Policy and programme analysis projects completed
	Research and development capacity developed 
	Research findings consumed and used to inform policy development and implementation 

and service delivery improvement interventions
	 Knowledge database established and maintained
	 Provincial Research forums re-established and functional

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 The Province has  a research agenda  and it is aligned to the PDP and P-MTSF 	Departmental research plans aligned to the agenda 
	Research conducted by institutions outside government are mainstreamed
	Develop and maintain protocols and processes for conducting research.
	Research activities on provincial and sector specific programmes that supports evidence 

based policy decisions
	 Partnerships with all spheres of government, academia, research institutions and 

communities of practices.
	 Structured processes to source funding to conduct research

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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2.2 Improved interdepartmental coordination at all spheres

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	Non coordination of strategic projects which results in delays in implementation
	 Failure to support, monitor and report on key government projects and programmes
	No information on or database for strategic projects and programmes in the province

	 Establish baseline data for:
o Basic Services (Electrification, Water and Sanitation)
o Premier’s Intervention Projects

	Collate, analyse and provide strategic reports
	Coordinate departments and stakeholders to participate in platforms that deal with 

strategic projects and programmes
	 Facilitate and monitor the implementation  of strategic projects and programmes
	 Facilitate and monitor implementation of KSD Presidential Intervention
	Development  and approval of indicator framework
	Develop data monitoring tools and reporting template
	Capacitation of M&E practitioners on data collection tools 
	  Ensure timely submission of complete data
	Conduct data verification
	Data analysis and report writing

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 Strategic projects and programmes identified from the SONA, PDP, P-MTSF and SOPA 	Departments monitoring the implementation of strategic projects and programmes 
without the support from the OTP

	Dashboard of strategic projects and programmes and implementation status existent. 
	Conduct review session with sector departments
	Development of improvement plans
	Monitor the implementation of improvement plans
	 Improved service delivery

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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2.3 A responsive public service

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	Government not responding to concerns of communities.
	Non-existence of mechanisms, processes and procedures for managing community 

concerns.

	 Effective mechanisms, processes and procedures for managing community and 
stakeholders concerns. 

	 80% of community concerns addressed/responded to. 
	 Improved government perception survey results. 
	 Effective and functional mechanisms by departments to ensure that community concerns 

are addressed. 

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 Poor management of mechanisms for managing community and stakeholder concerns.
	 Ineffective mechanisms, processes and procedures for managing community and 

stakeholders concerns.  
	 Poor response to concerns of communities and stakeholders.

	 100% community concerns are adequately responded to.
	Majority of the Citizens have confidence in government.
	Minimal service delivery protests.

2.4 Improved access to quality services

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 Lack of participation of citizens in monitoring government programmes.
	Non-existence of mechanisms for involving citizens in government programmes.
	 Lack of plans to improve the quality of service delivery.
	 Lack of involvement of departments and municipalities in implementation of service 

delivery monitoring. 
	No citizen satisfaction surveys conducted.

	 Functional governance structures involving citizens.
	 Participation of citizens in monitoring for improved service delivery.
	 Annual front line service delivery monitoring plan fully implemented
	Departments and municipalities providing resources for the implementation of service 

delivery improvement plans
	 Implementation of service delivery improvement plans for all targeted facilities fully 

monitored.
	 Profiling of facilities demonstrating best practice
	Capacitation of  M&E / Research practitioners  
	 Support departments in development of concept notes for evaluation
	 Support evaluation processes
	 Assess evaluation report from implementing departments 
	Develop improvement plans to influence policy reviews

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	Non-functional governance structures involving citizens.
	Non-implementation of service delivery monitoring improvement plan by departments and 

municipalities.
	Under-resourced service delivery improvement plans.
	 Limited involvement of departments and municipalities in implementation of service 

delivery improvement plans.
	 An annual front line service delivery visit schedule developed and approved by the 

Department and the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME)
	 Training for front line service delivery monitors coordinated
	 Irregular conducting of citizen satisfaction survey.

	Departments and municipalities conducting their own service delivery monitoring for 
improved service delivery. 

	Departments and municipalities monitoring the implementation of service delivery 
improvement plans and sustaining improvements in the targeted facilities 

	Departments and municipalities meeting the required service delivery standards.
	 All targeted facilities conducting regular citizen satisfaction surveys.
	Mapping up of  GIS to identify planning  need
	Review the POA/ Cluster plans and integrate with departmental APPs
	 Spatial referencing of projects and integrate with IDP
	Development of an evidence based integrated cluster plans

2.5 Improved skills development for economic growth

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	Unemployed youth do not have access to skills development opportunities in the Province;
	 Engineering and TVET/HET Students do not access workplaces to gain a qualification in 

their fields of study

	 All departmental plans in place to host University of Technology (UOT) and TVET/HET 
students to gain workplace experience;

	 All Departments budget and plan for the placement of Interns;
	Municipalities place UOT and TVET/HET Students to gain workplace experience;
	Departments provide funding to students to access higher education;
	Office of the Premier train and coordinate the training of artisans;
	Office of the Premier mobilise funding towards the training of artisans;

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 Limited funding available for young people to access skills development opportunities;
	Workplaces are providing limited spaces to Engineering and TVET/HET Students to gain 

workplace experience and gain their qualifications;
	No alignment with strategic economic development projects;
	Government departments do not plan for the placement of Students;

	UOT and TVET Students access workplaces within three months of completing their 
classroom learning;

	Workplaces are made available to students for selection before they complete their 
classroom learning;

	 Artisan development programmes are aligned to economic development opportunities;
	 Artisan development programmes are made available to students;
	 Students who qualify get access to incubation programmes and start-up cooperatives 

and SMME’s;

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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3.2 An inclusive and unified Provincial brand

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 The Provincial communication strategy is not aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts
	 There no marketing and branding strategy for the Province
	 Local government and departmental communication strategies of districts are not aligned to 

the P-MTSF and other prescripts 
	 The Provincial and district communication coordinating structures are not functional
	Media communications is reactive 

	 The Provincial and local government communication coordinating structures are 
functional  (HoC, Core Team and Clusters)

	 The profiling of major government programmes
	 Provincial Communications policy and protocols developed

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 The Provincial communication strategy is  aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts
	 There is an approved marketing and branding strategy for the Province
	 Local government and departmental communication strategies of districts are aligned to the 

P-MTSF and other prescripts

	 Increased pro-active  voice of government in media space 
	 All major government engagements are profiled 
	 Improved public confidence in government

3.3 Improved social inclusion of designated groups 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	Weak integration of social cohesion programmes across all spheres of government 	 Public education on constitutional rights and responsibilities are explained to citizens 
	 The status of designated groups monitored to inform issues of service delivery 
	 Intergenerational programmes coordinated to foster understanding
	Capacity building on specific issues that relate to vulnerable groups

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 An integrated need based programme of action developed for social cohesion 	 Awareness programmes conducted with traditional leaders on protection of vulnerable 
groups

	  Reduction of crime perpetrated by people known to victims
	Reduction of crimes against vulnerable groups.
	 Increased pride, patriotism  and active citizenship of Eastern Cape people

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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3.4 Sound intergovernmental governance arrangements

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	No integrated planning between and within the spheres of government
	Duplication of efforts between different spheres of government
	 IGR agenda is too operational and not strategic
	Weak participation by departments in the IDP processes
	Dysfunctional IGR structures

	 Establishment of the implementation arm for the District IGR structures 
	 The District IGR steering committee functional
	 Establishment of functional district IGR structures
	 Establishment of the implementation arm for the local IGR structures 
	 The local IGR steering committee functional
	 Establishment of functional local IGR structures
	Monitoring of the implementation  IGR decisions

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 Establishment of the IGR implementation arm for the Provincial IGR structures
	 The Provincial IGR steering committee functional
	 A functional Premier Co-ordinating function (sitting at least twice per year)
	 Improved IGR agenda

	 Establishment of the implementation arm for the ward based IGR structures 
	 The ward based IGR steering committee functional
	 Establishment of functional ward based IGR structures
	Ward based plans developed and implemented 
	Common baselines being used for both provincial and local based planning
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3.5 Improved and meaningful participation of citizens in their own development

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 There is limited voice of communities in government integrated plans and programmes 
	Communities are not empowered to be able to sustain their own development
	 Partnerships with sectors are still at  inception level and therefore resources are not fully mobilised 

	Monitoring the implementation of the stakeholder and community participation 
strategy

	 Issues raised by communities and stakeholders find expression in  government 
integrated plans and programmes 

	Communities playing a role in monitoring service delivery

	 Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level 	 Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 A strategy of stakeholder and community participation developed 	 Voice of communities and stakeholders feature in policies that are developed
	Community are empowered to be able to sustain their own development
	 Partnerships are leveraged for service delivery (including mobilisation of 

resource)

4.7 Effective management and operations systems 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 74% or less of departments do not have documented and approved Standard Operating 
Procedures

	 Provincial Departments have not identified the key service areas for Business Process Mapping

	 Provincial Departments have concluded the “As-IS” and “TO-BE” process 
mapping

	 Provincial Departments have concluded the Standard Operating Procedures 
(SOPs) for all identified key services areas

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 75% or more of departments have identified their key services areas for BPM
	 Provincial Departments have conducted the phase one of BPM which include the mapping of “AS-

IS” processes 

	 Provincial Departments have completed the automation of Business Process 
Mapping

	 All SOPs are fully implemented by all Provincial Departments (N.B.) this is a 
continuous process.
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4.8 Skilled public service 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	Departments develop Workplace Skills Plans, but it is not aligned to the Strategic Plans of the 
Department;

	Departments do not develop HRD Implementation Plans;
	 Line Function Managers/ Supervisors do not prioritise core/critical skills training of officials
	Departments do not budget for skills development programmes for their employees;
	Departments do not report quarterly on their skills development programmes;
	Departments do not work with Sector Education and training Authorities to implement skills 

programmes;
	 Poor human resource planning to achieve core skills in most departments 
	Non-compliance regarding the skills development levy
	 Inconsistency and unco-ordinated governance structures for HRD (Skill Development 

Committee) Oversight structure

	Departments develop Workplace Skills Plans that are aligned with the Core 
Business of the Department;

	Departments develop HRD Implementation Plans that takes employees’ 
performance into account;

	 Line Function Managers/ Supervisors prioritise core/critical skills training of officials
	Departments budget for skills development programmes for their employees;
	Departments report quarterly on their skills development programmes;
	Departments work with Sector Education and training Authorities to implement 

skills programmes to develop the skills in the sector;
	 All departments implementing cross critical skills (transversal skills)
	 Skills interventions are aligned to project and programme capacity needs;
	  Functional governance structures for HRD (Skills Development Committee) 

Oversight structure
	Officials complete the training interventions successfully;

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	Departments develop Workplace Skills Plans, but it is not aligned to the Sector Development 
Plans;

	Departments do not consult Line Managers and Organised Labour in developing their HRD 
Plans;

	 Line Function Managers/ Supervisors do not prioritise core/critical skills training of officials
	 The WSP’s are not taking the Personal Development Plans of employees into account and is 

not considering performance outcomes;
	 All departments developing plans future core skills through internships, work integrated 

learning, artisans, learnerships and bursaries

	WSP’s are developed to make the maximum impact on the performance of the 
employees and the department;

	 There is a coordinated system in place;
	 Information on key programmes are available to employees and youth;
	Capacity of employees is aligned to the core objectives of a department;
	 All departments assessing the impact of training interventions;
	 Performance of officials increase after the completion of training;
	 Project performance improve service delivery;

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
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4.9 Professional public service.

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 74% or less of departments have approved culture change and Batho Pele revitalisation Plans 
	 There is no Provincial framework for business process development

	 All departments have approved Culture change and Batho Pele plans and or 
strategy

	 The implementation of these plans is monitored;
	 At least 10 Departments participating in the PSM Activities

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 75% or more of departments have approved culture change and Batho Pele Revitalisation 
Plans

	 A Provincial business process framework and methodology are in draft form

	Management in all departments discusses implementation reports of Culture 
Change and Batho Pele Revitalisation

	 At least 7 departments conducting customer satisfaction surveys
	 At least 5 Departments participating in the Khaedu Deployment Programme
	Departments monitoring the Resolutions taken during PSM 

4.10 Improved human resource capacity and effectiveness

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	Dysfunctional HRA processes with not clear SoPs,
	No focus on strategic policy directives like EE,
	No HR forecasting and effectiveness assessments,
	 Low levels of PMDS implementation,
	 There is no engagements with social partners and no adherence to prescripts,
	 Events-based Organizational and Employee Wellness programs not informed by Departmental 

needs.

	 Functional HRA processes for targeted departments (sourcing, PILIR, HR 
planning, HR policies, HR delegations,

	 Full compliance with EE requirements, 
	 PMDS utilised as operations improvement tool
	 Structured and efficient platforms of engagement between management and 

unions as well as adherence to prescripts,
	Needs-based and Results-based EHW Programmes are implemented in 

departments
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Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 Partially functional HRA processes with not clear SoPs,
	No focus on strategic policy directives like EE,
	 Incongruent HR forecasting and  limited effectiveness assessments,
	 Low levels of PMDS implementation and focus only on rewards,
	 There is no engagements with social partners and no adherence to prescripts,
	 Partially events-based O&EW programs not informed by departmental needs.

	HR units fulfil their strategic partner role and contribute to the overall achievement 
of goals,

	 Significantly improved processes in place to enhance administrative efficiencies,
	 The level of conversation with social partners enhances the transformation agenda 

of the state
	 PMDS is a service delivery improvement tool,
	 Employee Health and Wellness is one of the key elements of a departmental 

People Management Strategy

4.11 Improved leadership capacity and accountability 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	No Leadership Development Model in place;
	 Leadership Development programmes are implemented based on individual demands;
	Competency Assessments take place without considering the needs of departments;
	Competency Assessments not conducted 
	No Leadership training reports from Departments 

	 All SMS are properly inducted into the ECPA;
	Competency assessments conducted and the identified performance gaps are 

addressed
	 Leadership Development Programmes implemented across all levels of leadership;
	Coaching and Mentoring Programmes implemented;
	 Leadership competency model implemented;
	Reporting and analysis of Leadership Development programmes taking place

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	 Leadership Development Model in place;
	 Leadership Development Programmes only target senior management;
	Competency Assessments conducted at appointment
	 Leadership training reports not addressing performance gaps

	 Leadership Programmes are completed successfully by all participants;
	Coherent Leadership culture in place across all supervisory levels;
	No audit queries on finance and performance management;
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ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

4.12 Improved integrity in the public service

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	 There are 171 backlog cases dating back to 2005 owing to limited investigative capacity
	 There is limited investigative capacity in the Province 
	 Anti-corruption policies have not been customised in departments

	 All departments have anti-fraud and corruption policies
	 All departments have Minimum Anti-Corruption Capacity (MACC)
	Monitoring of the implementation of anti-fraud and corruption programme 
	 Provincial Anti-corruption structures are functional 
	 Increased awareness on fraud and corruption 
	 Improved whistle blowers reporting mechanism
	 Level of collaboration with other LEA exists

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	Clear all backlog cases dating back to 2005
	More than half of departments have fraud and anti-corruption policies
	More than half of departments and district municipalities have anti-fraud and corruption minimum 

capacity

	Case Management System functioning optimally 
	Reduced fraud and corruption incidences in the Province
	 Improved ethical culture
	 Improved collaboration between the OTP and law enforcement agencies 
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NOTES


